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ABOUT US B 1

BE NICE is a demanding self-requirement of Meilan International Airport,
a four-star SKYTRAX airport, and also a sincere commitment made
towards our passengers. With empathy, we provide our passengers
with superb services that elicit a cozy feeling. For Meilan employees,
honouring this commitment is not only a target, but also a mission.
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SOUTH CHINA’S
GATEWAY
TO THE WORLD
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Green Airport with
Beautiful Environment,
The Meticulous Service
To Be Pure and Beautiful,
Advanced and Completed
Airport Facilities
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[ACHIEVEMENT]

DYNAMIC MEILAN
FLYING IN THE SKY
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194 Air Routes,
96 Navigable City,
Nearly 15 Million Passenger
Throughput
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[HARMONY]

HARMONIC
MEILAN AIRPORT
WITH PROSPEROUS
COEXISTENCE OF
PEOPLE AND
NATURE
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The Beautiful Island
Full of Amorous Feelings,
Fresh and Comfortable
Environment of Airport,
The First Ecological
Garden Airport with
Green Lawn
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[HEART]

PERFECT
CONSIDERATIONS
WITH OUR HEART ON
THE PRINCIPLE
OF SERVICE
FOREMOST
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Four-star Meilan
Offers Passengers with WWarmness,
Safety Operation
Together with Excellent
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Corporate Mission
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Corporate Background
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HNA Infrastructure Company Limited* (the “Meilan Airport” or
the “Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”) with limited liability
on 28 December 2000. The H shares of the Company were
issued and listed on the Main Board (the “Main Board”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 18 November 2002. On 6 November 2003, the Company was
approved by the Ministry of Commerce (“MOC”) of the PRC to
convert into a foreign invested joint stock company. The Company
has changed its name from “Hainan Meilan International Airport

Company Limited” to “HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”, with
effective from 2 March 2015.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
currently engaged in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses at the Haikou Meilan International Airport, Haikou,
Hainan Province, the PRC. The aeronautical businesses of the
Company mainly consist of the provision of terminal facilities,
ground handling services and passenger services. The non-
aeronautical businesses of the Company mainly include the
leasing of commercial and retail spaces at Haikou Meilan
International Airport, franchising of airport related business,
advertising, car parking, cargo handling and sales of consumable
goods.

Major awards of the Company in 2014 were as follows:

° “The World’s Best Airport in ASQ (Airport Service Quality)”,
“The Best Scientific Model in ASQ” and “Certification
of the Saftey Airport” awarded by ACI (Airports Council
International)

° “Awarded SKYTRAX Best Regional Airport in China”

° the international terminal of Meilan Airport was ranked
nationally the second, and internationally the sixth SKYTRAX
five-star airport

° “2014 Green and Low-Carbon Airport CSR Award” awarded
by Airport Development Association of China

° “Excellence Participants in National Safety Operation Month”
awarded by Work Safety Committee of the State

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Information
AR)ER

NAME IN CHINESE

BMERRNDARAR

NAME IN ENGLISH

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.mlairport.com

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Zhen, Chairman
Yang Xiaobin, President
Zhang Peihua

Zhang Hao

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hu Wentai, Vice Chairman
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
Yan Xiang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xu Bailing

Fung Ching, Simon
George F. MENG
Deng Tianlin

SUPERVISORS

Dong Guiguo, Chairman
Zhang Shusheng
Han Aimin

COMPANY SECRETARY

Xing Zhouijin
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Corporate Information (Continued)

REER (8)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wang Zhen
Xing Zhouijin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Xu Bailing, Committee Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
George F. MENG

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Deng Tianlin, Committee Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
Zhang Peihua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Xu Bailing, Committee Chairman
Deng Tianlin
Wang Zhen

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Fung Ching, Simon, Committee Chairman
Xu Bailing

Deng Tianlin

Wang Zhen

Hu Wentai

LEGAL ADDRESS AND HEAD OFFICE

Office Building of Meilan Airport
Haikou City
Hainan Province, the PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 2606A-2608,

26th Floor Island Place Tower
510 King’s Road, North Point
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe BEEMEBET

43rd Floor, Gloucester Tower, the Landmark EEHRIR

15 Queen’s Road Central EFKEFR155

Central, Hong Kong B EGERETITNE431E
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP HAE R RSB (SR ESE)
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center i FT

2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road EHEMEK 20295 > E K255 12
Huangpu District TEKEPOI1E

Shanghai China

Bank of China, Haikou Jinyu FRERITEEEITEONEFTXT
Sub-branch of Hainan Province Branch FESEE

1/F, Yazhuang Garden BOTEFPES2F IR —1E
82 Haixiu Central Road

Haikou City
Hainan Province, the PRC

China Everbright Bank, Haikou Yingbin Sub-branch PR ARBITEOMELIT

1/F Longquan Garden hEEEE

56 Longkun South Road BOTERERS6HEREEEE
Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BEHPRFEBLEEREAT
Rooms 1712-1716 (T

17th Floor Hopewell Centre ERKNBFR1835

183 Queen’s Road East BT

Wanchai, Hong Kong 1712-1716E

00357 00357
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Financial Highlights
BEmE

TWO-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

MEFEMBERLE
For the year ended 31 December

(RMB’000) HE+T-A=+—RHLFE
(AR¥F7T) 2014 2013 Change & &)
Revenue WA 882,013 760,277 16.01%
Gross profit EH 539,716 458,184 17.79%
Net profit attributable to shareholders 538 22 7] B 55 ) B

of the Company 333,869 342,034 -2.39%
Earnings per share — basic (RMB) FRAEN -ERK(AREIT) 0.71 0.72 -1.39%
Net cash generated from operating EEEBEAMNFEIRS

activities 419,872 504,967 -16.85%
Current ratio mEN L 2.87 7.52 -61.84%
Asset-liability ratio BEAMF/X 49.47% 52.90% -3.43%
EBITDA EBITDA 595,435 527,880 12.80%

760,277

/
/

Revenue YA

W oo14 [ 2013
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Financial Highlights (Continued)
MiEmE (8)

For the year ended 31 December

(RMB’000) HE+-A=+—RHILFE
(AR%ETT) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Revenue WA 882,013 760,277 684,069 564,892 487,415
Net profit attributable to FBR AR T
shareholders of the Company AR I} 333,869 342,034 297,963 289,778 238,231
EBITDA EBITDA 595,435 527,880 467,822 405,745 313,633
For the year ended 31 December
(RMB’000) HE+-A=1+—RHILFE
(AR%TT) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Total assets BEE 5,721,747 5,667,229 3,867,245 2,855,003 2,297,967
Total liabilities FEY=NE 2,830,393 2,997,886 1,428,049 639,358 246,345
Total equity EEAE 2,891,354 2,669,343 2,439,196 2,215,645 2,051,622
For the year ended 31 December
HE+ZA=+—HLFE
2014 2013 Change %
Passenger throughput REELE
(headcount in ten thousand) (B : BAKX) 1,385.39 1,193.55 16.07%
in which: Domestic He: R 1,330.71 1,146.09 16.11%
International and regional BB & b [ 54.68 47.46 15.21%
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights) FH#&HERRZER (B @ ZR)R) 105,861 94,434 12.10%
in which: Domestic B ®A 100,570 90,227 11.46%
International and regional B 5% K2 it (& 5,291 4,207 25.77%
Cargo throughput (tons) EFITELE (B : M§) 217,714.10 196,300.60 10.91%
in which: Domestic Hep: A 208,350.60 189,678.80 9.84%
International and regional B (5% K2 it (& 9,363.50 6,621.80 41.40%
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ESTABLISHMENT OF

FIVE-STAR

AIRPORT
D E N

In order to further enhance its service quality and management standard for providing
quality service to the travellers, further establish the international brand image of
Meilan Airport and facilitate the establishment of Hainan International Tourism Island,
Meilan Airport sets its strategic goal to become a “Five-Star Airport”.

RTTIERIARBEEMER KT  LESHRERIKRTRHEEE
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Chairman’s Statement
F s

To all shareholders:

2014 is a year with complex international situations. The global
economy on the whole remained slow recovery as the prior year.
The lower-than-expected growth rate, however, had resulted
in different development pace of each economic regime. The
major developed countries around the world took conservative
step — the US enjoyed strong rebound, while the economic
growth of Eurozone and Japan was sluggish. Affected by
fluctuating financial market and the Ukraine Crisis, the emerging
economies continued to slacken. With low labour efficiency and
backward infrastructures, structural reformation was inevitable.
And India, which has been undergoing vigorous reformation,
experienced sound economic performance. Despite of high
youth unemployment rate, there was positive change in the
global employment market. The commodity prices remained low
in developed countries, but the emerging economies still faced
heavy inflation pressure. With slight changes, the international
trading market was slowly moving forward. Meanwhile, the
international political situation was sophisticated, local geopolitics
were under ongoing tensions and unceasing conflicts. Facing
such a complex external environment and unfavorable conditions
such as domestic economic restructuring and weak growth

10  HNAINFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

the PRC Government broke its way and overcome difficulties. It
introduced new macro-control measures and methods and strived
to solve economic and social problems by fully leveraging on its
proactive fiscal policies and prudent monetary policies, insisting
on the general tone of “seeking improvement in stability” and
integrating the idea of “steady growth” by “facilitating reform,
adjusting structure, benefiting people”. These effort led to a new
situation with “steady growth, steady improvement, steady quality
enhancement”, enabling the PRC to enter into new stage of
economic transform.

2014 is a year with extraordinary development. During the year
under review, to actively cope with the new domestic economic
trend, the Group adhered to deepened reform to comprehensively
enhance the corporate quality. While further developing the core
aviation market, the Group, at the same time, broke the norm
of the retail franchise industry and enhanced the recognition
of its brand of catering services. The resultant improvement
in the profitability of the non-aviation businesses, coupled
with strengthened cost control, specialized and sophisticated
management, brought satisfactory financial results.

In addition, to leverage on the extensive management experience
in infrastructure industry of the HNA Group, to be fully benefited
from the high recognition of “HNA” brand and to achieve the
Company’s strategic planning, the Company has changed its
name as “HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”. Upon change
of company name, the stock short names will be “/&fE” in
Chinese and “HNA INFRA” in English. The change of name has
been approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on 5
January 2015 and by the Industrial & Commercial Administration
Bureau of Hainan Province and Hong Kong Companies Registry.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the passenger throughput
of the Group reached 13.8539 million, which hit record high
by outpacing the average rate of thousands of airports across
the nation by 4.8%. Its leading position among major airports
in China was further consolidated. The Group also achieved
its 16th year of safe operation in its history and also made
outstanding achievements in international brand building, business
development and security management.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHRE (8)

In 2014, the Group’s total revenue amounted to RMB882,013,345,
representing an increase of 16.01% as compared to 2013.
Income from aviation business amounted to RMB493,990,3883,
representing an increase of 13.92% as compared to 2013. Income
from non-aviation business amounted to RMB388,022,962,
representing an increase of 18.79% as compared to 2013.

In 2014, benefited from certain favourable factors such as the
overall stable development of the civil aviation industry and the
construction of the Hainan International Tourism Island, both
tourism and transportation industries in Hainan continued a steady
growth. Having considered the situation and grasping the right
time, the Group continued to deploy much more effort on its core
aviation business, while at the same time actively strengthened
communication with local government, revised and fine-tuned
passenger incentives and attracted more airlines to increase
capacity. It also strived to explore tourism industry overseas by
offering new holiday packages, such as cruises and aviation travel,
with tourist agents and charter providers, in order to stimulate
aviation passenger transportation market in Haikou with flourishing
tourism. As compared to last year, Meilan Airport has added 65
new routes, including 54 domestic routes and 11 international
routes. The total passenger throughput for the year reached
13.8539 million, aircraft takeoff and landing up to 105,861 times
and cargo throughput up to 217,714.10 tons, with a year-on-year
growth of 16.07%, 12.10% and 10.91% respectively, representing
a successful realization of its annual transportation and production
target.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

In 2014, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained growth
momentum and achieved annual revenue of RMB388,022,962,
representing an increase of 18.79% year-on-year. Its proportion to
the Group’s total revenue hit record high at 44%. The continuous
growth was mainly due to the rapid increase in sales revenue from
the franchise operation of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop
in Meilan Airport. Meanwhile, through rational planning on the
terminals and enhancement on its business position, the Group
ensured steady growth in the revenue of its non-aviation business.
In 2014, the Group recorded franchise fee of RMB208,534,299
and rental fee of RMB37,819,516, representing significant year-
on-year increases of 31.01% and 12.18% respectively. In addition,
car parking income also reached RMB16,055,393, representing a
year-on-year increase of 20.61%. However, other individual non-
aviation businesses such as VIP room income recorded a year-on-
year drop as affected by government policies.

The main civil work and the facade construction of the West
Gallery expansion project, which covers an area of 28,000 square
meters, has been completed and is now undergoing final stage
of decoration. The west apron construction project with a road
area of 110,000 square meters has been inspected, approved and
commenced operation on 13 February 2015, which brought an
addition of 11 aprons for Meilan Airport. In addition, the feasibility
report for the second expansion phase of Meilan Airport has been
reviewed and commented by Civil Aviation Administration of China
(“CAAC”) on 12 December 2014 and has been submitted to the
National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”) for
approval.

Currently, the construction of the terminal complex project with
a total investment of approximately RMB1,903,874,000 is being
processed as planned by a relevant professional construction
company engaged by the Company and Yangpu Guoxing
Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”). It is expected that the
main civil work of the hotel portion will be completed by the end of
2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHRE (8)

According to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April
2010, the circular issued on 13 May 2010 as well as page 8 of
2012 Interim Report and page 13 of 2013 Interim Report, the
Company announced that it entered into a conditional share
transfer agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with HNA Group
Company Limited (“HNA Group”) and Qihe Investment Limited
(“Qihe Investment”) respectively for the acquisition of their 30%
and 24.5% equity in Hainan Airlines Airports Holding Group
Company Limited (“HNA Airport Holdings”) at a total consideration
of RMB2,199,900,000. HNA Group and Qihe Investment
respectively held 30% and 24.5% of the equity proposed to
acquire/acquired by the Group in HNA Airport Holdings. In early
2011, the Company completed the said acquisition of 24.5%
equity in HNA Airport Holdings from Qihe Investment by using
its own funds and bank loans and all the preconditions of the
acquisition had been met.

The Company originally intended to finance the acquisition of the
30% equity interest in HNA Airport Holdings held by HNA Group
with the proceeds from the proposed issue of A shares in the PRC.
One of the conditions precedents to such acquisition was that
the Company had obtained the official approval for the issuance
of A shares from the relevant authority or department and such
issuance of A shares had been completed.

In the event that not all of the above precedent conditions are
satisfied or fulfilled within two years after the passing of the
resolution relating to the issue of A shares at the extraordinary
general meeting and class general meetings, the Acquisition
Agreement shall be terminated automatically unless the Company
and HNA Group agree on such other date to satisfy or fulfill the
above conditions, and neither the Company nor HNA Group shall
assume any responsibility under the Acquisition Agreement. On 31
May 2010, the Company held the H shareholders class meeting,
domestic shareholders class meeting and extraordinary general
meeting in relation to the above matters.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FERE (8)

Currently, the two year term of the agreement entered into
between the Company and HNA Group in 2010 has been expired.
Since there is no substantial progress on the issue of A Shares,
upon friendly negotiation, the Company and HNA Group has
agreed to terminate the relevant agreement in respect of the
acquisition of 30% equity interest in HNA Airport Holdings held by
HNA Group.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) hereby informs
the shareholders and the potential investors of the Company
that should there be any new progress or any new agreement
be reached in relation to the issue of A shares in the future, the
Company will report such agreement to the Board and at the
general meeting for consideration, and make a timely disclosure
to the market pursuant to the Listing Rules after the unanimous
consent about the new proposal.

In 2014, according to the overall plan of the intelligentized
airport construction of Meilan Airport, insisting on the idea of
“happy e-travel, efficient e-use, e-control security and e-earning
efficiency”, the Group further facilitated the construction of the
intelligentized airport. During 2014, Meilan Airport had inspected,
accepted and officially started the operation of 13 projects. Up to
now, the intelligentized airport construction of Meilan Airport has
extended its reach to three aspects including security, service and
operation.

In respect of security, the viaduct auxiliary monitoring system,
facility operational surveillance system and airfield lighting
surveillance system were launched, which enabled coverage of
the fade zones in the airport and advanced warning of any facility
malfunction. As regards service system, the customer services
had been further improved with the launch of 8 projects such
as self baggage system, self check-in system, updated WIFI in
the terminals, etc. Besides, 5 projects including EAI (Enterprise
Application Integration) platform, scheduling system of wireless
station sites and operation and management platform had come
to service this year, which optimised the operational procedures.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TE®RE (&)

In 2014, in order to implement green low-carbon strategy and
actively discharge social responsibilities, the Group commenced
the comprehensive construction of “Green Airport”. The Group
made considerable improvement in energy saving and emission
reduction, which enabled it to be awarded “Annual Social
Responsibility Award in respect of Green Low Carbon Airport”
by China Airport Development Summit. The construction work
for the improvement of lighting in the security check area of the
quarantine zone of the lounge has been completed, which enabled
energy saving of approximately 435,000 kilowatt annually. The
reclaimed water reuse system, which is expected to complete and
commence operation in April 2015, will enable sewage disposal
and reuse for toilet flushing, plants irrigation and road cleaning,
etc. It will help saving nearly 300,000 tonnes of irrigating water. In
addition, the project of replacement of APU (auxiliary power unit)
with bridge containing equipment and the project of changing fuel-
driven vehicles with electric-driven vehicles are also processing as
planned.

The global economy in 2015 remains challenging. Driven by
various factors such as the recovery of real estate and financial
industries, the US economy is expected to maintain growth
momentum. Undergoing critical transition period from recession to
rebound, structural reform is inevitable in the European economy.
Strengthened economic reform of the emerging economies is
expected. In 2015, it is anticipated that the global inflation will
remain steady.

2015 is a critical year of comprehensively deepened economic
reform of China. Given the new economic development, the
current financial situation and inflation, it is expected that the PRC
government will continue its cautious macro-economic policies
and pertinent monetary easing policies so as to achieve steady
growth, and fine tune structure, facilitate reform, prevent risk
and benefit people’s livelihood. It will strive to minimize external
adverse effect of unstable factors on the economy of China.
Adhering to the idea of “seeking improvement in stability”, it is
expected that the development pace of the economy of China will
remain relatively stable in 2015.

16 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

T —0F - BERITAFHES KR RE -
Efﬂiagﬂ CAEEEAERE [0S 2R
BERBERAEZEAR - HRBERSERASR T [FELZE
RS S B EEE] - BT M IR #AE B B 2 SR AR
BENETIE  SFASHHAELN4358E Bt =
T— ﬁimﬂnijﬁx)\ﬁﬁﬁmqﬂmwﬁz% t (B E7K
KEEEEZARBIFTRE  BMER - BRKIEFZEE
FEAELEBRAKIII0EBHE ¢ LI - BEREER
APU(EBIE) NEE)EE B8 [ BRE]JHEWLITA
BN IEREF o

%

—T-hF 2REBERERATRAE - BEEK
EEHEXHESBMEEHRSZAZNGTY T  FEME
RIFEEEY  BNEERN R EHRNBERSB

BH - BN EBEST  HEKEBEEERN
PHAEREBE—FMK - ZT—1F » Hit2HKBR

FEBADBARIFIZE ©

“T-L%F RPREEEENEEACRENRERZ
FHEKBEERAERE EE%?HIJE’JHMAZ#R%DLHE
BT BHERASEERTRENZBREER
R BHEEWRRERHER  BEHREERER &

AR RE > BREB - BERENBIE - BRI
MIREAREFEEENAEZE - £2F [Pk

HIM@ERT Bt - — AF P EAE L RIRIFAE
IS -



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

Compared to the complex and uncertain international environment
and the new domestic environment, the construction of the
Hainan International Tourism Island will continue to maintain a
good and healthy momentum. In 2015, driven by the accelerated
transformation and upgrading of the tourism industry, the local
government of Hainan will further standardize and integrate the
resources of the tourism industry of the whole province, promote
the attractive and differentiated development thereof and fully
explore the development potential of this industry. It will also
further optimize transportation infrastructure. It is expected that
the number of domestic and overseas travellers visiting Hainan will
continue to increase, laying a solid foundation for the development
of Meilan Airport in 2015. In addition, affected by various factors
including crowds of travellers visiting the tourist spots during the
Spring Festival Golden Week, Hainan Island achieved aggregate
offshore duty-free sales amounted to RMB316 million, attracted
77,600 shopping travellers and recorded sales of duty-free
commodities of 301,000, representing increases of 39.8%, 37%
and 25.2% respectively. The sales amount of over RMB15 million
recorded on 24 February by Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free
Shop once again hit the new single day record. The current trends
of operation and sales revenue of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-
Free Shop are believed to bring better profits to the Group.

Opportunities and challenges co-exist in 2015. Facing the
business needs brought by the full swing development of the
Hainan International Tourism Island Construction and the further
easing of the offshore duty-free policies, the Group will grasp
every opportunity to continue strict implementation of its strategic
development plans, full exploration of the potential of aviation
and non-aviation markets, active optimization of capital structure
and effective reduction of gearing ratio. Its aim is to become an
investment management group focusing on asset management
by integrating investment with development, operating under
segments such as commercial and airport, complementing
development with sound strategies and maintaining good
industrial clusters. It will strive to achieve healthy and sustainable
development of Meilan Airport so as to bring better return to all
shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHRE (8)

In 2015, the Group will continue to seek government support and
strive to enhance aviation incentives. Through which, the Group
will expand its aviation market, especially deploying much more
effort in the second and third tier cities. It will try its endeavor
to increase its investment in Haikou market and further improve
its network of route distribution. While trying to increase new
domestic navigation points, the Group will attract airlines to set
up overnight base in Haikou, and further promote the main tourist
spots and routes in the northern area of Hainan by fully leveraging
on the traditional media and electronic media including the official
website of the airport, Weibo and Weixin, so as to increase its
share in the air transportation market and turning Meilan Airport to
become a regional aviation hub in southern China.

The Group will further improve its budget control, continue to
implement the management system of accountability center,
strictly conduct cost control, integrate resources and increase
profitability in 2015. At the same time, the Group will analyze
national and industrial policies through multi-channels and to
seek support from the government in terms of both policy and
fund. It will capture opportunities arising from the economic
transformation and the construction of Hainan International
Tourism Island and explore the possibility of obtaining government
subsidy. Meanwhile, the Group will optimize capital structure and
reduce its gearing ratio.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

With year-on-year increase in the business volume of the core
aviation segment, the issues including single route and low
capacity during peak hours have seriously hindered the growth
of Meilan Airport. As such, in 2015, the Group will spare no
effort to assess the capacity of Meilan Airport, striving to expand
capacity during peak hours. It will start coordination respecting
flight release, and formulate effective incentives to encourage
active coordination by the heads of all military and civil aviation
departments, thereby releasing restriction on traffic and increase
efficiency of flight operation. The Group will optimize the flight
routes of Hainan region and implement arrival and departure
separation in Meilan Airport to increase airspace capacity of
the airport and alleviate route congestion problem. The Group
will increase its route security capability, set up information
sharing platform based on its operation system and realize
effective coordination and decision making by sharing operational
information with the airport stationed units. It will also build
supervisory and inspection system as well as accountability
system in respect of the flight operation based on the wireless
station site. Through stringent flight security and quality control,
the Group targets to implement refined management on flight
operation.

In 2015, aiming at “further improving safety management”, the
Group will deploy much more effort on three aspects, i.e. “debt
repayment, capability enhancement and position advancement”.
Firstly, aligning the industrial standards with its own security
need, the Group will inspect and exam any deficiency in staff and
equipment, hardware facilities and management system of Meilan
Airport so as to improve safety management. Secondly, based
on the results of several external reviews conducted in 2014,
the Group will continue to strengthen its safety management
system and build up internal control system in respect of safety
and security, aiming at increasing the effectiveness of the internal
control system. Thirdly, the Group will conduct study on specific
aspect and problem solving, which addresses difficulties and
obvious problems incurred by restrictive operation, in order to
enhance operation quality.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHRE (8)

In 2015, the Group will try its best endeavor to realize the aim of
becoming a SKYTRAX five-star airport. To gain qualified rating
in terms of five categories including “infrastructure, environment,
culture, technology and management”, the Group will upgrade
both its software and hardware by stages and with particular
focus. Building on the success of obtaining five-star certification
of SKYTRAX by the international terminal of Meilan Airport, it
is hoped that Meilan Airport can be ranked SKYTRAX five-star
airport in 2015. At the same time, to achieve its aim of becoming
SKYTRAX five-star airport, the Group will further build up its
SKYTRAX and ASQ brands and to create brands on specialized
aspects such as the world’s best first class cabin, the best
shopping experience and the best security inspection.

In 2015, the Group will accelerate the second expansion phase of
Meilan Airport, the expansion of West Gallery and the renovation
of current terminal buildings; will adhere to the intelligent airport
construction blueprint with “happy e-travel, efficient e-use,
e-control security and e-earning efficiency” as the theme,
strengthen airport security capability, improve passengers’
experience, increase the overall operational efficiency of Meilan
Airport, and build up the corporate image of environmental friendly
by continuous implementation of the green, low-carbon strategies
and insisting in “green airport” project.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group, lwould HKNAZREEEZSREEBRAAEENEREYE T
like to express our heartfelt gratitude to our business partners, FEBEHN YR REG  AAEEETEK 225
clients and shareholders for their continuous support, as well as AU R LB EZ - WHT B HEF AITE R 5 1%
to our fellow staff for their dedicated efforts. We look forward to  1£E B AR ML o

becoming a successful regional airport management player with

the cooperation of all of our working partners.

T B
Wang Zhen EER
Chairman
FEERmA
Hainan Province, the PRC —ZE-RFWMA=-+WmA
24 April 2015
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NEW SERVICE

CONCEPT
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“Reaching Higher with Service Excellence”. Committed to providing customized
services to tourists, Meilan Airport offers unique services of five-star standard.
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Despite the signs of slow recovery in world economy and
international aviation market, and in the face of new development
trend of the domestic economy, the major transportation
indicators reflected that the civil aviation industry in China
maintained rapid growth. In 2014, China’s civil aviation achieved
total transport turnover of 74.85 billion tons/km, passenger
transportation volume of 390 million as well as cargo and mail
traffic volume of 5.933 million tons, representing a year-on-year
growth of 11.4%, 10.4% and 5.7% respectively. In 2014, there
were 51 air transportation companies in China, 239 general
aviation companies, 2,356 air carriers and 1,621 general aircrafts.
There were 9 new airports commenced operations. And the
number of licensed transportation airports increased to 202, 24
of which had passenger throughput exceeding 10 million, 7 of
which had passenger throughout exceeding 30 million. All these
figures reflected the capability of the industry has been bolstered
continuously.

In 2014, the civil aviation industry in China saw a number of
favorable policies.

In March 2014, pursuant to the “Guidelines in relation to the
Promotion of the Development of Low Cost Aviation Industry”
(the “Guidelines”) issued by the Civil Aviation Administration
of China, various measures had been promulgated based on
six principles namely insisting safety management, facilitating
rapid development, supporting flexible operation, encouraging
overseas expansion, improve infrastructure and environment.
These Guidelines marked a milestone in the promotion of
the development of low-cost aviation companies since the
cancellation of reduction restriction on the flight tickets for
domestic passengers and transportation jointly by the Civil
Aviation Administration of China and the National Development
and Reform Commission in November 2013, representing the
government’s vision of developing low cost aviation industry. This
will help addressing the bottlenecks of high proportion of rigid cost
and the difficulties in obtaining flight scheduling resources of the
low-cost aviation industry, thus creating an ideal condition for the
development of low-cost aviation industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In August 2014, the Civil Aviation Administration amended three
existing regulations, which allows sharing of two- and three-
letter code between parent aviation companies having absolute
controlling interests and its subsidiaries. Such amendments has
explicitly expanded the area of operation for application and
cancelled the requirement of obtaining operation certificate when
applying flight routes, thereby further boosting the motivation of
the civil aviation industry and establish a decisive position for the
industry in terms of resource allocation.

“Guidelines on Innovation of Investment and Financing Mechanisms
for and Encouraging Private Investment in Key Sectors” promulgated
by the State Council (Guo Fa [2014] 60) has made clear reform on
the investment and financing mechanisms of the transportation
industry, which aims at encouraging investment from private
sectors in the construction of infrastructures for marine
transportation and civil aviation industry. This guidelines actively
attracts private sectors to participate in main airports and regional
airports with better profitability and to invest in the construction
of auxiliary facilities in the airport, in order to broaden the sources
of fund for airport expansion and seek financing channels for the
future development of civil airport.

The Company will closely monitor the development of the civil
aviation industry in China in 2015 and carefully study government
policies with a view to secure additional throughput from
airline companies on the principle of safety operation to further
consolidate the position of Meilan Airport among major airports in
China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
ERENwmEIN (B)

In 2014, despite the pressure and challenges caused by the
domestic economic downturn and the serious natural disasters
such as the attack of two super typhoons, the tourism of Hainan
remained rapid growth. Both total number of tourists and total
tourism revenue outpaced the average rate of the national tourism.
The number of domestic and foreign tourists staying overnight for
the year amounted to 47.8908 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 10.6%. Of which, 40.6018 million foreign tourists staying
overnight were received and the tourism revenue amounted to
RMB50.653 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 10.56%
and 13.2% respectively. During the Spring Festival Golden Week
in 2015, the Hainan tourism experienced “nation-wide heated up
momentum” with the total number of tourists amounted to 3.1157
million, of which, 1.6373 million tourists staying overnight were
received and the tourism revenue amounted to RMB9.434 billion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 19.49%, 17.87% and
24.62% respectively.

In 2014, the Hainan tourism achieved “four new breakthrough”:

Breakthrough in fine-tuning and normalization of the tourist
market: various fine-tunings had been conducted throughout
the year and the enterprises and individuals which were non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations and interfered
the normal development of the tourist market had been disclosed
to public through media.

Breakthrough in the reform of tourism regime: the “Grading and
Rating Standards for Tourist Agency” had been established and
implemented, standardization on the price list of tourism spots
and performance programmes has been completed, and the
six quality control standards and six operational regulations for
sightseeing and shopping have been formulated.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN IO (8)

Breakthrough in the new development trend of the tourist industry:
the tourist tours featuring rural scenic have enjoyed blooming
development. Key focus has been made on the creation of tourist
model in 134 rural areas across the nation and 18 rural villages
have been awarded “Coconut” ratings. Qionghai has been rated
as the nation’s tourist model of leisure rural area and one of the
ten best tourist provinces of the “Beautiful China”. Three tourist
spots including Rose Valley, Yanlong Bay, Sanya, has been rated
as the nation’s tourist model of leisure rural area. Besides, new
types of vacation package including cruises, yacht tours as well as
wedding celebration tours have created broader room for future
development.

Breakthrough in marketing: the shooting of the video themed
“Come Experiencing Hainan” for the promotion of the new Hainan
International Tourism Island has been completed and ceaselessly
broadcasted in major commercial hubs, airports, metro stations,
public transport stations in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taipei, as well as the major commercial hubs
and websites of Russia, Korea, Singapore and the US. Investment
has been made to the construction of cultural corridor in Meilan
Airport to showcase the image and culture of Hainan through
“replicated sculpture, coloured paintings on real scenes, 3D
video”. The marketing strategy of “Please come and visit” has
been implemented, under which presentations of the travel
itineraries and products have been made in the key domestic and
overseas cities. Innovative marketing and strengthened online
promotion effort has been made through main media namely
CCTV and iFeng.com, social platforms such as Facebook, Twitter,
as well as emerging online media including Weibo, Weixin and
Micro Movie. Self-driving itinerary themed “Enjoy Summer Breeze
through Self-Driving in Hainan”, and various online marketing
campaigns including “Cool Summer in Hainan”, “Experience
Bustling Hainan”, “Exploring villages and towns — deep travelling
guided by Hainan locals” and “My Dream Island Wedding” have
been launched. With the reform of the management regime of
Hainan tourism moving forwards, the development of the tourism
in Hainan will remain at growth momentum.
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In 2014, all levels of government authorities in Hainan continued to
promote key tourist project construction.

A large-scaled integrated project of leisure and entertainment
named “Mission Hill ¢ Lan Kwai Fong e Haikou” jointly created
by Mission Hill Group and the internationally renowned model
entertainment brand Lan Kwai Fong Group is expected to
inaugurate in the third quarter of 2015. Covering a gross floor area
of 240,000 square meters, the project consolidates shopping,
entertainment, food and beverage and culture with a total
investment amounting to more than RMB2 billion.

Hainan Aerospace Theme Park, based on a blueprint to become
the first ever aerospace tourist spot in China and even the Asian
region, is located at the coastal area of the north-eastern side
of Dongjiao Village, Wenchang, covering a site area of 6,048 mu
and a gross floor area of approximately 3,800 mu with a total
investment of RMB7 billion. According to the project plan, a
“China’s only and internationally advanced” theme park “featuring
aerospace culture and island style”, and adjacent to the Satellite
Launch Center will be created. It is mainly used to showcase
to public the technology and technique of aerospace industry,
provide aerospace-themed entertainments such as Launch
Center visit tour and real-time observation of rocket launch, etc.
Currently, the project resettlement has been nearly completed. It is
expected to commence construction in the first half year of 2015
and complete by the end of 2016.

Located at Shishan Village, Xiuying District, Haikou, the Hainan
Sino-Thai Cultural Resort, which will be constructed by China and
Thailand through joint investment of RMB6 billion, will commence
construction in 2015. With the initial investment amounting to
RMB1 billion and a construction term of 6 years, the project will
be presented as a gift to celebrate the 40th anniversary of the
diplomatic relationship between China and Thailand and as a
model of the “21st century marine silk road”. The Hainan Sino-
Thai Cultural Resort consists: Thailand Cultural Square, floating
market, hot spring hotel, international conference center, Cactus
Volcano Cultural Tourist Zone, leisure and sports stadium, volcano
scientific and study tour, eco scenic zone, hot spring healthcare
center and the construction of new village and public auxiliary
facilitates such as hospital and school.
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With these key tourist project commencing construction, the
tourism in Hainan province, in particularly, the northern Hainan,
will be fueled with new energy, thereby realizing “flourishing
development in both southern and northern China”.

The Group will pay close attention to the development trend
of northern Hainan tourism, actively cooperate with the local
government to carry out promotion of northern Hainan tourism
products, seize development opportunities, and further promote
the passenger throughput of Meilan Airport to hit a new high.

- In respect of railways, the West Ring High-Speed Railway
with a total investment of RMB27.1 billion has started
construction in full swing in September 2013. The relevant
opening conditions are expected to be satisfied by the end of
2015, which include long-term planned passenger and cargo
throughputs of 50 million and 10 million tonnes, respectively.
Upon opening, the West Ring High-Speed Railway will be
connected with the East Ring Railway to form a roundabout
railway which will shorten the distance to travel around
Hainan both in terms of time and space and drive one-city
effect.

- In respect of highways, in 2014, Hainan spared no effort
to promote key transportation project. Having a total
investment of RMB3.4 billion, the construction of Tunchang
- Qiongzhong Highway, which involved in aggregate
the investment of RMB2.5 billion up till now, had been
completed. The prefabrication and installation of the lower-
part structure and the beam and slab of the main bridge
has been done. The tunnel construction has been basically
completed, while the asphalt paving work is underway.
The whole highway is planned to be open to traffic in the
first half of 2015. Approximately 55% of the Dinghai Bridge
connecting three transportation hubs in Haikou, Dingan and
Chengmai has been completed and it is expected to be open
to traffic by the end of 2015.
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- In respect of aviation, on 31 October 2014, the scientific
research base of low altitude airspace management and
security has been duly established in Sanya, Hainan. Led
by a working team of trial reform on low attitude airspace
management in Hainan, this scientific research base will be
stationed in the sub-district of Haikou and will form “two
stations in one site” so as to create a technology research
platform in respect of low attitude airspace management
for the support of the domestic low attitude airspace
management and security services. The construction work
of the Qionghai Boao Airport, a key project under the
“Twelfth Five Year” Plan of Hainan province, has been duly
commenced on 19 March 2015.

The continuing expansion of the effect of the offshore duty free
policy in Hainan attracted many offshore and foreign visitors.
In 2014, the sales of the duty free commodities of Hainan hit
record high. Two duty free shops in Haikou and Sanya had sold
in aggregate 5.36 million duty free commodities with the sales
amounting to RMB4.33 billion. The total number of shopping
tourists amounted to approximately 1.37 million, representing a
year-on-year growth of 22.7%, 31.6% and 24.2% respectively.

Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop recorded substantial sales
increase. In 2014, it achieved sales income of RMB919,018,220.63
with 511,414 total shoppers and 1,409,000 commodities sold,
representing a year-on-year growth of 47.67%, 35.31% and
35.17% respectively. Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has
a current business area to 5,277 square meters, which consists
of five areas selling daily necessities, fashion and leisure goods,
luxurious watches and goods, beauty and cosmetic products,
accessories and shoes. It will be later expanded along with the
West Gallery extension project in Meilan Airport. Upon which, it will
bring considerable franchise income to Meilan Airport.

Hainan Haitang Bay International Shopping Mall, the domestically
and internationally high profile and the world’s largest single-
building duty free shopping center, has commenced operation on
1 September 2014. As at the end of 2014, the sales amounted to
RMB1,280 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 64.9%
as compared to the original duty free shops in Sanya.
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To further capitalize on the duty free policy of Hainan and to
facilitate the construction of Hainan International Tourism Island,
after obtaining approvals from the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Commerce, the General
Administration of Customs, the State Administration of Taxation,
the General Administration of Quality Supervision, the Inspection
and Quarantine and the China Food and Drug Administration, and
having reported to and obtaining approval from the State Council,
the Ministry of Finance has decided, with effect from 20 March
2015, to adjust and fine-tune part of the duty free policy of Hainan.
It will include 17 consumer goods into the range of duty free
commodities, such as retail packaged infant formula milk powder,
coffee, healthcare food, household air purifiers, home-use medical
appliances, etc., and release the restriction on the quantity per
each purchase of 21 items among the 10 best-selling commodities
namely perfume, cosmetic, watches, clothing and accessories,
small leather goods, etc. The further easing of the duty free policy
of Hainan will help driving the sustainable growth of the tourism
and the consumption of Hainan and thereby, directly or indirectly,
boosting the passenger traffic of Meilan Airport.

In 2014, in the face of severe and sophisticated security issues,
the Group continued the building of the aviation safety and
security system in order to seek improvement in stability and step
into the 16th year of providing safety flight since its inception.
It had discharged its role of providing safety transportation for
certain important campaigns, including the National People’s
Congress and the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“NPC and CPPCC”), Boao
Forum for Asia, which achieved outstanding performance and
gained good recognition from all sectors.

In 2014, aiming at becoming SKYTRAX five star airport, and
focusing on the establishment of “safety and security management

» o«

system”, “strict control system”, “business training system”, the
Group strived to achieve improvement in safety and service quality

and obtained satisfactory results.
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The main civil work and the facade construction of the West
Gallery expansion project had been completed and it is now
undergoing final stage of decoration. The preceding cleanup work
at the station-front complex project had been completed and the
construction of which is being processed as planned by a relevant
professional construction company engaged by the Company
and Yangpu Guoxing. It is expected that the main work on the
hotel portion of the station will be completed by the end of 2015.
In additions, the apron upgrade and expansion project of the
Group had been running smoothly and the parking space in Meilan
Airport had been increased to 65.

In 2014, the Group further facilitated the construction of the
intelligentized airport. There were 16 projects started last year.
The customer services had been further improved with the launch
of 8 projects such as self baggage system, self check-in system,
updated WIFI in the terminals, etc. Besides, 5 projects including
EAI platform, scheduling system of wireless station sites and
operation and management platform had come to service. All
these effort allowed optimized operation of the airport business.

In 2014, boosted by the overall stable growth of civil aviation
industry, and benefited from certain favourable policies as well as
the construction of the Hainan International Tourism Island and
offshore duty free policy, the passenger throughput of Meilan
Airport continued to experience substantial growth, enabling it to
be ranked the 19th among all airports having passenger throughput
exceeding 10 million, which was two ranks higher than that of last
year.

Given the steady growth in passenger throughput, the Group
had made dedicated effort to strengthen its marketing strategies.
Through better communication with local government, the Group
actively fine-tuned and adjusted incentives to attract investments
and participations from more airlines. It also joined force with airport
stationed vendors to launch promotion campaigns so as to secure
sources of customers. The Group participated the development of
tourism in northern Hainan and integrated resources from peripheral
cities and counties of Haikou in order to attract more customers
offshore. These efforts helped moving the civil aviation industry
forward.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, Meilan Airport opened 65
new routes, operated a total of 194 originating routes, including
174 domestic routes, 17 international routes and 3 regional routes.
It had extended its reach to 96 cities, including 80 domestic cities,
13 international cities and 3 regional cities; and attracted 41 airlines
to operate at Meilan Airport, including 27 domestic airlines, 10
international airlines and 4 regional airlines.

Details of the aviation traffic throughput of Meilan Airport in 2014
and comparison figures of last year are set out below:

BHE_ZT-—MNF+-_A=1+—RHI1L - ERESHHEM
#meofF - HELREMB194K - HPBAMRI74
ik - BIBRMUAR 716 - MR MUARSIR - BAMTo6ME - B
PR AR TE0ME - BERM M 13ME - Emmm3E KB
MNEMZEABERMEISESZ - EPER27TE - B
10K * M4 °

TE-EXHEEMEXBREF B LE F—FK
BT

2014 2013 Change &)

Passenger throughput REEMHE
(headcount in ten thousand) (BAK) 1,385.39 1,193.55 16.07%
in which: Domestic Hrh: B®A 1,330.71 1,146.09 16.11%
International and regional B R K2 o IR 54.68 47.46 15.21%
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights) TR RBREZEIR(ZRIR) 105,861 94,434 12.10%
in which: Domestic Hep B 100,570 90,227 11.46%
International and regional BB % b [ 5,291 4,207 25.77%
Cargo throughput (tons) ERITAY S (HE) 217,714.10 196,300.60 10.91%
in which: Domestic Heh B 208,350.60 189,678.80 9.84%
International and regional R Kt & 9,363.50 6,621.80 41.40%

The Group’s revenue from aviation business for 2014 was
approximately RMB493,990,383, representing an increase of
approximately 13.92% as compared to that of 2013. A breakdown
of the Group’s revenue from aviation business is as follows:

AEB T NNFHOMEEBRANLEARE
493,990,383 70 ' M —_E—=ZFRHPE R T H
183.92% - BEARNEEMEEFRAFBOT ¢

Amount Change over
T 2013
(RMB) B-E—=

(AR¥T) 2E

Passenger service charges RERGEE 190,328,469 9.00%

Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund RimsERELRERMA 160,621,367 15.89%
Fees and related charges on aircraft TR e R M AR U B

takeoff and landing 68,139,298 14.38%

Ground handling service income b ] R 7 74,901,249 23.08%

Total revenue from aviation business Mz KA A 493,990,383 13.92%
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Civil Aviation Development Fund is a fee charged to passengers
taking domestic flights in the PRC. Pursuant to the “Interim
Measures for the Collection, Use and Management of the Civil
Aviation Development Fund” ((EMERE SR EIZEITH
7%)) promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, effective
from 1 April 2012 till 31 December 2015, the former Civil
Airport Construction Fee was superseded by the Civil Aviation
Development Fund, the charge rate remains the same. According
to the “Notice Regarding the Grant of Subsidy of Civil Aviation
Development Fund to Haikou Meilan Airport” ({BER T & 0%
MIS R ERESHELABA)) issued by CAAC on 11 April
2012, the refund of Civil Airport Construction Fee granted to the
Group was correspondingly superseded by the refund of Civil
Airport Development Fund, the refund rate should be determined
by CAAC. Given the nature and refund method of both funds
are same, the actual refund rate of the airport construction fee is
48% since 2008 and the Group did not receive any notice from
relevant authorities in respect of charge of the refund rate during
the current period, the Group continued to recognise the refund of
Civil Aviation Development Fund at a rate of 48%.

In 2014, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained
growth momentum and achieved annual revenue of
RMB388,022,962, representing an increase of 18.79% year-on-
year. Its proportion to the Group’s total revenue hit record high at
44%. The continuous growth was mainly due to the rapid increase
in sales from the franchise operation of Meilan Airport Offshore
Duty-Free Shop in Meilan Airport. Meanwhile, through rational
planning on the terminals and enhancement on its business
position, the Group ensured steady growth in the revenue of its
non-aviation business. In 2014, the Group recorded franchise
fee of RMB208,534,299 and rental fee of RMB37,819,516,
representing significant year-on-year increases of 31.01% and
12.18% respectively. In addition, car parking income also reached
RMB16,055,393, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.61%.
However, other individual non-aviation businesses such as
VIP room income recorded a year-on-year drop as affected by
government policies.
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Amount Change over
o 2013

(RMB) B-—E—=
(AR¥T) 2E)
Franchise income FrAFE B 208,534,299 31.01%
Freight and packaging income BERBERA 74,381,508 9.56%
Rental income HEUWA 37,819,516 12.18%
VIP room income EEERA 19,843,357 -31.73%
Parking income ZEIBRA 16,055,393 20.61%
Other income He WA 31,388,889 33.70%
Total revenue from non-aviation businesses MR EFE AU A 388,022,962 18.79%

FRANCHISE INCOME

In 2014, the franchise income of the Group amounted to
RMB208,534,299, representing a year-on-year growth of 31.01%,
which was mainly attributable to factors such as expansion of
the business area of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop,
diversified duty-free commodities and innovative promotion
means, resulting in the substantial growth in sales in offshore
duty-free shop. In 2014, revenue from offshore duty-free franchise
of the Group amounted to RMB137,056,043.

RENTAL INCOME

In 2014, the rental income of the Group amounted to
RMB37,819,516, representing a year-on-year growth of 12.18%,
which was because the Group made full use of the existing venue
resources of the terminal and increase the rental income from
leasing of the terminal through re-planning, enhancing investment

attraction and appropriately increasing the rental rate.

FREIGHT AND PACKAGING INCOME

In 2014, the Group maintained sustainable growth in freight
income through various measures like active market exploration
and improved freight packaging. Throughout the year of 2014,
the total freight and packaging income of the Group amounted to

RMB74,381,508, representing a year-on-year growth of 9.56%.

FFETAR S REMA

ZENF O AEEREAKERRARARE
208,534,2997T * RIth#E&K31.01%  TEBHmNER
BEBRSETEEERYEEN  L2BEREBRLME
REFREZCEFAR  REAFHEKAKREBER
R NEREEESENBTKERBKARARE
137,056,0437C °
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PARKING INCOME

In 2014, the parking income of the Group amounted to
RMB16,055,393, representing a year-on-year growth of 20.61%,
which was mainly because the Group strengthened the
management of the parking lot and its surrounding areas and fully
utilized the existing parking resources. The opening of the new
international terminal parking lot and the increase in passenger
throughput have also boosted income growth.

The Group emphases mostly the safety operation. In 2014, in face
of severe security situation, the Group made much effort on the
following aspects to increase its level of security:

Enhancing the ability of anti-terrorism. Based on the comprehensive
anti-terrorism contingency plans, the Group had actively launched
regional security networking management by cooperating with on-
site parties in order to extend the security coverage in terms of
“points, lines and surface”. Meanwhile, the Group formed airport
security squad and inspection squad, and engaged trainers
specializing in anti-terrorism to provide regular military training
and conduct contingency manoeuvre with security staff and real
equipment so as to enhance the ability of anti-terrorism of the
Meilan Airport.

Forming safe airport. Throughout 2014, the Group conducted
series of safety and security inspection check addressing air
defense, fire control, public order, security after takeoff, explosion
prevention, apron order, etc. It discovered 65 deficiencies and
made correction on those 65 deficiencies accordingly, reaching
100% correction rate. At the same time, it launched “Traffic
Readjustment and lllegal Act combating” project with the Airport
Public Security Bureau. Under which, over 1,800 people were
penalized due to traffic violation, 21 traffic accidents were dealt
with, resulting in obvious improvement in the traffic and security
within the airport territory.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN IO (8)

Linking three elements: information, risk and security in one
performance assessment system. In 2014, the Group proactively
built up security information integration and sharing system,
and at the same time improved the risk prevention system. It
established several complementary system such as security
performance management regulations and assessment measures
to provide incentives in respect of security performance. Besides,
by applying the security performance management measures to
security checkpoint on trial basis, the Group further improved the
quality of security work.

Building the third party assessment system. In 2014, the Group
conducted various projects with CAAC and ACI, involving

“assessment on operational security”, “assessment on security
performance”, “assessment on prominent airports”, etc.
Seeking external professionals to look for the deficiencies in
security system, the security management of Meilan Airport was

enhanced.

In 2014, the Group was honored the “Excellence Participants in
National Safety Operation Month”, enabling it to become the only
enterprise obtaining such award within Hainan province and even
among the peers in China’s airport industry. Besides, the Group
also obtained the “Airport Excellence in Safety” certificate from
ACI, which means the Group has become the second airports
achieving such certificate in China. With prominent results in the
assessment of “Safe Airport” by CAAC, the Group was ranked
the second position among airports having passenger throughput
exceeding 10 million in Central and Southern China. All these
awards prove that the security effort made by the Group was
highly recognized by the nation and the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEETREIMN (B)

During 2014, adhering to the principles of “creating efficiency,
carrying out construction, enhancing quality”, the Group continued
to streamline its management by consistently innovating new
service model, refining the arrangement, strengthening decision
making capability. Through unremitted effort, the service quality of
Meilan Airport was improved and enhanced continuously.

By building up performance management system, implementing
assessment on six key standard of service quality namely ratings
on complaints, quality of services and the degree of satisfaction of
passengers, rectified SKYTRAX standard reaching rate, rectified
quality enhancement rate, five star standard execution rate, the
number of incident incurred due to quality problem for the whole
year decreased by 100% year-on-year. There was no effective
complaint received and mistake made in respect of services
provided.

The Group strengthened service quality monitoring responsibility,
formed service quality monitoring team consisting of staff within
tourist industry, university lecturers, authorities and experienced
media professionals which were engaged through “Recruitment
of Member of Service Quality Monitoring Team”, thus creating
sincere communication between the airport and the passengers as
well as an ideal development atmosphere with mutual trust.

The Group strived to improve service quality by seeking
professional help. It engaged a third party consultancy to conduct
service quality enhancement project. Thereby, the “Airport Service
Guidelines” tailored made for Meilan Airport was published. It also
implemented objective and pertinent service quality assessment
and discovered deficiencies through scientific and professional
statistical analysis, in order to enhance overall service quality.

To provide comprehensive services, the Group added micro-
computer-controlled water boilers, cool air spraying devices,
automated external defibrillators, the “10 m? of Mother’s Love”
in the terminal, enabling convenient experience to passengers.
Meanwhile, the Group introduced tourist information center,
cultural corridor, Yanoda tropical rain forest experience zone,
aiming at service quality enhancement by offering travelling and
cultural products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN IO (8)

The Group gained substantial results in quality enhancement by
publishing “2014-2015 Five Star Project” and the new version
of “Five Star Standards of Passenger Services”, paving a solid
foundation to achieve SKYTRAX certificate.

With sound results in quality enhancement, in 2014, the Group
was awarded 21 domestic and international awards, namely “The
World’s Best Airport in ASQ” under the category of 5-15 million
throughput and “The SKYTRAX Best Regional Airport in China”,
which enabled it to become one of the best airports around the
world. It was also awarded the SKYTRAX five-star certificate
for its international airport terminal, which enabled it to become
domestically the second, and internationally the sixth SKYTRAX
five-star airport upon obtaining of the same honor by Terminal
2, the Shanghai Honggiao International Airport. These awards
reflected the substantial outcome of the Group in becoming
SKYTRAX five-star airport.

In 2014, to implement sustainable green, low-carbon strategy,
the Group launched “green airport” project in full swing. During
the year, it completed the construction work for the improvement
of lighting in the security check area of the quarantine zone
of the lounge, which enabled energy saving of approximately
435,000 kilowatt. The reclaimed water reuse system, which has
been complete and commence operation in April 2015, will help
saving nearly 300,000 tonnes of irrigating water. In addition, the
project of replacement of APU with bridge containing equipment
will reduce more than 410 tonnes of fuel and reduce pollutant
emission of nearly 57,000 tonnes upon completion. The overall
planning of changing fuel-driven vehicles with electric-driven
vehicles was completed and has been fully processing. The energy
conservation and emission reduction outcome of the Group has
been highly recognized by the industry, and was awarded “Green
and Low-Carbon Airport CSR Award” by Airport Development
Association of China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
ERENwmEIN (B)

In 2014, the Group optimized its corporate organization and
streamlined 9 departments and 57 positions. 58 specialized
working teams were revoked. The remuneration package for
the staff working in VIP room was reformed, which change the
way of determination from traditional position-based measure to
total labour cost based on operational scale. At the same time,
management authority was delegated so as to fully capitalize the
flexibility and motivation of the remuneration system. Sticking to
principle of “people-oriented”, the Group made, in aggregate,
investment of over RMB2.1 million to organize more than 20
staff caring activities like sending greetings during festivals,
“Seeking Happiness” hiking activities, sports tournaments, etc.,
which helped enhancing bonds between staff, increasing group
cohesiveness and thereby paving solid foundation for forming a
united working team.

In 2014, the Group conducted regular social welfare activities
including visiting charity house, tree planting and blood donation.
It also participated disaster relief work, which in aggregate over
1,460 staff were volunteered to help, 8,900 meters of road were
cleaned, 490 trees were rectified, 560,000 square meters of
meadow were swept up and 4,963 kilograms of resources were
donated. With prominent effort made in disaster relief, the Group
was awarded “Advanced Enterprise in Disaster Relief” by the
Asset Supervision and Administration Commission of Hainan
Province.

As of 31 December 2014, the total assets of the Group
amounted to RMB5,721,747,176, representing an increase
of 0.96% over last year, among which, current assets
amounted to RMB2,014,675,870, representing 35.21% of the
total assets, non-current assets amounted to approximately
RMB3,707,071,306, representing approximately 64.79% of the
total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure the ability of ongoing operations and maintain a healthy
capital ratio in order to support its business and maximize
shareholders’ interests. The Group continued to emphasize the
appropriate mix of equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital
structure to reduce capital cost. As at 31 December 2014, the
debts of the Group were mainly bank loans, corporate bonds and
long-term payables (hereinafter the “total borrowings”), amounting
to approximately RMB2,550,552,096. Cash and cash equivalents
was approximately RMB1,884,557,387. The gearing ratio of
the Group was 88.21% as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013:101.41%) (total borrowings/total equity).

The Group maintained a balanced portfolio of loans at fixed
interest rates and variable rates to manage interest expenses. As
at 31 December 2014, 34.84% of the Group’s total borrowings
were subject to fixed interest rates, while the remaining 65.16%
were subject to floating interest rates.

The Group aimed to keep the balance between the continuity and
flexibility of funds by capitalizing on its total borrowings. As at 31
December 2014, 17.43% of the Group’s bank loans will become
due within one year, and the corporate bonds will become due in
2019.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and US dollars, among which
borrowings in US dollars represented approximately 65.16% of
the total borrowings, while cash and cash equivalents mainly
denominated in Renminbi and US dollars, among which USD
represented approximately 35.07% of the total amount.

AEEEAEENTIZARARRAEEFEL LR
NERFBREOERE - UXFERBEERERR

MEHEAL ARESEEREBRAMEEALS @ BIR
RENEARBUBMEBEERKRN - R-F— E¢+_
A=Z+—H AKEENEBEIZRBITER - AFE
FMEHERMR(ATEBES [BEFR]D AODARE

2,5650,552,0067C ' HERELREZEMHARE
1,884,557,3877C - EAEE 34;7%8821% —EF—=F
+ZA=+—08 101.41%) (L {E5 1EiEz

7R BB 4 R E E B E M) R AE 5 B ] R R (B A
HAENEBFNERR R-T-—OF+-_A=+—
H REBEBERN34.84% REEEEFE - 8T

65.16% SI)FE B R E

ERBEREESNFEEEER T
ME+—A=+—8 " A&
NEMEFBE=

AEENBRRE
ZERETFE R _T—
BB RH17.43% K E—FAZH -
T-NFHH -

RZFB-MF+-_A=1t—0 AEENEERAA
REMEXTFAE  EPUAXTREZBOGRE

HH65.16% : W MRS FEBYWAARENETH
B EFRAENETHResNAESFEVNGRAERN
35.07% °

BMERBNERAR 41
TR -UFEFR



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
ERENwmEIN (B)

The operation cost and administrative expenses of the Group
were RMB380,843,477 in 2014, representing an increase of
RMB57,637,607 or 17.83% as compared to that of 2013, mainly
because:

(1)  Staff cost increased by RMB22,478,474 due to the raised
remuneration level and increased headcount in October
2013.

(2)  The costs of the contract labour increased by RMB11,301,090
as the Group raised the level of remuneration of the contract
labour.

(30 The depreciation charge of the year increased by
RMB6,955,987, which was mainly due to the commencement of
operation of the international terminal and the auxiliary facilities.

In 2014, the finance expenses of the Group increased by
RMB32,627,253 from last year to RMB82,855,339. It was mainly
due to the increase in the interests and the related expenses of a
loan of US$250,000,000 raised at the end of 2013 and the loss
from translation of USD to RMB.

In 2014, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities was
RMB419,871,850, representing a decrease of 16.85% over last
year. The decrease was mainly due to the increase in labour costs
and taxation.

In 2014, the Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities was
RMB1,118,469,220, which was mainly attributable to payments
for the terminal expansion construction, terminal complex project
construction and the entrusted loan.

In 2014, the Group’s net cash outflow from financing activities was
RMB413,854,320, which represented mainly the repayment of
borrowings, payment of interests on borrowings and dividends.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN IO (8)

The long-term borrowing of US$72,500,000 from China
Development Bank was secured by 24.5% equity interest in HNA
Airport Holdings held by the Group. As of 31 December 2014,
the outstanding balance of the borrowing was US$26,993,475
(equivalent to RMB165,173,074).

The Group’s long-term borrowing of US$250,000,000 from
Taiwan syndication was secured by the 51% equity interest
in Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. held by
the Group and certain land use rights of the Group with book
value amounting to RMB8,717,183. As of 31 December 2014,
outstanding balance of the borrowing was US$250,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,529,750,000). Please refer to the Company’s
announcement published on 4 December 2013 for further details
of the borrowings.

Certain land use rights for the construction of the West Gallery
and the international terminal have been pledged to secure a long-
term borrowing of RMB291,000,000 granted to the Group and
Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited (being the
joint borrowers) by China Development Bank.

As at 31 December 2014, the accounts receivables and other
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB125,263,244,
representing an increase of 45.98% as compared with the end of
the previous year.

Details of the accounts receivables and other receivables of
the Group are set out in Note 4(2) and Note 4(4) to the financial
statements. Details of the accounts receivables and the policy for
impairment of accounts receivables are set out in Note 2(10) to the
financial statements.

As of 31 December 2014, current assets of the Group were
RMB2,014,675,870, total assets were RMB5,721,747,176,
current liabilities were RMB703,159,240 and total liabilities were
RMB2,830,393,007. The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets)
of the Group was 49.47%, representing a decrease of 3.43% over
last year, which was attributable to the decrease in borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEETREIMN (B)

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in RMB,
except certain aviation revenue, purchase of equipment and
consulting service fee which are denominated in US$ or HKS.
The dividends to H-share holders are declared in RMB but paid
in HK$. According to the overall arrangement in relation to the
acquisition of 24.5% equity interests in HNA Airport Holdings,
the Group has raised a US$ denominated borrowing from China
Development Bank to finance the said acquisition, the balance of
the borrowing amounted to US$26,993,475 as at 31 December
2014; the Group has also raised a US$ denominated syndicated
borrowing of US$250,000,000 from Taiwan investors to finance
the construction of the terminal complex project of Meilan Airport;
the principals and interests of these two borrowings should be
settled in US$. Thus, the exchange fluctuation of RMB against
US$ will affect the financial performance of the Group. The Group
has not entered into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group is obliged to repay the principal and interests
of the bank borrowings of US$26,993,475 (equivalent to
RMB165,173,074) and US$250,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,529,750,000) granted by China Development Bank and
Taiwan syndication respectively. Any changes in London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) and interest rate adjustment by the
PBOC will affect the interest expenses and results of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, financial instruments of the Group
mainly comprised bank loans, corporate bonds, entrusted
loan, cash and bank deposits. The purpose of those financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. Besides,
the Group had other financial instruments in relation to daily
operations, such as receivables excluding prepayment and
payables excluding statutory liabilities.

As at 31 December 2014, neither the Group nor the Company had
any significant contingent liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN IO (8)

As at 31 December 2014, neither the Group nor the Company had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 728
employees, representing an increase of 19 employees over the
last year, it is within the scope of normal employment. Employees
are remunerated based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices. The Group will review the
remuneration policy and related packages on a regular basis.
Performance-based bonuses and commissions may be awarded
to employees. The Group provided adequate trainings based on
the requirement of its employees, in order to upgrade the talent of
its staffs. A total of 163 courses under the training scheme were
completed, and 6,794 staff participated in.

The Company and its subsidiaries shall participate in the
retirement scheme operated by the relevant local government
of the PRC. The PRC government shall be responsible for the
pension of the retired employees. The Group has to make a
contribution at a rate of 20% of the salary of the employees with
permanent residence in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the pension contribution of the Group was approximately
RMB8,073,806 (2013: RMB6,666,516).
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16TH YEAR OF
SAFE OPERATION
HEHF 0% L2 F

Adhering to our principle of “Safety, Prevention and Consolidated Management”,
we have established an emergency alert mechanism and organized various training
programmes on safety skills and emergency drills.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to complying with all the rules
prescribed by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as requirements of
other regulatory bodies. The Company has adopted a code on
corporate governance practices on terms no less exacting than
the standard of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code on Corporate Governance”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules which came into effect in January 2005
and has been amended from time to time. During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Company had complied with the Code
on Corporate Governance and all governance and disclosure
requirements.

The Company is well aware that good corporate governance is an
important prerequisite for sustainable development, continuous
improvement of the Company’s value and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests. In the future, the Company will
adhere to good and prudent governance style and continuously
improved corporate governance level to achieve efficient
management and standardized operation.
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The committees under the Board are established in accordance
with the relevant rules prescribed in the Listing Rules of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The chairman of the committees shall be
served by independent non-executive directors.
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HNA Infrastructure Company Limited
(Comprised of four Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors)
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Remuneration Committee
(Comprised of two
Independent
Non-executive Directors
and one Executive

Audit Committee
(Comprised of three
Independent
Non-executive Directors)

Director)
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The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted
by the Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

Nomination Committee
(Comprised of two
Independent
Non-executive Directors
and one Executive

Strategic Committee
(Comprised of three
Independent
Non-executive Directors,
one Executive Director and
one Non-executive Director)

Director)
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The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
the directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of the directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, all of the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during any
time of the accounting period covered by this annual report.

The Board of the Company comprises 11 Directors, including four
executive Directors (“Executive Directors”), three non-executive
Directors (“Non-executive Directors”) and four independent non-
executive Directors (“Independent Non-executive Directors”). The
Company has complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules
for comprising at least three independent non-executives and
the number of Independent Non-executive Directors accounts
for at least one third of the members of the Board, and at least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors shall have the
appropriate professional qualifications and has proper expertise in
accounting or financial management.

The members of the Board well acknowledge their responsibilities
and obligations and treat equally to all of the shareholders of the
Company. In order to safeguard all of the investors’ interest, the
Company ensures to provide the documents and information in
relation to the Company’s operations to members of Directors
in a timely manner. Independent Non-executive Directors act on
their duties in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to
safeguard the interest of the Company and shareholders as a
whole.
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As of 31 December 2014, the Board of the Company comprised
eleven directors:

CHAIRMAN

Mr.

Wang Zhen

VICE CHAIRMAN

Mr.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Hu Wentai

Wang Zhen
Yang Xiaobin
Zhang Peihua
Zhang Hao

(duly appointed on 4 May 2014)
(re-appointed on 23 August 2012)

(duly appointed on 27 May 2013)
(duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
(duly appointed on 20 May 2014)
(duly appointed on 16 February 2015)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
. Yan Xiang

Mr

Hu Wentai

(re-appointed on 29 May 2012)
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Xu Bailing

Fung Ching, Simon
George F. Meng
Deng Tianlin

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
(duly appointed on 3 November 2014)

The Company has received annual confirmation letters regarding
the independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Company considers that each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is still independent from the Company.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu Bailing and
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon currently have served more than 9 years
as Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The
Company confirms that each of Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung
Ching, Simon still meet the independence requirements set out
in Rules 3.13. Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung Ching, Simon have
relevant accounting or industrial experience and have a deep
understanding of the Group’s operation. Based on such, the
Company believes that Mr. Xu Bailing and Mr. Fung Ching, Simon
are still independent of the Group and will continue to make
contribution to the Company.

There is no relationship among the Directors that is discloseable.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the annual accounts.

The Board believes that regular assessment of its performance is
important and beneficial to improving its operations. In 2014, the
Board conducted assessment on its performance.

1. The Board had held 6 meetings as of 31 December 2014,
being the seventh to the twelfth session of the fifth congress.
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2. The attendance records of the Directors in the Board
meetings and the general meetings

2. BFHREFELRZNMBRAZTERNENR

Number of Not attending
Board any meeting
Meetings Attendance in person
they should by audio fortwo  Attendance
Independent attend  Attendance orvideo  Attendance consecutive of general
ornot  forthe year in person  conferencing by proxy Absence times meeting
KEES N@AA REEEWL LRREAS
Name of Directors ESfty  RABUES  BEeNE BANERM  HERE EAHERM O RENR ABASNEE MR
Wang Zhen T g No 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
& &
Liang Jun 28 No 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
Zhang Peihua FhE No 4 4 0 0 0 No 100%
Yang Xugiang (former) et (An) No 2 1 1 0 0 No 100%
= ~
=] (=]
Hu Wentai BXE No 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
& &
Yang Xiaobin /A No 6 3 3 0 0 No 100%
& &
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph B & No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
= ~
=] (=]
Yan Xiang ) No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& &
Xu Bailing Rk Yes 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
I i
Fung Ching, Simon & Yes 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
= &
George F. Meng hZE Yes 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
= &
Deng Tianlin PN Yes 2 2 0 0 0 No 100%
I a
Feng Da’an (former) BAZ(A0) Yes 4 4 0 0 0 No 100%
Note: The ninth session of the fifth congress of the Board of the Company Mz A"ARRZ—ZZE—NE+A-_BEBRELRESFARESTS
was held on 2 July 2014 at which Mr. Zhang Peihua attended as S RMEEAEERTBTRAERETRARAFTESR
directors for the first time upon his appointment as a director of the BRBMEARRNEEEEH - FARARZE—NF+—
Company to take over the role of Mr. Yang Xugiang. The eleventh A+tN\BEHERREEt—XEEEEH - Eﬂ?{%%i
session of the fifth congress of the Board of the Company was held on EEABAREARIEARARTNEEEERZ2INAR
18 November 2014 at which Mr. Deng Tianlin attended as a director E@DE o
for the first time upon his appointment as a director of the Company to
take over the role of Mr. Feng Da’an.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company provided #HZE—-Z—NE+_A=+—HIF ARAAAESFS

monthy update information to all the members of the Board
in respect of the operation situation, financial positions, major
monthly events as well as the monthly disclosure of the Company.

2RKBRHABARAEEELBN - WBHRR -
RERELLAREERERBANEAER -

BRERRAERAT 53
—T-mEER



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
NRERWmE (58)

The Company encourages the Directors to participate in the
continuous professional development in order to develop and
update their knowledge and skills. The Company also organized
relevant training in order to make sure that the Directors make
contribution to the Company with extensive information and
satisfaction. The Company made out registration forms, training
record and training certificates to assist them recording the
courses they have participated. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the summarized training records of the Directors are as
follows:

AARBGREBHESSLEBFEIELR  BURETD
EAEMBA A - RARMMAGAEBEIIABRE
EHEABRAREERYAMBENBERTHESS MY
BEf - AARREFIERE - Bl RIFIEE
AUBBESEDEMPIMSENBIIRE - HEZZ
—WFE+ZA=Z+—HI ARAFRESEIHEID
BRLan T

Knowledge
Sharing and
Compliance Case Study of Case Study exchange
System of the Recent Major the Securities of the regarding
stock market of Changes on the and Futures Hong Kong corporate
Hong Kong Listing Rules Commission Stock Exchange governance
BRREDEN EmRE BERBESH BEEIARA BREXERD
EERA FHIER BERZESRA PEETR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Wang Zhen T & v % v % v
Liang Jun 2 E v v v v v
Yang Xiaobin 15/NE v v v v v
Zhang Peihua e ES v v v v v
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ ##I{TEE
Hu Wentai X ER v % v v %
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph B & v v v v v
Yan Xiang x A v v v v v
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE By JE#1/7ES
DIRECTORS
Xu Bailing BRI v v v v v
Fung Ching, Simon B 1k v % v % %
George F. Meng aZE v v v v %
Feng Da’an BR% v v v v v
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The above trainings were organized by the Directors’ Office of the
Company, together with Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP and
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP. The training was held
at Carbaret Room, Intercontinental Hotel, Dalian City, Liaoning
Province on 28 August 2014, with a total of ten courses. The
project was aiming to strengthen the Directors’, supervisors’ and
senior management’s understanding to the concept and practice
of laws and regulations and corporate governance of the Hong
Kong, in order to improve the standardization of operations,
enhance the level of corporate governance and internal control.

Details of terms of reference of the Board and the management and
the respective areas to exercise their authority are set out in the
articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”):

The Board is accountable to the shareholders’ general meeting
and shall exercise the following duties and powers:

1. to convene general meetings and report to the shareholders;
2. to carry out the resolutions of the general meetings;

3. to decide on the operational plan and investment plan of the
Company;

4.  to formulate the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

5. to formulate plans for profit distribution and recovery of
losses;

6. to formulate plans for increases in or reductions of the
Company’s registered capital, the issue of corporate bonds
and other securities and the listing of the Company;

7. to prepare plans for merger, division, dissolution and
reorganization of the Company;

8. to determine the internal management structure of the
Company;
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9. to appoint or dismiss the Company’s general manager and
secretary to the Board on recommendation of the chairman
of the Board; and to appoint or dismiss deputy general
managers and other senior officers of the Company and
determine their remuneration on recommendation of the
general manager;

10. to formulate the Company’s basic management system;

11. to formulate proposals for amendment of the Articles of
Association;

12. to formulate proposals for major acquisitions or disposals of
the Company;

13. to propose the appointment or dismissal of external auditors
for approval by the shareholders’ general meeting; and

14. other powers conferred under the Articles of Association and
by the general meeting.

The Board has established the audit committee, nomination
committee, remuneration committee and strategic committee.
Each of these committees has established its own written terms of
reference and operates effectively on this basis.

The general management can decide the following matters:
1. to supervise the management of production and business
operations, and organize the implementation of the

resolutions of the Board;

2. to coordinate the implementation of the Company’s annual
business and investment plans;

3. to formulate plans for the establishment of the Company’s
internal management structure;

4. to formulate the basic administration system of the
Company;

5.  to formulate the basic rules of the Company;
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6. torecommend the appointment and dismissal of vice general
managers and other senior officers (include financial officers)
of the Company;

7.  to appoint or dismiss other managerial staff (other than those
required to be appointed or dismissed by the Board); and

8. to exercise other powers conferred under the Articles of
Association and by the Board.

Both the Board and the management act in strict compliance
with relevant requirements of the Company Law, the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

The chairman is responsible for development direction and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company.

The president is accountable to the Board, and is delegated
with the responsibility for running the Company’s business and
implementing the resolutions of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the positions of Chairman
and President were held by Mr. Wang Zhen and Mr. Yang Xiaobin
respectively, both being the Executive Directors. The division of
their duties was set out clearly in the Articles of Association. Their
terms of reference are clean and there is no relationship in relation
to finance, business and kinship between them. The governance
structure of the Company established well and clear.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had three Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hu Wentai, Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph and
Mr. Yan Xiang, and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Xu Bailing, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, Mr. George F.
Meng and Mr. Deng Tianlin.

Mr. Hu Wentai’s current term of appointment is from 29 May 2012
to 28 May 2015;

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph’s current term of appointment is from
28 October 2013 to 27 October 2016;
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Mr. Yan Xiang’s current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Xu Bailing’s current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon’s current term of appointment is from 28
October 2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. George F. Meng’s current term of appointment is from 28
October 2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Deng Tianlin’s current term of appointment is from 3
November 2014 to 2 November 2017.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary (Mr. Xing Zhoujin). The company secretary
shall report to the Chairman on the corporate governance of the
Board and shall be responsible for ensuring the compliance with
relevant Board procedures and facilitating the communication
among directors, shareholders and the management. As at 31
December 2014, the company secretary received over 15 hours of
professional training for skill and knowledge updates.

According to the Recommended Best Practices A.1.9 of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices that an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. The Company has arranged the liability insurance for
the Directors, the supervisors ("Supervisors") and other senior
management.

The internal control system of the Group comprised the
Supervisory Committee, the Board and its audit committee
and the internal audit department, which aims at ensuring
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, security of asset and
reliability of operation information and financial reports. It manages
risks in five major aspects, namely internal environment, risk
evaluation, control activities, information and communication, and
internal supervision.
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The Company has optimized its internal control system, and
formulated and implemented the following rules in accordance

with the Company Law, Securities Law and Guidelines on Internal &

Control of Listing Companies:

RATIERBEATE - BEEN LA R 5
BlE R AEROER - 2T AT MR 5

N/

HIEIL B T AT HE X

Type of System No. Subject matters Name of Rules

HIERA Fi BIERR HIEEE

Arti 1 The latest Articles of Association as amended during the “Articles of Association of HNA Infrastructure Company

rticles of ; ) I

Association B special general meeting held on 5 Janiuary 2015 \ Llrjuted

fguiniisany BT -RF-ARBRRFIIKREETZ CEMERKRHBERRBRAERE)

nEERR S

BHTARIER
2 To standardize rules of procedures for general meetings “Rule of Procedures for General Meetings”
REBRRASHFRT (RRAGHFMAD
3 To standardize rules of procedures for board meetings “Rules of Procedures for Board Meetings”
RBEEEAFIERF (BEFAFRUD
4 To standardize rules of procedures for the supervisers’ “Rules of Procedures for Supervisors’ Meetings”
meetings
RBEFEERFEF (EEEgzFHRA)
5 To clearly state the terms of reference of the "Term of Reference of the Nomination Committee of
Operations of Three nomination committee of the Board the Board”
Committees NP ERERELEEIFRERAR (E=EREZESITIERE)
=¥ 6 To clearly state the terms of reference of the strategic “Term of Reference of the Strategy Committee of the Board”
committee of the Board
AP ERRUREE e TFHERAR (EEEBMESSTIERE)
7 To clearly state the terms of reference of the audit “Term of Reference of the Audit Committee of the Board”
committee of the Board
R VEESERLZE S TERERER (EEeERZETIERE)
8 To clearly state the terms of reference of the “Term of Reference of the Remuneration Committee of
remuneration committee of the Board the Board”
HRFIVEFESTNEE S TIFHERERE (EEEFNES S TIERE)

Governance of Directors, 9 To regulate securities transactions by the directors, “Model Code for the Securities Transactions by Directors,
Supervisors and supervisors and senior management by formulating Supervisors and Senior Management of HNA Infrastructure
Senior Management code of practice Company Limited”

B EEhefER REBEE BEERaREBAEBEFRHTH CEMERRNHBERADNESE BEEREREEABEFRS
ABERE il E 17 AP AR FAESFA)

10 To ensure transparency and duly disclosure of “Rules of Securities Information Gathering and Disclosure of
information HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”

Information Disclosure BREBAMLRBETEERERE CBMERBHARATEHE LRERBEERE)

ol 11 To strengthen control of the trading of gecuqhes of the Internal Control on Connectedl Transaction of HNA

e Company and ensure due and effective disclosure Infrastructure Company Limited”
of information
IMEEARELHRFELER - BREBEERRFEN CEMmER R B R BRI 5 NI E )
12 Promulgated by the CSRC, to regulate conducts of the “Working Guidelines for the Relationship Between Listed

| , . . investors and facilitate better relationship between Companies and Investors”

nvestors’ relationship . . f

185 2 8 (R ||sii companies and |nvgstors . N o .

RPEBEE TS  RABEREETIETR  HB LD (EMARIEREREBEIERES)D
NEEREEBERER
13 To regulate signing and filing of contracts “Management of Contract of Significance”
REERESERFEER (BERAERERHIE)

Operational 14 To regulate purchase, usage, retirement and update of “Management of Fixed Assets”
Management fixed assets

rEER REARIETEERE R  MENEFER CEEEEEIERGE)

15 To regulate procurement of the Company “Management of Bids and Tenders”
REARREER CRIZBZRERIE)

Fi . 16 To regulate financial reporting of the Company and “Measures on Financial Auditing and Fund Management”

inancial Management >

REE stnct_ly contirol‘f:\asr; ﬂol.'l’ . ) o .

RE AR BRERIE - BIZESRBER CHABREIERESERGE)

Management of Safety 17 To optimize internal control on the safety operation of “Management of Air Security and Safety Operation of Airport
Operation Meilan airport and Work Safety Manual”

ZEEE TEEBESTENIZER (S EHR2EBRRE2HETFM)

18 To regulate corporate governance, strengthen internal “Quality Enhancement Plan of HNA Infrastructure Company
control and enhance profitability Limited”
IREARDRIR - ISR N EBIEHIERR - IRABFES CEMEBRRMHBER R BESRAE)

Others 19 To regulate conducts of staff and create ideal image as “Code of Conduct of the Staff of Meilan Airport”

i a listed company

- REBETITR BELITRABRER CERMMIS 8 T1TR2%ER])

20 To enhance the awareness of staff of confidentiality “Registration of Insiders”

and optimize registration of insiders
MRETREER  TEANBESABABELER

(ABEBABABLEENE)
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In addition, the Board of the Company has established the audit
committee, which oversees the income, expenses and economic
activities of the Company with the assistance of the auditors. The
audit committee has further strengthened risk management and
ensured effective implementation of internal control system for the
standard operation and healthy development of the Company.

The Board of the Company has carried out self-assessment of
internal control of 2014 based on effectiveness and applicability,
and no material deficiencies have been identified in the design
or execution of the internal control system. The Company will
continue to improve and establish a sound and effective internal
control system.

A remuneration committee has been set up by the Company,
which is a sub-committee under the Board.

Formation of remuneration committee: Mr. Deng Tianlin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members consisted of Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an Independent
Non-executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Peihua, an Executive
Director.

As of 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee of the
Company had held one meeting on 24 March 2014 to determine
the remuneration of directors for 2013 and the proposed
remuneration package of directors for 2014.

Directors’ remuneration policy for 2014: allowance for
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors are RMB70,000, RMB50,000 and
RMB100,000 per person respectively.

The Company held the Annual General Meeting on 20 May
2014, where the Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration
Packages for the Directors and Supervisors of the Company in
2014 was considered and approved. Directors and Supervisors
recommended by the parent company of the Company (“Parent
Company”), proposed that Directors and Supervisors nominated
by connected parties would not enjoy allowance for holding the
position. But they were also entitled to receive respective salaries
according to their respective positions taken in the Company.
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The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance of the meeting held by the remuneration
committee during the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

FHZEE@NFRART—REH UTAFMEES
BE-ZT-NMF+-_A=+—HALFERTNFNEZ

Attendance of meeting
held by the remuneration
committee for the year
ended 31 December 2014
BE_ZT—F
TZA=+—HLFE

Member of the remuneration committee FWNZEERE BOTNFHNZESSEHER
Deng Tianlin B RAR 100%
Fung Ching, Simon i AE 100%
Zhang Peihua ENES 100%
A nomination committee has been set up by the Company, which AAFHRTI TIELEES 124 EEeAETES &
is a sub-committee under the Board. R o

Formation of nomination committee: Mr. Xu Bailing, an EZE2€AK  BYFRTESHRMPBRLEETE

Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members consisted of Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-
executive Director, and Mr. Wang Zhen, an Executive Director.

As of 31 December 2014, the Company held the fourth meeting of
the fifth congress of the Nomination Committee on 24 March 2014
to propose appointment of Mr. Zhang Peihua as an Executive
Director of the Company, the fifth meeting of the fifth congress
of the Nomination Committee on 28 April 2014 to propose
appointment of Mr. Wang Zhen as chairman of the Company; the
sixth meeting of the fifth congress on 28 August 2014 to propose
appointment of Mr. Deng Tianlin as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company; the seventh meeting of the fifth congress
of the Nomination Committee on 31 December 2014 to propose
appointment of Mr. Zhang Hao as an Executive Director of the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company will identify
candidates through different channels under the requirements
made by the Company to the Directors. Subject to the approval of
the Nomination Committee, the candidates will be recommended
to the Board for its verification and submit to the General Meeting
for approval after passed the examination of the Board.

The nomination was made in accordance with the nomination
policy of the Company and against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service).
It had also taken into account their respective contributions to the
Board and their firm commitment to their roles.

The nomination committee held four meetings during the year.

ARAREEAERBALAUESRENE L &
BATREENEAS - §RESREBLBAE |
HEMEFEREXSARLEEFEFRBBHRR
RARAREAEHE ©

EEZMRADBREBEARRRBBERET - UWEBGM
AOBEREEFEREZ TN EE (BREATRME
Al FlR XEEBEER Bk BELR K
B MBERBFEH)  TERIREHEFTSINER
KB EITRERRIL -

REZEENFARTHAEGHE  UTRIEREZES

The attendance of the meetings held by the nomination committee EHZE_-Z—MNE+_-A=Z+—BHILFERTHWRLE
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: Bgesatt

Attendance of meetings

held by the nomination

committee for

the year ended

31 December 2014

BE-_ZET—NF

TZA=+—HLEE

Member of the nomination committee REEEERE BITHNREBZESTRHEER

Xu Bailing Rk 100%

Deng Tianlin B RAR 100%

Wang Zhen T B 100%

The remuneration of auditors for the year ended 31 December #HE_—_Z—HMFE+_HA=+—BIFFE ' ZHEIHNEN

2014 was BRMB3,260,000. The breakdown is set out as follows:

4 A AREES,260,0007T - BAMEZIOT

Amount (RMB)

SE(ARE)
Services fee related to annual audit and B RAR FE R L EA B S®RR
interim review of financial statements EHMREE 1,810,000
Reporting accountant service for certain capital REATERS  {ERBRRSEEN
market transactions KRS & 1,450,000
TOTAL 4% 3,260,000
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The Company set up an Audit Committee under the Board. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee is comprised
of three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu
Bailing, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon and Mr. George F. Meng with Mr.
Xu Bailing as the chairman.

As of 31 December 2014, the Company held two meetings of the
Audit Committee.

During the first meeting of the Audit Committee in 2014, the Audit
committee reviewed the 2013 annual report and auditors’ report,
and also considered the re-appointment of auditor and reviewed
the working report of the Audit Committee for the year of 2013.

During the second meeting in 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed
the 2014 interim report, and interim report of auditors of 2014 and
interim working report of Audit Committee for 2014.

The Audit Committee suggested the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP as auditors of the
Company in 2015.

EZgTRERZBE BHE_Z—WHF+-H
=t+—HLEFE- %’f?é,\aﬂﬂfﬂﬁ CBAEM & &
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The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The EBEZZE@RNERBITMALE U TAEXZTES

attendance of the meetings held by the audit committee duringthe EHE-—Z—NE+_-_A=+—HIFERTHNEZE
year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: Seeg

Attendance of meetings

held by the audit

committee for

the year ended

31 December 2014

BE-ZT—NF

+=A=t+—ALEFE

Member of the audit committee EREZEERE BITHNERZESEREESR

Xu Bailing AR 100%

Fung Ching, Simon sk 100%

George F. Meng HERE 100%
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During 2014, none of the senior management held any
shareholding interests in the Company.

During 2014, two rounds of amendments of the Articles of
Association have been made.

The purpose of the first amendment is to further clarify the relevant
terms of reference of the general meeting and further standardize
the language in the Articles of Association to make its expression
more precise and standard so that ambiguity could be avoided.
The amendment has been passed by the Company on the
extraordinary general meeting on 14 February 2014. For details of
the updated Articles of Association, please see the announcement
dated 14 February 2014 on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Details of the amendments are as follows:
The original Articles 57(13) is:

(13) To examine and approve matters in respect of the following
guarantees:

1. Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees has reached or exceeded thirty percent (30%) of
the company’s latest audited total assets;

2. Any guarantees provided involving an amount of more than
ten percent (10%) of the company’s latest audited net assets
in a single deal;

3.  Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees provided by the company and its subsidiaries
has reached or exceeded fifty percent (560%) of the
company’s latest audited net assets;

4. Any guarantees provided to a guaranteed party with an asset
liability ratio of more than seventy percent (70%); and

5. Any guarantees provided to the company’s shareholders or
de facto controllers.
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Amended as:

(13) To examine and approve the following external guarantees
of the company (referring to guarantees provided to individual or
legal entity other than the company and its subsidiaries):

1. Any guarantees provided after the total amount of external
guarantees of the company has reached or exceeded thirty
percent (30%) of the company’s latest audited total assets;

2. Any external guarantees provided involving an amount of
more than ten percent (10%) of the company’s latest audited
net assets in a single deal;

3.  Any guarantee provided after the total amount of external
guarantees of the company and its subsidiaries has reached
or exceeded fifty percent (560%) of the company’s latest
audited net assets;

4. Any external guarantees provided to a guaranteed party with
an asset liability ratio of more than seventy percent (70%);
and

5. Any guarantees provided to the shareholders, de facto
controllers and their related parties.
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The second amendment is made as the Company’s name has
been changed as “HNA Infrastructure Company Limited” on
2 March 2015. The Articles of Association shall be amended
accordingly. This amendment has been approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 5 January
2015. For details of the updated Articles of Association, please
see the announcement dated 2 March 2015 on the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Details of the amendments are as follows:
The original Articles 2 is:

Company’s registered name in Chinese: /&5 < BB # IS DA
/NG

Company’s name in English: Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited

Amended as:

Company’s registered name in Chinese: /&fn & M B R A7)
Company’s name in English: HNA Infrastructure Company Limited

The Company has placed emphasis on the communication with
shareholders. Shareholders can be updated with the operations of
the Company and market trends through its website and email and
phone enquiries. The information of the Company is delivered to
the shareholders by the following methods:

1. publishing annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements and other information disclosure on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company;

2. organizing shareholders’ general meeting, which is
one of the effective channels to communicate with the
shareholders;
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3. the Company continues to strengthen communication with
shareholders by means including:

(1) arranging designated staff to meet with shareholders
and answer their enquiries;

(2) arranging on-site visit to the Company for shareholders
to understand the operation and the latest development
of the Company in a timely manner;

(8) providing relevant financial and operation data on the
Company’s website timely.

Shareholders or investors may make enquiries and offer suggestions
through the following channels:

Telephone no:  0898-65762132

Address: Office of the Board of Directors, Office Building
of Meilan International Airport, Meilan District,
Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC

Postal code: 571126

To ensure better protection of shareholders’ interests, the Articles
of Association set out the requirements for shareholders to
request an extraordinary general meeting to be convened: When
two or more shareholders holding in aggregate more than ten
percent (10%) (including the ten percent (10%)) of the Company’s
shares entitling their holders to vote in the proposed general
meeting request, by signing one or more copies of a written
request in the same form and submit to the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting with an agenda of the meeting. An
extraordinary general meeting is required to be held as soon as
practicable upon receipt by the Board of such written request.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board did
not receive any request from shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.
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1. Details of the classes of the Company’s shareholders and
particulars on shareholding in aggregate are set out in the
Report of the Directors in the 2014 annual report;

2. As at 31 December 2014, 226,913,000 H shares of the
Company were held by the public;

3. The Company has maintained active communications with
a professional financial public relations firm and established
daily communication channel between the Company and
its investors and fund managers and securities analyst and
media. The Company will publish the key operation data
on a weekly and monthly basis and report the Company’s
latest development in relevant media and at the Company’s
website by means of press releases and announcements in a
timely manner.

By the order of the Board
Wang Zhen
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
24 April 2015
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

S5 BRENEAEEERDT

Mr. Wang Zhen, aged 52, master degree candidate, and a
member of the Communist Party of China. He is the Chairman
of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited. From 1983 to 1992, he
worked for Xinjiang Airlines Aircraft Repair Plant (352 i 2= 2 &
TR A1) consecutively as the mechanic staff, the machinist,
the maintenance leader, and the deputy workshop director. From
1993 to 1999, he worked for Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (& iz
%17 B BR 2 F]) consecutively as the mechanic staff and the vice
captain of the engineering department, the manager, the assistant
to the department general manager and the branch department
manager of the maintenance department. From October 1999
to January 2000, he was the vice general manager of the human
resources department at Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. From January
2000 to May 2000, he was the chief of the production operation
center at Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. From May 2000 to December
2002, he was consecutively the vice executive president and
the assistant of the executive president at Hainan Airlines Co.,
Ltd. From December 2002 to May 2003, he was the president
of Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (= 5z Bl Bl B (&
#3 8 IR /A 7). From March 2003 to November 2006, he was
consecutively the chief executive officer and the general manager
of the Company. From November 2006 to January 2007, he was
the vice executive president of HNA Airport Group Limited (&1
IS E=®E AR A 7). From January 2007 to September 2008, he
was the vice executive president of HNA Airport Group Holdings
Limited (&M 512 R E B B R A R]). From September 2008 to
July 2012, he worked for Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co.,
Ltd. consecutively as the president, the deputy commander of the
construction management department, the executive chairman
of the board and the chairman of the board. From July 2012 to
May 2013, he worked as the deputy leader of the Meilan Airport
aviation industrial park project promotion group of the airport
management division at HNA Industrial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
(S E R (EE)ARAQE]). From May 2013 to May 2014, he
was the vice chairman of the Company. He served as chairman of
the Company since May 2014.
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Mr. Yang Xiaobin, aged 44, obtained his bachelor degree in
law from Jiangsu University (L& AZ2) in 2009. Mr. Yang has
extensive experience in civil aviation. He worked for Qingan
Aerospace Equipment Company (EZFMkE A A, a state-
owned company, from October 1992 to February 1994, and was
the secretary of the deputy chief executive and control room safety
officer of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited (/&
A BB #5558 R & T2 7R]) from December 2000 to October
2002, the control room safety officer of the Company from June
2003 to September 2004, and safety supervisor of the operation
safety office of the Company from September 2004 to May 2007,
the control room deputy general manager of the Company from
July 2007 to December 2008, the general manager (operation)
of HNA Airport Group Company Limited from December 2008
to August 2009, the chairman of Yichang Three Gorges Airport
Co., Ltd (E& =I5 5B E T2 7). From September 2009 to
September 2011, the deputy general manager of the Company
from September 2011 to March 2013 and the President of the
Company from 19 March 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Peihua, aged 43, is a certified public accountant of the
PRC and has a master degree in accounting. Mr. Zhang was the
accountant of the Hainan branch of China Construction Bank (¥
B2 R IBIT/EED1T) from July 1994 to January 1995, the chief
accountant of Hainan International Finance Company Limited
(FE BB AR A F)) from February 1995 to June 2000, the
deputy manager of the budget control office and supervisor of the
financial control office of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. from September
2000 to August 2003, the assistant to chief accountant, chief
financial officer and chief information officer of Xi’an Minsheng
Group Co., Ltd. (AL RAELERND B A A]) from August 2003 to
September 2005, the deputy general manager of financial control
department of Chang’an Airlines Co., Ltd. (RZMEBREER
7)) from August 2005 to March 2006, the general manager of the
financial control department of HNA Hotel Holdings Ltd. (&
JERE IR EE AR A F]) from March 2006 to November 2007, the
chief financial officer and general manager of the financial control
department of Yangtze River Real Estate Group Company Limited
B IHESBARAT]) from February 2006 to September
2007, the general manager of the financial control department of
Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited (K #T%E
YrmiERt (£8) BBRAF) from August 2007 to February 2009,
the chief financial officer and general manager of the financial
control department of Grand China Shipping (YanTai) Co., Ltd.
(R (BE4) AR 2AT) from February 2009 to December
2009, the chief financial officer of Hainan Zhuxin Investment Co.,
Ltd. (B EERERHD AR A A)) from December 2009 to August
2010, the chief financial officer of HNA Realty Group Company
Limited (Bt EZER (£E) AR A7) from August 2010 to
December 2011 and the chief financial officer of HNA International
Tourism Island Development and Construction (Group) Company
Limited (BMBIRRESFEER (5E) AR AF]) from March
2011 to March 2012. He has been the chief financial officer of HNA
Airport Group Company Limited since February 2012, the chief
financial officer of the Company since 23 August 2012 and the
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the Company
concurrently since 19 March 2013.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

EX EELSNEEEGT (8)

Mr. Zhang Hao, aged 29, graduated from London School of
Economics and Political Science with a bachelor degree in
Business Mathematics and Statistics in June 2008. Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in the field of business management and
capital market. He has been serving as the president assistant of
Bohai Leasing Co., Ltd. (#/81H &5 AR A7, Shenzhen Stock
Exchange stock code: 000415) since June 2013, and the general
manager assistant in the securities department of HNA Group
Company Limited (Gfnf@E B R A 7)) since July 2013. He served
as the risk control commissioner and the fund manager assistant
of Haitong (Hong Kong) Assets Management Co., Ltd. (§3& (&
BIBETIEAMRAT) from October 2008 to September 20009,
and from September 2009 to December 2010, respectively. He
was the private equity investment vice president of Haitong (Hong
Kong) Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (@& (&F#) & MR BR A
&]) from December 2010 to April 2011. Mr. Zhang held various
positions in the securities department of HNA Group Company
Limited, including the capital operation manager, the fund project
senior business manager and the manager of overseas capital
operation management center, from April 2011 to December
2011, from December 2011 to April 2012, and from April 2012 to
June 2013, respectively. He was appointed as vice-president of
the Company since 31 December 2014 and was appointed as an
executive director of the Company since 16 February 2015.

Mr. Hu Wentai, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company in May 2012. He has
also served a member of the strategic committee of the Board
of the Company. Mr. Hu Wentai working as the general manager
of Hainan Henghe Property Management Company Limited (/&
HERYEETIEAR AR, the executive vice president of Haikou
Meilan International Airport Company Limited. Since Mr. Hu joined
the Company in 2002, he has held a number of senior positions
in the Company, including the chief operating officer and vice
president of the Company. In February 2006, he was also the
chairman of Haikou New City Area Construction Development
Company Limited (8 0¥ [@ 22 F AR A R]) and the deputy
general manager of Beijing HNA Realty Group Company Limited
(b FEME £ B AR A F). From July 2007 to August 2008,
he was the vice president of the Company. Since August 2008,
he was the vice chairman of the Company. Mr. Hu Wentai has
extensive experience in the area of airport management and
project construction.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)
B EENSREEEGDN (B)

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph, aged 54, was re-appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company in October 2013. Mr. Chan
acquired his master’s degree from the University of Strathclyde
in the major of International Marketing and a diploma from Peking
University in China Investment and Trade Study. He holds licenses
of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance), and Type 9 (asset management) under Chapter 571 of
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance respectively. Mr.
Chan has nearly 25 years management experience in banking,
investment banking and asset investment. Mr. Chan was the
deputy general manager of Credit Agricole Bank from 1986 to
1994, where he was also in charge of China business. From
1992 to 1994, he was also the co-head of Credit Agricole Asset
Management South East Asia Limited. From 1994 to now, Mr.
Chan has been a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial
Group. He is also an executive director of Oriental Patron Asia Ltd.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive Director of Kaisun Energy
Group Limited (Stock Code of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:
08203.HK) in September 2008 and is the Chairman of that group.
Mr. Chan was appointed as a non-executive director of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited on 19 February 2013.

Mr. Yan Xiang, aged 51, was re-appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in October 2013. Mr. Yan graduated
from Peking University, where he received a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics and a master’s degree in Economics. From
January 1988 to August 1991, he had been a teaching assistant
and lecturer in Economics at Peking University. After August
1991, he was a research fellow with the Research Center of the
People’s Government of Hainan Province, the general manager
of Hainan Securities Exchange Center and the president of
Hainan Securities Company Limited. He had been a director of
Zhongfu Industrial Co., Ltd. and an independent director of China
United Travel Company Limited. Mr. Yan is the Chairman of the
China Region of the Oriental Patron Financial Group and the
President of the Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited.
Mr. Yan had been the executor director of Hainan Development
Promotion Association, committee member of Experts Committee
in Research of National Debts and Futures and committee
member of Credit Assessment Experts Committee of China Credit
Securities Assessment Limited.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

EX EELSNEEEGT (8)

Mr. Xu Bailing, aged 81, was re-appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 2013. He
has also served as the chairman of the audit committee and the
nomination committee and a member of the strategic committee
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Xu was the representative of
the Fourth and Fifth National People’s Congress and a member of
the Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr.
Xu had worked for the Civil Aviation Beijing Administrative Bureau
since 1954, holding various positions such as pilot, supervisor and
captain and was appointed Deputy Head and Head of Department
in January 1977 and June 1979 respectively. Mr. Xu was then
appointed as the vice director of CAAC in December 1986 and
then as the general manager of Air China in March 1988. He was
appointed as a consultant of CAAC in August 1993.

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, aged 46, was re-appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company in
October 2013. He has also served as the chairman of the
strategic committee and a member of the audit committee
and remuneration committee. Mr. Fung graduated from the
Queensland University of Technology in Australia with a bachelor’s
degree, majoring in accountancy. Mr. Fung is a Hong Kong
resident. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fung worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers
between 1994 and 2004, and he served as the chief financial
officer and secretary to the board of directors of Baoye Group
Company Limited (B £ B % BRAF]) (Stock Code of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 02355.HK) between 2004 and 2010.
Mr. Fung joined Greentown China Holdings Limited (&% &
R EBR A a)) (Stock Code of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:
03900.HK) in August 2010 and served as the chief financial officer
and company secretary. And Mr. Fung is also a non-executive
director of Baoye Group Company Limited currently. Mr. Fung has
over 10 years of experience in managing finance and accounting
functions, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and investor
relations for a PRC company listed in Hong Kong, and has 10
years of experience in auditing, accounting and business advisory
with a “Big-4" international accounting firm.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)
B EENSREEEGDN (B)

Mr. George F. Meng, aged 71, was re-appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in October
2013. He has also served as a member of the audit committee
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Meng graduated from Civil
Aviation University of China (f R ZF5) in 1966, where he
studied radio communication and English language. In 1972,
he entered into Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K&4MHE
&) for further study of English language. From 1984 to 1991, he
once studied FAA Aircraft Dispatcher Training Course sponsored
by Aviation Training Services, Long Island, New York, Advanced
Training in Aviation Course with Ansett Airlines, and MBA course
at Oklahoma City University. During the years of 1966 to 1988,
Mr. Meng served various positions including Radio Station Master
of Communication Department of CAAC Chengdu Administration,
Dean of the Technical English Department of Civil Aviation
University of China, and Deputy Director of CAAC Training Center.
After 1991, he was a director and the general manager of China
Resource Ltd., USA. From 2000 to now, Mr. Meng is the president
of Soaring Eagle Industrial LLC., USA. Since September 2010, he
has been the principal of Northern New Jersey Huaxia Chinese
School (non- profit organization). He has served as the general
manager (United States) and certified senior translator of Hua Ling
Consultant Inc. in Toronto, Canada since January 2012.

Mr. Deng Tianlin, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2014,
He also acts as chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the nomination committee and strategic committee
of the Company. Mr. Deng is a certified public accountant, a
senior accountant and a guest professor of Hainan University
(FFKE). Mr. Deng has extensive experience in the field of
finance and accounting. He previously served, among others,
as the section chief in the personnel division of Hubei Provincial
Department of Finance (1t & 81 B EE), a deputy director of Fang
County Tax Bureau in Hubei Province (#it& B %% /E), the
chief of the loan section of the World Bank Group and a deputy
director of the Department of Agricultural Tax (ZZFi&). Mr.
Deng was appointed by the Organization Department of the CPC
Central Committee (7 R 484536) to Hainan Provincial Department
of Finance (BRI 4 B/ EEE) as a director of the accounting
department and the secretary general of Hainan Provincial Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (B4 A EFrEMHE) in 1990.
Mr. Deng retired in 2009 and has been an independent director
of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: Hainan Airlines: 600221;
Hainan Airline B Shares: 900945) since April 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)
EX EFEMAAEEESRN (B)

Mr. Dong Guiguo, aged 52, was re-appointed as a supervisor of
the Company on 29 May 2012 and has served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Committee. Mr. Dong graduated from Civil
Aviation University of China majoring in aircraft engine. He has
pursued further studies in China Europe International Business
School. He is an aviation engineer and accountant. Mr. Dong
has worked at civil aviation maintenance base in Beijing, Beijing
Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd., HNA Group Purchase
Management Department, HNA Group Airport Management
Department and HNA Airport Group Company Limited. Since
October 2000, he has respectively served as deputy manager of
the aviation material and equipment procurement center of the
procurement department of HNA Group, deputy general manager
of airport management department of HNA Group, general
manager of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited,
executive chairman’s assistant, general manager of the finance
department and general manager of the project management
department, vice chairman, vice president and chief financial
officer of HNA Airport Group Company Limited. Mr. Dong was
appointed as a Director of the Company from March 2006 to
October 2008 and become the Financial Officer of the Company in
December 2006. He was appointed as the Chief Financial Director
of the Company in April 2007. In December 2008, he resigned
from the Company. Currently, Mr. Dong is the chairman of Hainan
Island Construction Co., Ltd. (88 SRR MDA R A 7). He has
extensive experience in civil aviation and finance.

Mr. Zhang Shusheng, aged 78, is a senior reporter. He was re-
elected as an Independent Supervisor of the Company in October
2013. He is a graduate of the Department of Chinese, Lan Zhou
University (/N X&) majoring in Han Literature. He once worked
as newspaper editor and reporter for Gansu Daily and as chief
reporter stationed at Gansu for People’s Daily. In June 1994,
he was re-designated to China Civil Aviation News working as
the chief editor and Party branch secretary and was responsible
for the management of China Civil Aviation News. He has been
the vice chairman of Gansu Province Journalist Association,
the president of the Association for Resident Correspondent in
Gansu Province, the managing director of China Press Cultural
Advancement Association, the director of China Civil Aviation
Association and a deputy chairman of the Association of China
Industrial Newspapers. He has been working as a consultant of
China Civil Aviation News since March 1999.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

EF EFRLSREEEGSN (8)

Mr. Han Aimin, aged 44, graduated from Beijing Business
College (At ZiEEFT) in 1995. He was re-appointed as the staff
representative supervisor of the Company on 28 August 2014.
He joined the Company in November 2008. From July 1995 to
June 2004, Mr. Han worked at the freight department of Hainan
Airlines Co., Ltd. He served as the vice general manager of
Haikou freight center of the marketing department of Hainan
Airlines Co., Ltd. from June 2004 to March 2007. He was the
general manager of the freight company under the Company from
November 2008 to December 2009, and the general manager of
Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. from January
2009 to September 2010. He has been the general manager of
the business development department of the Company since
September 2010.

Mr. Gao Jian, aged 34, was appointed as the vice standing
executive of the Company on 30 March 2015. He was graduated
from the Civil Aviation University of China, major in electronic
information. He has extensive experience in human resources
and corporate governance. From October 2003 to November
2005, Mr. Gao was a secretary of HNA Group Company Limited;
from November 2005 to August 2007, he was an assistant to the
secretary of the Board of HNA Group Company Limited. From
August 2007 to June 2008, he was head of secretary department
of HNA Group Company Limited; from June 2008 to December
2008, was an officer of HNA Group Company Limited. He was
a vice officer of HNA Group Company Limited from December
2008 to June 2010; head of human resources department of
Jinhai Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. (£/8E T3 B R A7) from June
2010 to September 2014; and was vice president of Jinhai Heavy
Industry Co., Ltd. from October 2011 to March 2015.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

EX EELSNEEEGT (8)

Mr. Wen Jiang, aged 40, was appointed as vice president of
the Company on 30 March 2015. Graduated from the Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law (4 F B &£ A K E2), major in
investment and economic management as well as business law,
he has gained extensive experience in respect of capital operation,
securities business and securities margin trading. From August
2001 to January 2008, he was an assistant to general manager of
the securities business department and a manager of investment
cooperation team of the securities business department of HNA
Group Company Limited (K#FTE®RIER (£E) BR A A).
From January 2008 to February 2011, he was an assistant to
president of Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company
Limited; was a manager of strategic planning department of Grand
China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from January
2008 to March 2010. He was also a general manager of project
development and management department of Grand China
Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from March 2010 to
October 2011; vice financial officer and assistant to president of
Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from
February 2011 to August 2011, chief financial officer and assistant
to president of Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company
Limited from August 2011 to January 2012, vice president of
Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from
January 2012 to June 2012 and assistant to president of HNA
Logistics Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wu Jian, aged 38, was appointed as deputy general manager
of the Company on 19 March 2013. Mr. Wu graduated from the
computer science department of Civil Aviation University of China
and is a assistant engineer. He was the manager of the service
support department, manager of the operation department,
general manager of the IT department and the assistant to the
executive officer of Hainan Airlines Aviation Information System
Co., Ltd. (BE/EMMEE B RHBR A7), the general manager
of the operation department of HNA Airport Group Company
Limited, deputy general manager of the airport operation
department of HNA Infrastructure Industry Group Limited, the
manager of the IT office of airport management department
of HNA Industrial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. He has extensive
experience in the implementation of airport IT system and
intelligent system.

78 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

XIRE 405 R-_Z—RAF-A=ZTHEZT
BARNRBBE - XAEEERTEPECBUEASRK
BRBEHELENCELEE - TENEE  BHFE
B RERFEIEEBEELR R_TT—FN
AEZZZNF—AHMH  ABECEMERERAD
RIBAEGHAKIENE  BHEEGRTREAERL
B RZEENF—AE_T——F - AHBE - =B
EERFEDRER(EE)BRARBEE K=
TENFE—AE_T-ZTFEZ ARBETATEDR
TR (EE)BRARBERE S ELE AT —F
FZRAEZT—F+AFRBEARTEDTRER (S
E)BERAGIEEMEEERIBLE RS —F
—RAEZT——FN\AHME - EERFEDRIER(E
E)ERAFMBRAIBERAHENE  RZFE—FN
REZZT—Z—ZF—AHHA  EERKHEDRZER(E
E)BRAFMGBEREHENE  R2FT——F—H
ET-ZFXNAHME - EERFEDRER(SE)
BERAFBEYE  R-ZT——FXAE-_T—HE=
REASMYREEERARBHENIE -

REBEE 385 RZE—=F=-A+hLBEZHX
BARBRBE  c RELEXERTERMASEH#
FEREE  BIIETIRABE - ZRETmEEMMERE
ERXFARAFETREDBRSE 5P ORI IFL
B RIFEE IR - ITIRBFHEIBLRE - BHY
B BMRSEEARARESTEISBLE M
EMEXSEERAFDMSEENANALE  BME
EER(EE)ARARKSEBEEXBEEER
DS - TS E B RMERBEERMISELER
THBEEEEE -



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)
B EENSREEEGDN (B)

Mr. Xing Zhoujin, aged 49, was re-appointed as Company
Secretary in May 2013. Mr. Xing graduated from the Anhui Normal
University (Z# A& X E) majoring in financial management. He
also has a bachelor degree in laws and a title of economist. Mr.
Xing has been the personnel and office director of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport and Haikou Meilan International Airport. He
is engaged in the management and operation of the Company
since 2002 and fully participated in the listing of H shares of the
Company and worked as a board secretary of the Parent company
of the Company, Haikou Meilan International Airport Company
Limited. He has also been responsible for handling the results
disclosure and daily operation of the Board of the Company after
its listing.
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DUTY-FREE
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Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop is the first airport offshore duty-free shop
in China. It offers over ten thousand international renowned brand products and
immediate transaction services for offshore customers to enjoy one-stop shopping

service.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Board has approved to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Group is engaged in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses. Its aeronautical business consists of the provision
of terminal facilities, ground handling services and passenger
services. Its non-aeronautical business includes commercial and
retail spaces leasing at the Haikou Meilan International Airport,
airport-related business franchising, advertising space leasing,
car parking business, cargo handling services and sales of
consumable goods.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company conducted
its business within one business segment, i.e. the operation of an
airport and provision of related services in the PRC. The Company
also operated within one geographical segment and its revenues
are primarily generated from its assets located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical segment data is presented.

The Group’s operating results for the year ended 31 December
2014 was prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, Company Ordinance of Hong Kong and
relevant applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchanges, and the financial positions of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2014 are set out in page 105 to
page 228 of this annual report.

The Board has passed the resolution to recommend the
payment of a final dividend on or before Tuesday, 14 July 2015
of RMB0.091 per share (tax inclusive) to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the Company’s Register of
Members on Wednesday, 27 May 2015 (“2014 Final Dividend”).
2014 Final Dividend shall be subject to approval by shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held by the
Company on Monday, 18 May 2015.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, which took effect on 1 January 2008, and
its implementation rules and the relevant interpretation by tax
authorities in the PRC, when a company makes distribution to
non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear on
the H-share register of the company, such company is required
to withhold and pay on behalf of such shareholders a corporate
income tax at a rate of 10% in general (except as required
otherwise by the laws, regulations and tax treaties regarding tax
revenue). Any shares registered in the name of a non-individual
shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominee
or trustee, or other organisation and group, are deemed as shares
held by non-resident enterprise shareholders. As such, the entitled
dividends of such shareholders are subject to the corporate
income tax.

The Company will strictly comply with the laws and/or
requirements of relevant government departments, and will
withhold and pay the corporate income tax on behalf of its
non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear
on the H-share register of the Company on the record date.
The Company will take no responsibility and will not deal with
any request in relation to any delay or error in ascertaining
the identities of shareholders, nor will the Company handle
any disputes arising from the arrangement of withholding tax.
However, the Company may provide assistance within its
capability.

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from
Saturday, 18 April 2015 to Monday, 18 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to be qualified for attending and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company, all share transfer instruments,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and forms of
transfer, shall be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and
transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 17 April 2015.
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The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Friday,
22 May 2015 to Wednesday, 27 May 2015, both days inclusive,
during which time no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to be qualified for the 2014 Final Dividend, all share transfer
instruments, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
forms of transfer, shall be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 21 May 2015. The Company will pay
the final dividend on or before 14 July 2015 upon approval at the
annual general meeting.

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company are
set out in Note 4(21) to the financial statements.

Details of the property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2014 and the change in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in Note 4(8) and Note 14(5) to the financial statements.

Details of taxation of the Group and the Company (including all tax
preferences) for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
Note 4(16) and Note 4(36) to the financial statements.

Change in reserves of the Group and the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 is set out in Note 4(26-28) to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
ERgWmE (B)

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of capital reserve and
statutory reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB668,585,780 and approximately RMB246,394,231,
respectively, which were determined in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC and China’s accounting standards and
regulations. In addition, pursuant to the Articles of Association, the
Company’s retained profits of approximately RMB1,485,643,929
may be distributed as dividends.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are
set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

The largest customer and the top five largest customers of the
Group represented 15.87% and 46.88% of the total sales of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

The largest supplier and the top five largest suppliers of the Group
represented 7.47% and 23.71% of the total operating costs of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

The Company entered into relevant transactions with the Parent
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transaction” below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2014, none of the Directors, their contact person or, to the
knowledge of the Directors, any shareholders holding more than
5% of the share capital of the Company were interested in the top
five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2014, the total number of issued share capital

RIE-—NME+-_A=+—H ARFDHTZEK

of the Company was 473,213,000, of which: R A473,213,0000% » Hb -
Percentage of
Number of total issued
Shares shares
HE&1T
IR & # R A7 EL 151
Domestic shares A& % 246,300,000 52%
H Shares HA% 226,913,000 48%
Total 1B 473,213,000 100%

As at 31 December 2014, so far as known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the following
persons (other than a director, supervisor or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or,
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group or had any option in respect of such capital, or would be
required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of  Percentage of  Percentage of

ordinary domestic total issued

Name of shareholders Capacity Class of shares shares shares issued share capital

HERITR EE BT

ey LignEyill EEREA ERBEDL BREABDL

Haikou Meilan International Airport ~ Beneficial Owner Corporate 237,500,000 (L) 96.43% 50.19%

Company Limited (Note 1)

BOERBERREEREENA EnlA a3

(MEE1)

Percentage of

Number of  Percentage of total issued
Name of shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares H shares issued share capital
EE 8T HE BT
RREBE R AR ERERHE HREBE 2 BRAFDE
Zhang Gaobo (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Gaobo(Fif72) ZEHIR AR
Zhang Zhiping (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Zhiping (Fi§32) XS AT R
Oriental Patron Financial Services Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Group Limited (Note 2)
Oriental Patron Financial Services TEEHIN AR
Group Limited (Fif3E2)
Oriental Patron Financial Group Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Limited (Note 2)
Oriental Patron Financial Group TIRHIA RIS
Limited (Ff52)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Beneficial interest 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%

Limited (Note 2)

Oriental Patron Resources Investment

Limited (B 5£2)

-

Bk

2%
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Percentage of

Number of  Percentage of total issued
Name of shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares H shares issued share capital
HERT EE BT
BRR AR ERER EBRRHE HERB 2Lt BREABDL
UBS AG (Note 3) Beneficial owner 29,476,400 (L) 12.99% 6.30%
Security interest in shares and 8,000 (S) 0.00% 0.00%
interest
of controlled corporations
UBS AG (Fff5E3) EnEAA
R A RERER R
AR AR
UBS Group AG (Note 4) Security interest in shares 29,476,400 (L) 12.99% 6.30%
Interest of controlled corporations 8,000 (S) 0.00% 0.00%
UBS Group AG (Fff7£4) Rk FEREER
EEHIA AR
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Kf3¥5) REHI AR
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 5) Investment manager 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Kfz£5) BERIE
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Fund L.P (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity SPREID AR
Fund L.P (Ff3E5)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners 2 NI 3
Limited (Fi3E5)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Investment manager 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Management Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset BB
Management Limited (Kf3E5)
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%

PAG Holdings Limited (Pi#3¥5)
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Percentage of

Number of  Percentage of total issued
Name of shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares H shares issued share capital
EE BT HEBT
BRRE B ERER EBERHE HREBE 2 BRAFDE
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Pi{z£5) REHI R AR
Pacific Alliance Investment Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Management Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Investment TN AR
Management Limited (Pi{7£5)
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Walden Ventures Limited (FfzF5) ExnEBA
Greenwoods Asset Management Investment manager 13,844,000 (L) 6.10% 2.90%
Limited (Note 6)
Greenwoods Asset Management BEKE
Limited (PiizF6)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 7) Beneficial owner and custodian 13,607,488 (L) 5.99% 2.88%
corporation/approved lending
agent
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Fi{5£7) EREEARTEEE/
REEHREA
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner 15,934,508 (L) 7.02% 3.40%

(Note 8) Security interest in shares
BEERITROHARR EnBAA
(BtsEs) HRNFHAREER
Notes:
1. Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a company

established in the PRC and is the controlling shareholder of the

Company.

2. Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhiping held 49% and 51% interest in
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited, respectively. Oriental Patron
Financial Group Limited held 95% interest in Oriental Patron Financial
Services Group Limited. Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited
was wholly-owned by Oriental Patron Financial Services Group

Limited.

1. }iD%Fﬁlﬁ’m%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂp BIFE AR - B
DA FERRRRR

2. Zhang Gaobo 2 Zhang Zhiping% & #%5 4 Oriental Patron

s

Financial Group Limited 49% }251%#z% ° Oriental Patron
Financial Group Limited ¥ /& Oriental Patron Financial
Services Group Limited 95%# % © Oriental Patron Financial
Services Group Limited % % # 4 Oriental Patron Resources
Investment Limited °
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Among the 29,476,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was deemed
to hold 6,833,000 shares through its security interest in those shares
and held 8,000 shares as beneficial owner. In addition, UBS AG
was deemed to have equity interest in 22,635,400 shares (UBS
Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.A., UBS Global Asset Management
(Singapore) Ltd and UBS Global Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited were all wholly-owned by UBS AG, and were beneficially
holding 17,569,100 Shares, 2,164,300 Shares and 2,902,000 Shares
in the Company, respectively).

PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interest in Pacific Alliance Group
Limited, which in turn held 90% interest in Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 52.53%
interest in Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance
Equity Partners Limited held 100% interest in ARC Capital Partners
Limited. ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to be interested in
32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. ARC Capital
Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital Partners
Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. ARC Capital Holdings
Limited was holding 46.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited which
in turn held 32,788,500 H shares of the Company in its capacity as a
beneficial owner.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 100% interest
in Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited. Pacific Alliance
Group Asset Management Limited was deemed to be interested in
32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. Pacific
Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a corporation controlled by
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO. Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. held
36.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited which was in turn held
32,788,500 H shares of the Company.

UBS Group AG held 96.64% equity interest in UBS AG. For further
details, please refer to Note 3 above.

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited was wholly owned by
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited, which in turn was
held 81% by Jiang Jinzhi. Greenwoods Asset Management Limited
holds 13,844,000 in the capacity of investment manager.

Among the 13,607,488 shares in the Company, JPMorgan Chase &
Co. was deemed to hold 12,963,588 Shares as custodian corporation/
approved lending agent and held 643,900 Shares as beneficial owner.

Among the 15,934,508 shares in the Company, Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft was deemed to hold 15,931,000 Shares as person
having a security interest in shares and held 3,508 Shares as beneficial
owner.

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.
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As at 31 December 2014, no Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company have any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which would be required to be recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

The Parent Company is the controlling shareholder of the
Company as it holds 50.19% interest in the Company, and
accordingly is a related person of the Company. Details of
connected transactions between the Parent Company and the
Company are set below:
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Date of Agreement: 28 November 2013
Parties: The Company and Parent Company

Subject Matters: Pursuant to the Service Agreement, Parent
Company has agreed to provide or procure any third party
if necessary with the Company’s consent to provide to the
Company the following services: (a) security guard service;
(b) cleaning and environment maintenance; (c) sewage
and refuse processing; (d) power and energy supply and
equipment maintenance; (e) passengers and luggage
security inspection; and (f) other services required by the
Company.

Price and payment: charges as to the service in items (a)
to (c) above will be determined in accordance with the cost
incurred by Parent Company in providing such services plus
a 5% management fee; charges as to the service in item
(d) above will be determined in accordance with the cost
incurred by Parent Company in providing such service plus
a 25% management fee; charges as to the service in item ()
above shall be calculated in accordance with the standards
prescribed by CAAC and collected by the Company on
behalf of Parent Company from the relevant airlines; and
charges as to other services in item (f) above shall be
calculated by reference to the pricing standards prescribed
by the relevant PRC government authorities (if any), or, in
the absence of the same, the industry pricing standards or a
cost plus mark-up fee basis.

The service fee shall be paid either on a quarterly or an
annual basis and will be determined by the parties to the
Service Agreement depending on the type of services to be
provided by the Parent Company and in accordance with
normal business practices. According to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 November 2013, the annual cap
for transactions under the Service Agreement in 2014 was
RMB21,450,000. As at 31 December 2014, the actual
amount for 2014 was RMB20,900,706, which did not
exceed the annual cap for the year.

Term: A term of three years commencing from 1 January
2014 and ending on 31 December 2016.
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On 12 December 2012, the Company and Parent Company
entered into the Investment and Construction Agreement,
details of which are set out below.

Date: 12 December 2012

Parties: The Company and Parent Company

Subject Matters: Pursuant to the Investment and Construction
Agreement, Parent Company shall continue to complete the
construction of the terminal expansion project carried out
by Parent Company (the “‘Project’’) according to the original
schedule previous agreed by the Company and Parent
Company, unless the schedule of the Project is adjusted
due to the reasons beyond the control of the Company and
Parent Company.

The funds provided by the Company to Parent Company
under the Investment and Construction Agreement could
be used to pay for the consideration for the transfer of the
Project as agreed between the parties in the future. Parent
Company and Company agree that the actual construction
cost of the Project as audited by a competent independent
auditor upon completion of the construction of the Project
shall not exceed 110% of the estimated construction cost of
RMB876,500,000.

Consideration: under the Investment and Construction
Agreement, the Company will provide funds to Parent
Company according to the progress of the construction of
the Project based on the estimated construction cost of
the Project in the amount of RMB876,500,000 and the land
use right in the amount of RMB150,180,000, which in total
is RMB1,026,680,000. The amount of RMB643,361,200
already paid by the Company to Parent Company according
to the Acquisition Agreement before the termination of such
agreement shall be used to offset the total investment under
the Investment and Construction Agreement.
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On 2 July 2014, the Company and the Parent Company
entered into the Subscription Agreement, details are as

follows:

Date: 2 July 2014

Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Subscription Agreement,
the Parent Company will subscribe for 66,615,016
new Domestic Shares in the Company in cash at the

subscription price of RMB5.69 per Subscription Share. The

aggregate subscription price for the Proposed Subscription
is RMB379,039,440, which will be payable in cash upon
completion of the Proposed Subscription.

The Subscription Shares to be allotted and issued by the

Company to the Parent Company under the Subscription

Agreement represents:

(1)

approximately 27.05% and 14.08% of the existing
Domestic Shares in issue and the existing registered
share capital of the Company, respectively;

approximately 21.29% and 12.34% of the domestic
shares in issue as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the subscription shares, the registered share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the subscription shares; and

approximately 13.32% and 9.16% of the domestic
shares in issue as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the consideration shares and the subscription
shares, the registered share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
consideration shares and the subscription shares.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

R-_Z—MFE+A=R  ARREF QA
BB - SR -

pa[ll’
—
<t
2

B : —T-—MmELA-H
RI#T  RRBIREFAE

FRAA  BRERERZE  SRFKIEREESR
AR5.697L AR & RIEA R F66,615,0160% A
AR - RIS 2 REEK A ARNES79,039,440
TL RREEBETEKENREZAT -

ARAERERBHBEATARALERETZR
BB

(1) AARRRECEITRER KB EMEA
D RN4)27.05% % 14.08%

(2) AHEBLEMETREROMERNEZETA
B R AR RSB 3E RBTR B R (D FTiIER
B s A1) 4921.29% K 12.34% K

@) IHEERHRBEITRERND KRB TE
AHBEBHTRE R MR AE R % M 3#ETT
B Rt B 7R 08 A 10 B 98 K B9 s i A AR 49
13.32%:9.16% °



Report of the Directors (Continued)
ERgWmE (B)

The subscription shares will be allotted and issued at the
subscription price of RMB5.69 per subscription share.
The aggregate nominal value of the subscription shares is
RMB66,615,016.

Conditions precedent: completion of the Subscription
Agreement is conditional upon fulfillment of the following
conditions:

(1) the passing of resolutions by the Board and the
meetings of the shareholders (including class meetings)
in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules
approving the Subscription Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder;

(2) the Parent Company having obtained the internal
approvals from its competent decision making bodies;
and

(3) all necessary approvals, authorisations, consents
having been obtained from and all necessary
registrations and filings (if required) having been
completed with all competent governmental authorities
or regulatory bodies or other third parties in respect
of the Subscription Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder by the Company and the
Parent Company.

None of the conditions precedent above is waivable. In the
event any of the conditions precedent are not fulfilled on
or before 31 December 2014 or such later date as may be
agreed between the Company and the Parent Company, the
Subscription Agreement shall automatically be terminated.
Neither party shall have any obligations nor liabilities towards
each other thereafter save for any antecedent breaches of
the terms thereof. According to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2014 and 31 March 2015, the
completion date for fulfillment of the conditions precedent
was extended to 30 June 2015.
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With respect to the continuing connected transaction, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, after having reviewed
the aforesaid transaction, are of the opinion that the
transaction was:

(1)  entered into in the ordinary course of business of the
Company;

(2) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(3) conducted in accordance with the terms of the relevant
transaction agreement and on terms which were fair
and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on page 92 in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The above related party transactions as disclosed in Note 8
to the consolidated financial statements also fall under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules, and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the amendments to the rules relating to
connected transactions in the Listing Rules which came into
effect on 3 June 2010, “promoter” of PRC issuers has been
removed from the definition of “connected persons”. The
other transactions set in Note 8 to the financial statements
no longer constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules since 3 June 2010.

The Directors and Supervisors as at the date of this report are as
follows:

Mr. Wang Zhen
Mr. Yang Xiaobin
Mr. Zhang Peihua
Mr. Zhang Hao

duly appointed on 27 May 2013)
duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
duly appointed on 20 May 2014)

(
(
(
(duly appointed on 16 February 2015)

Mr. Hu Wentai (re-appointed on 29 May 2012)

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph  (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Yan Xiang (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Xu Bailing re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

Mr. George F. Meng re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

(
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon  (re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
(
(duly appointed on 3 November 2014)

Mr. Deng Tianlin

Mr. Dong Guiguo (continued to be appointed on 29 May 2012)
Mr. Zhang Shusheng (continued to be appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Han Aimin (continued to be appointed on 23 August 2014)
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The Directors and Supervisors who have resigned as at the date of this
report are as follows:

(duly resigned on 20 May 2015)
(duly resigned on 3 November 2014)
(duly resigned on 16 February 2013)

Mr. Yang Xugiang
Mr. Feng Da’an
Mr. Liang Jun

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out on page 69 to page 79 of this annual report.
There is no relationship among the Directors that is required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors and Supervisors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. None of the
Directors or the Supervisors had entered into any service contract
with the Group which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

None of the Directors, Supervisors or their respective associates
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) held any shares,
debentures or other interests in the Company, nor were they
granted, nor had they exercised any rights or options to subscribe
for shares in or debentures of the Company.

During the reported period, none of the Directors or Supervisors
of the Company had any material interests (whether directly or
indirectly) in any contracts of significance entered into by the
Company or its subsidiaries.
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None of the Directors or Supervisors holds any interests in any
competing businesses against the Company or any of its jointly
controlled entities or subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between the
Company, Directors and Supervisors and the resolution passed
at the general meeting, the allowance paid to the Executive
Directors, Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company in 2014 were RMB70,000, RMB50,000
and RMB100,000 per person respectively; and the allowance paid
to the Supervisors was RMB20,000 per person.

The Company held the Annual General Meeting on 20 May
2014, where the Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration
Packages for the Directors and Supervisors of the Company in
2014 was considered and approved. Directors and Supervisors
recommended by the parent company of the Company, proposed
that Directors and Supervisors nominated by connected parties
would not enjoy allowance for holding the position from the
year of 2014. But they were also entitled to receive respective
salaries according to their respective positions taken in the
Company. Details of remuneration packages for the Directors and
Supervisors of the Company were set out in Note 8(4)(h) to the
financial statements.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the reporting
period were either Directors or senior executives of the Company.
Details of their remuneration are set out in Note 8(4)(i) to the
financial statements.

%ﬁ3*§*E$+*ﬂ:+fE¢m$FW'$“
AEFREFRERARARALALHERLT A

AlTFHER %E’J%ﬁ%qﬂ%*ﬁf”w

REHEE  EERBORBELH —mEE -
WERRAGRE - XN TFARQ T#HT§$E']/$HE
BER/ARMET00007T/ A FRTEERARSE

50,0007,/ A : B IEHNTTEE B A K% 100,000
TN BEE AR ARBE20,0007T, A ©

/\I—H‘\ﬁ

BREARBD _Z-—HNEFAA - THERREF
Lﬂ1ﬁ§m<ﬁaﬁ/\ﬁ§ﬁ/\j§$ §b$_§*mi¢ﬁz
M REPRZR) B RBARRBAREENES
EERE AERRRES E’Ji% ESEETE=E
XHERNES  EEMMEERM -  BEREBEEEARTR
BEENABRBRSHENIERM A AESFHE
EEHINFBES NP B RRMEN@)N)

EEEMETAALHAATEELS
Milﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬂwmo

%%‘

BRERRAERAT 09
—T-mEER



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEenE (8)

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no similar restriction against such rights
under the relevant PRC law that is applicable to the Company as
a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC. Therefore,
the Company is not required to offer new shares, if any, to its
existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

As of 31 December 2014, the Company did not issue or grant any
convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights. The
Company had no redeemable securities as at 31 December 2014,

The Group had no entrusted deposits and overdue time deposits
as at 31 December 2014.

The Group had no material litigation or arbitration as at 31
December 2014.

The financial statements of the Group have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and it has indicated its willingness
to be continuously in office. A resolution will be proposed by the
Board at the annual general meeting to re-appoint the firm as the
auditor of the Company until the close of the next annual general
meeting.
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The Company established an audit committee on 24 September
2002. The audit committee consists of three members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Xu Bailing,
an Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman.

A table of the operating results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this annual
report.

As at the date of publication, from the public information held by
the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the public
float was 226,913,000 H shares, representing 47.95% of the total
share capital of the Company, which is in compliance with the
minimum public float requirement pursuant to Rule 8.08 of the
Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board
Wang Zhen
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
24 April 2015
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To shareholders:

During 2014, in accordance with the Company Law, the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association, the Supervisory Committee
of the Company actively conducted supervision and inspection
in the best interests of the shareholders and the Company
and pursuant to regulatory laws and regulations as well as the
requirements for corporate governance. During the year, all
supervisors performed their supervisory duties conscientiously
and effectively by convening and attending meetings, listening
to the management’s reports, attending regulation conferences
and training. Acting on the principle of honesty and diligence,
the Supervisory Committee successfully executed its work plan
for 2014 and continuously improved the Company’s governance
practices.

The major activities of the Supervisory Committee during 2014
were as follows:

1. Attending meetings of the Board and monitoring the
decision making process of the Board in terms of regulatory
compliance, legal and managerial system;

2. Attending meetings at the office of the Chairman of the
Board, participating in important activities of the Company
in the ordinary course of business, and monitoring the daily
operation and management by the Chairman and other
senior officers and providing constructive suggestions
thereto;

3. Reviewing the financial statements of the Company on
a regular basis and the vouchers and accounts of the
Company on an ad-hoc basis.
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In consideration of above works carried out, the Supervisory
Committee believed that the shareholders’ equity continued to
grow in 2014, and the profitability of the Company was enhanced,
dividend distribution policy was reasonable and the overall
financial position was sound. We expressed our independent
opinions as followings in relation to relevant matters:

The Company’s business operation is in compliance with the
Company Law and the Articles of Association. The decision
making procedure is lawful and valid. During the reporting
period, the members of the Board, the general manager and
other senior management observed the principle of diligence
and honesty, and performed their duties in good faith and
in the interests of the shareholders and the Company. The
Supervisory Committee was not aware of any breach of
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association or actions
to the detriment of the interests of the shareholders and the
Company on the part of directors, senior management in
carrying out their duties.

The financial report for the year gives a true, objective, fair
and accurate view of the Company’s financial position and
operating results.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee was
not aware of any acquisition and disposal of assets to the
detriment of shareholders’ interests or leading to loss of the
Company’s assets or insider trading.
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During the reporting period, the Company entered into
connected transactions by following the legal decision
making procedure, in strict compliance with the principle of
fairness, in accordance with the Listing Rules, with open and
transparent information disclosure and without harming the
interests of the Company.

In 2014, Meilan Airport, as one of the world’s biggest
airports, saw its passenger throughput surpassing 10 million
in four consecutive years, with security, operation, services
and management continuously improving. It is expected
that the business of the Company in 2015 will keep steady
increase, and the Supervisory Committee is fully confident
in the prospects of the Company’s future development.
Meanwhile, we will continue to safeguard the interests of
all the shareholders and the Company, carry out our duties
diligently and focus on monitoring the Company’s actions for
fulfilling its commitments to shareholders.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Dong Guiguo
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Hainan Province, the PRC
24 April 2015
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Auditor’'s Report
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2015) No. 10052
(Page 1 of 2)

To the Shareholders of
HNA Infrastructure Company Limited,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HNA
Infrastructure Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”),
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated and company
income statements, the consolidated and company statements
of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and
company cash flows statements for the year then ended, and the
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and of the Company
as at 31 December 2014, and the Group’s and Company’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
30 March 2015
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Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets

At ARIEERER

As at 31 December 2014 2014412 A31H
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (BR4FBIERRSN - £ FBE A ARKEIT)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 20145 2013
12A31H 12A318 12R318 12A31H
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Mzt &t X AL A
ASSETS g
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EHES 4(1),14(1)
Z9(1), 7-25(1) 1,884,557,387  2,998,410,937  1,880,585,089  2,994,134,037
Accounts receivable S 42),142)
7512, 1592) 120,702,313 82,122,118 120,097,158 81,471,600
Advances to suppliers RFRE 4(3) 7913) 1,763,323 1,194,222 1,581,246 1,032,894
Interest receivable JEWF & 2,269,667 5,293,245 2,269,667 5,293,245
Other receivables e 44),1403)
75(4), 7-75(3) 4,560,931 3,686,441 5,665,259 4,425,878
Inventories RE 36,417 7,187 36,417 7,187
Other current assets HihingdE 4(5) 755 785,832 1,196,386 784,037 1,164,395
Total current assets FEEEST 2,014,675,870  3,091,910,536  2,011,018,873  3,087,529,236
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term receivables REEYH 4(6) 6) 380,000,000 - 380,000,000 -
Long-term equity investments RERERE 407),14(4)
J9(7), 175(4) 1,128,146,862  1,127,739,146  1,138,346,862  1,139,166,971
Fixed assets Ehy:3 4(8),14(5)
2(8), +54(5) 1,040,314,740  1,086,631,921  1,036,036,144  1,082,008,204
Construction in progress EEIR 4(9),14(6)
709, +54(6) 122,543,328 6,772,310 122,543,328 6,772,310
Intangible assets EVEE 4(10) 75(10) 181,681,666 185,653,430 181,681,666 185,653,430
Deferred tax assets ELEHREE 4(11) B(11) 13,156,516 9,066,924 13,156,516 9,066,924
Other non-current assets AtIERBAE 4(12) F(12) 841,228,194  150,454570 841,228,194 159,454,570
Total non-current assets FRBERAH 3,707,071,306  2,575318,301  3,712,992,710  2,582,122,409
Total assets BEEG 521,747,176 5,667,228,837  5,724,011,583  5,669,651,645
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets (Continued)

BHhARIEERARGBR (B)

As at 31 December 2014 2014512 H31H
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIFERASN - £ 28 EN A A REEIT)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 20145 20136
127316 12A31R 12A318 128318
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
it &t A 27 N
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SERER
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable JEFERR 4(13),14(7)
7013, +54(7) 15,234,088 12,010,624 14,566,343 9,800,485
Advances from customers JAUF A 4(14) F(14) 9,290,271 9,435,102 8,702,370 9,373,202
Employee benefits payable JE T 5B 4(15) F(15) 24,119,398 20,779,889 17,025,059 17,144,424
Taxes payable EXHE 4(16) 7(16) 44,688,696 16,739,167 44,516,193 16,943,794
Interest payable FERAE 4(17) B(17) 50,416,960 51,746,763 50,416,960 51,746,763
Dividends payable JE R 7 4(18) (18) 499,500 666,000 499,500 666,000
Other payables BN 4(19) 9(19) 114,236,355 161,190,876 144,395,326 190,265,423
Current portion of non-current liabilities —ERIEBNERHERE 4(20) 15(20) 444,673,972 138,326,172 444,673,972 138,326,172
Total current liabilities RBBERH 703,159,240 410,894,593 724,795,723 433,266,263
Non-current liabilities FREERE
Long-term borrowings REIE 421)B21)  1,245963,758  1,688,801,518  1,245,963,758  1,688,801,518
Corporate bonds NAES 4(22) F(22) 793,619,030 792,365,219 793,619,030 792,365,219
Long-term payables REEMNR 4(23) 15123) 66,295,336 87,488,063 66,295,336 87,488,063
Long-term employee benefits payable R TE 4(15) F(15) 2,273,043 - 2,273,043 -
Other non-current liabilities EftFRBa 4(24) F(24) 19,082,600 18,336,331 19,082,600 18,336,331
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESH 2,127,233,767  2,586.991,131  2,127,233,767  2,586,991,131
Total liabilities BEAH 2,830,393,007  2,997,885724  2,852,029,490  3,020,257,394
Shareholders’ equity BRER
Share capital B 4(25) 1125) 473,213,000 473213000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus YN 4(26) 75(26) 668,585,780 699,650,702 668,585,780 699,650,702
Surplus reserve BHNE 427) B(27) 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Undistributed profits RO E 426) F(28)  1,487,909,356  1233,993,923  1,483,789,082  1,230,136,318
Total equity attributable to shareholders HET AR ARKER S
of the Company 2,876,102,367  2,653,251,856  2,871,982,093 2,649,394 251
Minority interests DERFEE 4(29) 5(29) 15,251,802 16,091,257 - =
Total equity BRA 2,891,354,169  2,669,343,113  2,871,982,093  2,649,394,251
Total liabilities and equity BERERE 5,721,747,176  5,667,228,837  5,724,011,583  5,669,651,645

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function:
PREEA - FEBISILIEHERA -

Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua

£ RimMEE
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Person in charge of accounting department:
BEHEREAN ¢
Shang Min
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Consolidated and Company
Income Statements

AR ARFIEE

= VAWMNGIAN ﬂ ) Eﬂ
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5I7ERRI - £ 58BN A ARETT)

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 % 145 20135
ltem Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
B fifit & X A A
Revenue EEHA 4(30),14(8)
M0, FEE 882,013,345 760276774 792504622 678,598,374
Less: Operating costs B BENA 4(30) 7530) (325,802,795)  (280,221,602)  (251,290,635)  (218,093,806)
Taxes and surcharges BER 2 RNm 4(31) 79(31) (16,404,275) (21,871,094) (15,993,760) (19,596,019)
General and administrative expenses ERER 4(30) 7(30) (54,950,682) (42,984,268 (51,158,817) (39,658,082)
Financial expenses - net BB FE 4(32),14(9)
79(32), 1-5(9) (82,855,339)  (50,228,086) (82,690,423  (50,100,513)
(Provision)/reversal of asset EERE(BR)/
impairment =T 4(33) (39) (443,883) (538,712) (721,708) 182,294
Add:  Investment income m: AR 4(54),14(10)
J9(34), 59(10) 31,442,666 26,931,664 35,333,903 32,433,392
Including: Share of profit of b HEELEN
investments in associates REWE 31,472,638 26,931,664 31,472,638 26,931,664
Operating profit EE) e 432,909,037 391,364,676 425,983,182 383,765,640
Add:  Non-operating income m: BEMNEA 4(39),14(11)
75(35), +55(11) 9,023,869 2,628,132 8,098,842 2,628,132
Including: Gains on disposal of B ERBEERE
non-current assets 5 75,200 - 75,200 -
Less:  Non-operating expenses W BENTH (3,227,287 (219,301) (3,169,892) (219,301)
Including: Losses on disposal of He: FRHLERE
non-current assets B (3,134,964) (183,536) (3,134,964) (183,536)
Total profit Flimemas 438,705,619 398,773,507 431,812,132 386,174,471
Less:  Income tax expenses W FEHER 4(36),14(12)
J(36), +25(12) (101,104,753) (46,662,142) (98,206,268) (43,178,907)
Net profit FFE 337,600,866 347,111,365 333,605,864 342,995,564
Attributable to shareholders of FBRALRRENFHE
the Company 333,868,533 342,034,354 333,605,864 342,995,564
Minority interest DYRRER 3,732,333 5,077,011 - =
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements (Continued)

BHRARIFER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145E 20135 20145 20135
tem Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
A it aff abt 27 AL
Earnings per share Bl
Basic earnings per share EAGRE 4(37) 15(37) 0.1 0.72 N/A REE N/A 1@
Diluted earnings per share mREgRE 4(37) 15(37) 0.7 0.72 N/A R R N/A TE
Other comprehensive income HiGrAalBEnbiEEE
after tax - _ - _
Total comprehensive income GAkhRAE 337,600,866 347,111,365 333,605,864 342,995,564
Attributable to sharenolders of FBRAAARE NGRS Re
the Company ks 333,868,533 342,034,354 333,605,864 342,995,564
Minority interest GERNDBRREGANGEE 3,732,333 5,077,011 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

Person in charge of accounting function:

B TS R I e R B R A AR ER D

Person in charge of accounting department:

PEEEA - FEEIITEHEEA - DEEERERA ¢
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min
-1 SRAmZE of=
2014 2013 2014 2013
0145 20135 0145 20135 %
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
it CXii att 27 AL
Dividends il 4(38) 75(38) 83,285,500 86,104,800 83,285,500 86,104,800
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Consolidated and Company
Cash Flows Statements
B ATIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5I7ERRI - £ 58BN A ARETT)

2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 2013 20145 2013%
ltem Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ER 3 Xl =i A A
Cash flows from operating activities ReTBEENESTE
Cash received from sales of goods or HEBR - RREBYE
rendering of services bk 883,164,576 797,576,922 785,849,249 718,694,614
Refund of taxes and surcharges KIMHERE 464,887 547,000 464,887 547,000
Cash received relating to other operating Wi B E fh EA S & E BB R
activities HEe 181,023,517 145,447,468 180,612,841 148,623,696
Sub-total of cash inflows RETEIR ST A/ 1,064,652,980 943,571,390 966,926,977 867,865,310
Cash paid for goods and services BERM BER4BIMNNEE (191,538,436)  (123,831,671)  (140,376,045) (84,811,133)
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees ~ TRABTINURABT S [
bk (131,187,043) (81,464,632) (102,453,755) (66,995,611)
Payments of taxes and surcharges SRNEEHE 4(39)(a), 390 (112,090,861) (85,996,236)  (104,565,645) (80,029,561)
Cash paid relating to other operating XREMEE SRS AR 14(13)(c),
activities MBS I3 (209964790  (147,312204) (209,014,495  (140,725,813)
Sub-total of cash outflows ST S\t (644,781,130) (438,604,833) (556,409,940 (372,562,118)
Net cash flows from operating RETHELNESTE 4(39)(a), 75(39)(a)
activities R 14(13)a),
+0113)2) 419,871,850 504,966,557  410517,037 495,308,192
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHELNRSRE
Cash received from disposal of WEREREINRE
an investment - - 53,105 -
Cash receipt of dividends from subsidiaries V84 AUz FrkEI R S - - 4,758,160 5,501,728
Net cash received from disposal offixed ~ REETAZE - BN AENEM
assets, intangible assets and other REAEKENRLEE
long-term assets 642,133 53,251 642,133 53,251
Cash received relating to other investing W EIEMERE FHEBENES
activities - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Sub-total of cash inflows RERIRRRA/N 642,133 3,053,251 5,453,398 8,554,979
Net cash paid for acquisition of fixed ERETEE  BYEEN
assets, intangible assets and otherlong ~ HtREEEZHHES
term assets (739,111,353) (42379673  (738,835,220)  (40,161,715)
Cash paid relating to other investing THEMEREEDEANTS
activities (380,000,000) ~ (380,000,000) -
Sub-total of cash outflows REEHE ST Nt (1,119,111,359) (42,379,673)  (1,118,835,220) (40,161,715)

SERERERR G B R A A
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flows Statements (Continued)

etk aaRanEx (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 2014 2013
[tem Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
R it &bt abt 27 NG
Net cash flows from investing activities RELHEANR S RERE (1,118,469,220) (39,326,422)  (1,113,381,822) (31,606,736)
Cash flows from financing activities EETHEANEERE
Cash received from borrowings BEETRINES - 1,524,225,000 - 1,524,225,000
Cash received relating to other financing ~ WEIZHEEEEHEH
activities HE S - 120,000,000 - 120,000,000
Sub-total of cash inflows EBEHHRE TN - 1,644,225,000 - 1,644,225,000
Cash payments of borrowings EEEBIAOERES (109,916,100)  (113,159,150)  (109,916,100)  (113,159,150)
Cash payments for distribution of dividends 2 &R F| - FlEsEMFI&
or profits and interest expenses TRNES (216,387,129)  (192,798,798)  (211,815,564)  (187,512,825)
Including:  Cash payments for dividends or  E b : FARIL T4
profit to minority shareholders DEREA
of subsidiaries FRA (4,571,565) (5,285,973) - =
Cash payments relating to other financing X EfEEEEE)HE
activities HHE (87,551,001)  (13,145494)  (87,551,001)  (13,145,494)
Sub-total of cash outflows ELTHRBMM G (413,854,320) (319,103,442 (409,282,755)  (313,817,469)
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ EEEHELNHLHEEE (413,854,320)  1,325,121,558  (409,282,755)  1,330,407,531
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgnuneny e
changes on cash (1,401,860) 87,821 (1,401,408) 94,531
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REF(HD)/BmE 4(39)(a), 14(13)(b)
H39)a),
+05(13)(b) (1,113,853,550)  1,790,849,514  (1,113,548,948)  1,794,198,518
Add: Cash at beginning of year i ERLHE 2,998,410,037  1,207,561,423  2,994,134,037  1,199,935,519
Cash at end of year EXRBERE 1,884,557,387  2,998,410,937  1,880,585,089  2,994,134,037

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial & MfBA #8 hRMT L B FERFT A D ©

statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function: Person in charge of accounting department:
PRERA - FEBISILIEHERA - BiHERAEA -

Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min

Ig Gk or
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

FACRAEmZ TR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5I7ERRI - £ 58BN A ARETT)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RRTALANRRER

Total
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
ltem capital surplus reserves profits interests equity
L] i BRNE BHAR  AOEWE  JERREER RRERS:
Notefs) Mzt 425, 25 426, B2e) 427 Ber) 428 B2g) 429, B9
Balances at 1 January 2013 W13E1 1R EE 473213000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,003,637,763 16,300,219 2,439,195,915
Movements for the year ended N13FERFEYE
31 December 2013
Total comprehensive income FalEeE
Net profit Eilhe - - - 342,034,354 5,077,011 347,111,365
Other comprehensive income Hiz Al - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income e lmgEa - - - 342034354 5077011 347,111,365
Profit distrioution MEME
Profit distributed to shareholders HREHAR 4(28) 7526) - - - (111,678,194) (5,285,973)  (116,964,167)
Balances at 31 December 2013 NI3ERANBERRE 473213000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,233,993,923 16,091,257  2,669,343,113
Balances at 1 January 2014 0141 B1RENSRE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231  1,233,993,923 16,091,257  2,669,343,113
Movements for the year ended N4EEEFEYE
31 December 2014
Total Comprehensive income GRlizEg
Net profit eilNel - - - 333,868,533 3,732,333 337,600,866
Qther comprehensive income Etgala - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income LAkEEEA - - - 333,868,533 3,732,333 337,600,866
Profit distribution HEAE
Proft distributed to shareholders R E 408 75128) - - - (79953,100) (4,571,565  (84,524,665)
Gancellation of a subsidiary HHTAA - - - - (223) (223)
Other movement of capital surplus EHERAREY 4(26) 7526) - (31,064,922) - - - (31,064,922)
Balances at 31 December 2014 014F 128N BERBE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,487,909,356 15,251,802 2,891,354,169

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:
PREEEA

Wang Zhen

B

FEBHILIFMRAN :

Zhang Peihua

R fmEE

Person in charge of accounting function:

1R P B 75 3R R P RE R B A SRR O AR R BB 2

Person in charge of accounting department:

BT HEREA ¢

Shang Min
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Company Statement of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity

AR R EREEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERASN - & EBEN A A REEIT)

Total
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed ~ shareholders’
Item capital surplus reserves profits equity
E! s BADR BYOE AOERE  RRERA
Note(s) Azt 4(05) 25 4(26) 75126) 407) mer) 408 28)
Balances at 1 January 2013 01351 A1 A EHIHE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 998,818,948 2,418,076,861
Movements for the year ended 20135 R EHEHE
31 December 2013
Total Comprehensive income FalEES
Net profit FHE - - - 342,995,564 342,995,564
Other comprehensive income Bl als - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FANERSAT - - - 342995564 342,995,564
Profit distribution HEAE
Profit distributed to shareholders HRROHR 4(28) 128) - - - (111,678,194)  (111,678,194)
Balances at 31 December 2013 013512831 AERBR 473,218,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1230,136,318  2,649,394,251
Balances at 1 January 2014 01451 F1RERE 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,230,136,318  2,649,394,251
Movements for the year ended 0145 REHEHT
31 December 2014
Comprehensive income TRlReE
Net profit /ﬂIJT - - - 338,605,864 333,605,864
Other comprehensive income EthiAlia - - - - -
Total comprehensive income LRkEEEAH - - - 338,605,864 333,605,864
Profit distribution HEsE
Prolfit distriouted to shareholders HRRMAE 4(28) 15128) - - - (79,953,100) (79,953,100)
Other movement of capital surplus EMEANEED 4(26) 5126) - (31,064,922) - - (31,064,922)
Balances at 31 December 2014 141283 BERBE 473.213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231  1,483,789,082  2,871,982,003

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

&I TS R I R TS R AR ER D

statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function: Person in charge of accounting department:

PEEEA FEFIIEHEEA - BiHERRA
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min
=) RIMEE of=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 [&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (K45 BIFERRSN - £ REELL A A REETT)

General information

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited (formerly known as
“Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited”) (the
“Company”) was established as a joint stock company with
limited liability in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2000. The legal address and headquarters
of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC.
The Company’s H-shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18 November 2002.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are mainly engaged in the operation of the Meilan Airport in
Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan Airport”) and certain
ancillary commercial businesses. The parent company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Haikou
Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou Meilan”), a state-owned
enterprise established in the PRC with limited liability.

On 5 January 2015, as approved by the extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders, the Company changed its
name to HNA Infrastructure Company Limited.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2015.

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the Basic Standard of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, specific accounting standards
and other relevant regulations (hereafter collectively
referred to as the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” or “CAS”) issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC on or after 15 February 20086.

The financial statements were prepared on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and
truly and completely present the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as of 31 December
2014 and of their financial performance, cash flows and
other information for the year then ended.

Accounting year

The Group’s accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

Recording currency

The recording currency of the Group is Renminbi
(RMB).

Business combinations

(a) Business combinations involving enterprises
under common control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained
in a business combination are measured at
the carrying amount. The difference between
the carrying amount of the net assets obtained
from the combination and the carrying amount
of the consideration paid for the combination is
treated as an adjustment to capital surplus (share
premium). If the capital surplus (share premium)
is not sufficient to cover the difference, the
remaining balance is adjusted against retained
earnings. Costs directly attributable to the
combination are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESFHBEMZEsT@)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.6 PEAGIE)
(b)  Business combinations involving enterprises not (b) FERE—EH TR EA G
under common control

2.5 Business combinations (Continued)

The cost of combination and identifiable net
assets obtained in a business combination are
measured at the fair value at the acquisition
date. Where the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference
is recognised as goodwill; where the cost of
combination is lower than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable

BEOBRENGHRAREAGHE
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net assets, the difference is recognised in profit
or loss for the period when the combination
is incurred. Costs directly attributable to the
combination are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.6 Preparation of consolidated financial 2.6 AUIRIFHRERI TR T )2
Statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise REASFIEHRER  SHSEESEAA T
the financial statements of the Company and its FEEF AT o
subsidiaries.
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RREIEHTES 2 BERARRR S HE
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated
from the date that such control ceases. For a
subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination
involving enterprises under common control, it is
included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date when it, together with the Company, comes
under common control of the ultimate controlling
party. The portion of the net profit realised before
the combination date is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.6 Preparation of consolidated financial 2.6 AGIEIHEIHREZRI MR T Z (4

gy
N

statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods of the Company and subsidiaries are
inconsistent, the financial statements of the
subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the
accounting policies and the accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from business
combinations involving enterprises not under common
control, the individual financial statements of the
subsidiaries are adjusted based on the fair value of the
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions and
unrealised profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s net profits and
losses and comprehensive income for the year not
attributable to the Company are recognised as minority
interests and presented separately in the consolidated
financial statements within equity, net profits and
comprehensive income respectively. Unrealised profit
or loss in transactions where the Company sells assets
to its subsidiaries are fully eliminated and deducted
from the net profits attributable to equity holders of
the Company. Unrealised profit or loss in transactions
where a subsidiary sells assets to the Company are
eliminated and deducted proportionately from the net
profits attributable to equity holders of the Company
and the minority interest. Unrealised profit or loss in
selling assets between subsidiaries are eliminated and
deducted from the net profits attributable to equity
holders of the Company and of the minority interest in
proportion to the equity interest of the sale side held by
the Company and minority interests.

A transaction will be adjusted from the perspective
of the Group in condition that assertions are different
when accounting entities are the Group and the
Company or its subsidiaries.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

2.8

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily drawn on demand, and
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into RMB using
the spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising from these translations
are recognised in profit or loss for the current period,
except for those attributable to foreign currency
borrowings that have been taken out specifically for the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at historical costs are translated at the
balance sheet date using the spot exchange rates at
the date of the transactions. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in the cash
flow statement.

Financial instrument
(@)  Financial assets
(i) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following categories at initial recognition:
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group’s intention
and ability to hold the financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)
2.9 Financial instrument (Continued) 2.9 TETAE)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued) (a) THEEGE)
()  Classification of financial assets (Continued) i)y =SBMBEEIEE)

AEEBRAFEZENREE
2014F12R31HZ SMEE A
FEWFRIR - FEUWGRIA R BT A B
MEHEERE BN SEEE
YA EEMIITESREE -

The financial assets of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and for the year then
ended are receivables. Receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

(i)  Recognition and measurement (i) MWREF=

Financial assets are recognised at fair
value on the balance sheet when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument, and
transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets
are included in their initially recognised
amounts.

Receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amounts
of financial assets at each balance sheet
date. If there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired, an impairment
loss is provided for.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESFHBEMZEsT@)
and accounting estimates (Continued)
2.9 Financial instrument (Continued) 2.9 HTAE)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued) (@ THEEE)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SBMEEREE)

When an impairment loss on a financial
asset carried at amortised cost has
occurred, the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
its estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred). If there is objective evidence that
the value of the financial asset recovered
and the recovery is related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed and the amount
of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument (Continued)

()

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when
any of the below criteria is met: (i) the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; (ii) the
financial asset has been transferred and the
Group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to the transferee; or (iii) the financial
asset has been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the financial
asset, although the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair value that
had been recognised directly in equity, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into the following
categories at initial recognition: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The financial liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and for the
year then ended mainly comprise other financial
liabilities, including payables, borrowings and
corporate bonds.

Payables, including accounts payable, other
payables, interest payable, dividend payable and
long-term payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.9 Financial instrument (Continued)

2.10

(®)

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings and debentures payable are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities with maturities no more
than one year are classified as current liabilities.
Other financial liabilities with maturities over one
year but are due within one year at the balance
sheet date are classified as the current portion
of non-current liabilities. Others are classified as
non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or partly
derecognised when the current obligation is
discharged or partly discharged. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or the derecognised part of the financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of financial instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument that is
traded in an active market is determined at the
quoted price in active market.

Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable, other

receivables, interest receivable and long-term
receivables. Accounts receivable arising from rendering
of services or sale of goods are initially recognised at

fair value of the contractual payments from the service

recipients or buyers.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Receivables (Continued)

Receivables with amounts that are individually
significant are subject to assessment for impairment on
the individual basis. If there exists objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect the amount
under the original terms, a provision for impairment of
that receivable is made. The method of providing for
bad debts for those individually significant amounts is
as follows: the amount of the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the receivable
below its carrying amount.

Receivables with amounts that are not individually
significant and those receivables that have been
individually assessed for impairment and have not been
found impaired are classified into certain groupings
based on their credit risk characteristics. The provision
for bad debts is determined based on the historical loss
experience for the groupings of receivables with similar
credit risk characteristics, taking into consideration
of the current circumstances. The Group uses ageing
analysis method to make provision for impairment
of receivables with amounts that are not individually
significant.

Inventories

Inventories include food and spare parts, and are
presented at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first in first out method.
Provision for declines in the value of inventories is
determined at the excess amount of the carrying
amounts of the inventories over their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined based on
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale and related taxes.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in its
subsidiaries and the Group’s long-term equity
investments in its associates.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company

is able to control. Associates are the investees that the

Company has significant influence on their financial and
operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the

Company’s financial statements using the cost

method, and are adjusted to the equity method when

preparing the consolidated financial statements;

Investments in associates are accounted for using the

equity method.

(a)

(b)

Determination of investment cost

The long-term equity investments of the
Company are acquired by payment in cash, the
initial investment cost shall be the purchase price
actually paid.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
related profit or loss

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the cost method, they are measured at the
initial investment costs, and cash dividends or
profit distribution declared by the investees are
recognized as investment income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets on the
acquisition date, the long-term equity investment
is measured at the initial investment cost; where
the initial investment cost is less than the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets on the acquisition date, the difference
is included in profit or loss and the cost of the
long-term equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 REARERE (&)

(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition of (b) #EFEREERTE(E)

2.12 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

related profit or loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the equity method, the Group recognises
the investment income or losses according to
its share of net profit or loss of the investee. The
Group discontinues recognising its share of net
losses of an investee after the carrying amount
of the long-term equity investment together
with any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the investor’s net investment in
the investee are reduced to zero. However, if
the Group has obligations for additional losses
and the criteria with respect to recognition of
provisions under the accounting standards on
contingencies are satisfied, the Group continues
recognising the investment losses and the losses
are recognized as estimate debts. For changes
in shareholders’ equity of the investee other than
those arising from its net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution,
the Group adjusts the carrying amount of
long-term equity investments and records its
proportionate share directly into capital reserves.
The carrying amount of the investment is reduced
by the Group’s share of the profit distribution
or cash dividends declared by the investee. The
unrealized profits or losses arising from the intra-
group transactions amongst the Group and its
investees are eliminated in proportion to the
Group’s equity interest in the investees, and then
based on which the investment gains or losses
are recognised. For the loss on the intra-group
transaction amongst the Group and its investees
attributable to asset impairment, any unrealised
loss is not eliminated.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.12 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c) Basis for determining existence of control and
significant influence over investees

Control is the power over the investee to be
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
the Group’s involvement with the investee, and
the ability to use the power over the investee to
affect those returns.

Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

(d)  Impairment of long-term equity investments

The carrying amounts of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries and associates are
reduced to the recoverable amount when the
recoverable amount are below their carrying
amounts (Note 2(17)).

2.13 Fixed assets

(a) Recognition and initial measurement of fixed
assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and
equipment, motor vehicles, office equipment and
others.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable
that the related economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the costs can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed by
the Group are initially measured at cost at the
acquisition date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.13 Fixed assets (Continued)

()

(b)

Recoginition and initial measurement of fixed
assets (Continued)

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset
when it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All the other subsequent expenditures are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation method of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of the assets
to their estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets
being provided for impairment loss, the related
depreciation charge is prospectively determined
based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.
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The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual BEEEEMTBEASS  FEEX

values expressed as a percentage of cost and the NEFERFRIAT
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Annual

Estimated Estimated  depreciation

useful lives residual value rate

TEFEASS TEDFEREX FEX

Buildings and structures EENEEY) 15-40 years 3% 6.5%-2.4%

Machinery and equipment MBS R 1 14 years 3% 6.9%

Motor vehicles Ew T A 10 years 3% 9.7%

Office equipment and others PN R R H At 6-15 years 3% 16.2%-6.5%
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.13Fixed assets (Continued)

(®)

()

(@)

(e)

Depreciation method of fixed assets (Continued)

The estimated useful life, the estimated
net residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least at
each year-end.

The carrying amount of fixed assets is reduced
to the recoverable amount when the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount (Note
2(17)).

Recoginition and measurement of fixed assets
held under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. Fixed assets held under finance leases
are recognised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The difference between
the recorded amount of the leased assets and
the minimum lease payments is accounted for as
unrecognised finance charge (Note 2(23)(b)).

Fixed assets held under finance leases are
depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
policy on self-owned assets. If there is reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term, the leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Fixed assets disposal

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds
on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed
asset net of its carrying amount and related taxes
and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.14 Construction in progress 214 ZEETIE

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost.
Actual cost comprises construction costs, installation
cost, borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalisation
and other costs necessary to bring the fixed assets
ready for their intended use. Construction in progress
is transferred to fixed assets when the assets are ready
for their intended use, and depreciation begins from the
following month. The carrying amount of construction
in progress is reduced to the recoverable amount
when the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount (Note 2(17)).

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a fixed asset that needs
a substantially long period of time for its intended use
commence to be capitalised and recorded as part of
the cost of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and the
activities relating to the acquisition and construction
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition or
construction becomes ready for its intended use and
the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended during periods
in which the acquisition or construction of a fixed
asset is interrupted abnormally and the interruption
lasts for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.

130 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

ERTREERFEENKARE - BBRKA
BIERERAR - REXN - FEERIEH
MERERUREMABFEEETIRETEE
A AMREEANNESTH - EETEE
EREEAF AR SABRTEET A
XA BHRIBFTIRITE - EEETEMAIKE
SHEEREREEER  REEERLE
WElSRE(ME=(17)) °

G B
BENAEZREN T ZCBAEREHEN

BENE
BRERSTRENET A ERRECEEE
ENBENERER  £EEXLRERE
RERHLE - REEEZDIEE A EAMRE
v ENBEERCERER - FRBERCL
Wt AZEENKA - ERBENEEZEDTR
ERE ARAERHT LB AL - ARREERE
RERFAEHELE - WREENBRED
BAJEIERPE - WA BT RS ERAS
EA - EFERERNENME  EEEEN
BRIREBEMMLEA °



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing costs (Continued)

For the specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition
or construction of a fixed asset qualifying for
capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by deducting any
interest income earned from depositing the unused
specific borrowings in the banks or any investment
income arising on the temporary investment of those
borrowings during the capitalisation period.

For the general borrowings obtained for the
acquisition or construction of a fixed asset qualifying
for capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
the weighted average effective interest rate of general
borrowings, to the weighted average of the excess
amount of cumulative expenditures on the asset over
the amount of specific borrowings. The effective
interest rate is the rate at which the estimated future
cash flows during the period of expected duration
of the borrowings or applicable shorter period are
discounted to the initial amount of the borrowings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are land use rights (“LUR”) and are
measured at cost. LUR acquired are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review of
its useful life and amortisation method is performed at
each year-end, with adjustment made as appropriate.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is reduced to
the recoverable amount when the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount (Note 2(17)).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.17 Impairment of long-term assets 217 RAEIEERE

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested
for impairment if there is any indication that the assets
may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result
of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group
of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is
able to generate independent cash inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised,
it will not be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations
given in exchange for services rendered by employees
or compensation paid in order to terminate the
employment relationship. Employee benefits mainly
include short-term employee benefits, demission
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits, etc.

(a)  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include
wages or salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies, staff welfare, social security
contributions, housing funds, labor union funds
and employee education funds. When an
employee has rendered service to the Group
during an accounting period, the Group shall
recognise short-term employee benefits as
liabilities and charge to the cost of an asset or
as an expense at the same time. Non-monetary
benefits are measured in accordance with fair
value.

(b)  Demission benefits

Demission benefits are classified as defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plans.
Defined contribution is demission benefits plan
in which the Group is not obliged to make
further payment after paying a certain amount
to individual funds. Defined benefit plans is
other demission benefits plan except for defined
contribution plan. During the period, demission
benefits mainly include basic social pension
insurance and unemployment insurance, both of
which are defined contribution plan.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Demission benefits (Continued)
Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in the basic
social pension plan set up and administered
by the government authorities. Basic pensions
are provided monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid to local
labor and social security institutions. After
retirement of employees, local labor and social
security institutions will pay related pensions
to employees accordingly. When an employee
has rendered service to the Group during an
accounting period, the Group shall compute
and recognize liabilities according to the above
stipulation and charge to the cost of an asset or
as an expense at the same time.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payables when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the employment contract expire, or
compensation provided as an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy.
The Group recognizes termination benefits as
liabilities and charges to profit or losses at the
earlier of the following dates: (i) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of termination
plan; and (ii) when the Group recognizes costs
for restructuring which involving the payment of
termination benefits.

134 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

FEETBERNEAsh )

218 BT %

(b)

(c)

BEBLIZE T (4)

EARBERR
AEERTI2NTHEMSHNLE
REFFIABERNLEELARTZR
o AEBENEMRENHEERE
ERBHMEBNLLY - HARE
HEERBRERBENBBEZANTL
R E - BTIRINER - B8 Kt
eREFFAEEEMSRAREI M
HEEAERES - AKREEBTIRRM
R EETHRE - SRE R RR
ErERGANSERASAE X
FTAE RS NERAEEKAE

BrRE T

AEBERTSH AR B ZATHE
HEBTHSHER  AESTEBBT
BREZZHERMELG TME &5
5 B T BE B 77 ) AR B 85 BH BB (R 5
IS HORIEE R MR 8P K X N B
RENNEARBEOKAERBRE
AFH - R R TSR
R THEMELENEAR - FEFTA

= HiEa -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)
(d)  Early retirement benefits

The Group is obligated to pay the early retirement
benefits for voluntary early retired employees.
Early retirement benefits are payable to the
employees not reaching mandatory retirement
age and voluntarily quit jobs as approved by
the management of the Group. The Group pays
for their salary and social insurance during
the period from early retirement date to the
mandatory retirement date. Similar to termination
benefits, a provision for early retirement benefits
is recognised when the above conditions are
satisfied, during the period from the early
retirement date to the mandatory retirement date.
Changes in actuarial assumptions and benefits
policies are charged to profit or loss of current
year.

Termination benefits which will be settled within
one year would be disclosed as current liability.

Dividend distribution

Cash dividend is recognised as a liability for the period
in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders’
meeting.

Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance
with the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of rebates and discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,
the relevant revenue can be reliably measured and
specific revenue recognition criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below:
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Rendering of services

Services have been provided;

It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

the relevant amount of revenue and costs
can be measured reliably.

(b)  Sale of goods

The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

The Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

The relevant amount of revenue and costs
can be measured reliably.

(c) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised besed on the time

that other parties occupy cash of the Group using

the effective interest method.

Revenue from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Airport Fee

Airport fee represents Civil Aviation Development
Fund (the “Airport Fee”) which is recognised
when the related services are rendered to
the outbound passengers departing from the
airport. The charge rates of the Airport Fee are
regulated by Civil Aviation Administration of China
(“CAAC”). Revenue is recognised according to
the authorised charge rates attributable to the
Group collected from outbound passengers.

(e)  Franchise income

The Company grants the right to certain
operators to operate retail, catering and
advertising businesses in Haikou Meilan Airport
and charges them for franchise fee. The franchise
fee is charged at the higher of certain percentage
of sales generated by franchisee or on a specified
minimum amount on a monthly basis and is
recognised as franchise income accordingly.

2.21 Government Grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary or non-
monetary assets from the government to the Group at
nil consideration, including fire alarm system subsidies.

A government grant is recognised when the
conditions attached to it can be complied with and the
government grant can be received. For a government
grant in the form of transfer of non-monetary assets,
it is measured at fair value; if the fair value is not
reliably determinable, the grant is measured at nominal
amount.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised
as deferred income, and evenly amortised to profit or
loss over the useful life of the related asset. Government
grants measured at nominal amounts are recognised
immediately in profit or loss for the current period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Government Grants (Continued)

For government grants related to income, where
the grant is a compensation for related expenses or
losses to be incurred by the Group in the subsequent
periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income,
and included in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognised; where the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses
already incurred by the Group, the grant is recognised
immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
calculated and recognised based on the differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount (temporary differences).
Deferred tax asset is recognised for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance
with the tax law. No deferred tax asset or deferred
tax liability is recognised for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities due to a transaction other than a business
combination, which affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At the balance
sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences, deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference,
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. When it is probable
that the temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and associates will be reversed in the
foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be
available in the future against which the temporary
differences can be utilised, the corresponding deferred
tax assets are recognied.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

° The deferred taxes are related to the same tax
payer within the group and same fiscal authority;
and

° That tax payer has a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.

Lease

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance
lease.

(a) Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease, and are either capitalised as
part of the cost of related assets, or charged as
an expense for the current period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FESiHEMIFEEET®)
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.23 Lease (Continued) 2.23 ME(
(b)  Finance leases b) BEHE

The leased asset is recognised at the lower of NHEEEEN A A BEEGEBEERN
the fair value of the leased asset and the present HEMNEEMEPREEEATEAE
value of the minimum lease payments. The EMAREE HABEMAREER
difference between the recorded amount of the HEREAENRBLHANERIERR
leased asset and the minimum lease payments HRAREER  EHEHANERERF
is accounted for as unrecognised finance charge ROEEE o R E N BN AR
and is amortised using the effective interest RAEBERENRBEERRIEMNR
method over the period of the lease. A long-term FI7R o

payable is recorded at the amount equal to the
minimum lease payments less the unrecognised
finance charge.

2.24 Segment information 2.24 7 EFE.E
The Group identify operating segments based on NEBEARNEBAERLEE - BERER - WEH
the internal organisation structure, management HHERKEBERELEDE - UEEDE A
requirement and internal reporting, then disclose AERBEEmEDHWIRESFEE

segment information of reportable segment which is
based on operating segment.

An operating segment is the component of the Group K B R IE AR B AR R B T 5§
that all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) that HAE D - (1)ZAKE D BERER E)EEF
component can earn revenues and incur expenses EERA  BEER  QAXEEEREREN
from ordinary activities; (2) whose operating results EHRHEZ AR D L ZEMRR - LURER
are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management HEEEER STEEEE  QAKEEH
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to ISR AR EB D HY B TS ARN ~ A8 AR FN3IR
the segment and assess its performance, and (3) for EREZEBESTER - MESZELE D
which the information of financial position, operating EBEBALIB B R - I BR R —EIEH
results and cash flows is available to the Group. If two 7 - AlAT &t A —EEEDES -

or more operating segments have similar economic
characteristics, and certain conditions are satisfied,
they may be aggregated into a single operating
segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Changes in significant accounting policies

In 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued eight
accounting standards, including CAS 39 “Fair Value
Measurement”, CAS 40 “Joint Arrangement”, CAS 41
“Disclosure of Interest in Other Entity”, CAS 2 “Long-
term Equity Investment” (revised), CAS 9 “Employee
Benefit” (revised), CAS 30 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (revised), CAS 33 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” (revised) and CAS 37 “Presentation of
Financial Instruments” (revised). Except for CAS 37
“Presentation of Financial Instruments” (revised) being
effective for the preparation of financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014, other new or
revised standards are effective on 1 July 2014 and
the Ministry of Finance encourages companies listed
outside the Mainland China to early adopt these new or
revised standards.

As the Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group has already adopted
the CAS 39 “Fair Value Measurement”, CAS 40 “Joint
Arrangement”, CAS 9 “Employee Benefit” (revised),
CAS 30 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
(revised), and CAS 33 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” (revised), which were issued before 24
March 2014 (the date of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
being approved) in preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The remaining three new standards, including CAS
2 “Long-term Equity Investment” (revised), CAS 37
“Presentation of Financial Instruments” (revised),
and CAS 41 “Disclosure of Interest in Other Entity”
are adopted in preparing the consolidation financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,
which has no significant impact on the Group’s result
or financial position.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting
estimates and key judgments applied based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable.

2.25

2.26
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial period are outlined

below:

(a)

Fixed assets

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its fixed assets. This estimate is
made based on management’s experience in
operating airport and the conditions of the fixed
assets. It could change significantly as a result of
actual use and improvements. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful
lives are shorter than previously estimated lives.

Management determines the residual values
of its fixed assets based on all relevant factors
(including the use of the current scrap value in
current market as a reference value) at the end of
each financial period.

Impairment of financial assets

Whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of financial
assets may not be recoverable, the Group will
test whether financial assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in Note 2(9). In making its
judgment, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources including discounted cash
flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions
(Continued)

©

Airport Fee refund rates

Civil Aviation Development Fund is a fee charged
to passengers taking domestic flights in the
PRC. Pursuant to the “Interim Measures for the
Collection, Use and Management of the Civil
Aviation Development Fund” promulgated by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC, effective from 1
April 2012 till 31 December 2015, the former Civil
Airport Construction Fee was superseded by the
Civil Aviation Development Fund, the charge rate
remains the same.

According to the “Notice Regarding the Grant of
Subsidy of Civil Aviation Development Fund to
Haikou Meilan Airport Company Limited” issued
by CAAC on 11 April 2012, the refund of Civil
Airport Construction Fee granted to the Group
was correspondingly superseded by the refund of
Civil Aviation Development Fund, the refund rate
should be determined by CAAC. Given the nature
and refund method of both funds are same, the
actual refund rate of the airport fee is 48% since
2008 and the Group did not receive any notice
from relevant authorities in respect of change
of the refund rate during the current period, the
Group continued to recognise the refund of Civil
Aviation Development Fund at a rate of 48%.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies = FE@FHEKXMEEHEE &
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.26 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

(Continued)

(d) Income taxes

There are many transactions and events for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business.
Significant judgment is required from the Group
in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such

206 EEEL A AL (&)

(d) e

BURNERELTE -

differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

3 Taxation

(1) The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to

the Group are set out below:

BiIR

EZEi G RERSR KRR (E)

(1) mEBEBHEEHBERABX

EEFHNREEHT  REXHMNE
BEHRERBRIEBFETEEME
ERHRE AR EHERE - A
SEFTEELERHE - MRELH
BEENREREARERIAKRD
SHFEEZR  ZEEMEEH LR
RARRE YR SR E R TELH

FIRAATR ¢

Category Tax base Tax rate
HE BRI B=
Corporate income tax (“CIT”) Taxable income 25%

ERFH
Value added tax (“VAT”) (Note)

IRE(AE)

Business tax (Note)

BEB(HEE)

City maintenance and construction fee
YR T 4 R AR

Education Surcharge

e e=E=0pill

Local Education surcharge

i 75 208 B M N

JE 4R P15 58

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is
calculated using the taxable sales amount
multiplied by the applicable tax rate less
deductible input VAT of current period)

JE AT 1B (B 5E (FE AN TR SRR FE AN T 8H S BB SR LA B
BEARE B A FF RN A E AT R R H)

Taxable turnover amount

FEMN T & K58

VAT and business tax paid/payble

BMRIBET S RN B

VAT and business tax paid/payble

AR IR ET A E XTI

VAT and business tax paid/payable

BRI ET A S X B R

6% or 17%

5%

5% or 7%

3%

2%
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3 Taxation (Continued)

(1) (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to the “Circular on the Pilot Plan for
Levying Value Added Tax in Place of Business
Tax” (Cai Shui No.110, 2011) and “Circular on
the Pilot Practice of Levying VAT in Place of
Business Tax for the Transportation Industry
and Some Modern Service Industries in the
Country” (Cai Shui No.37, 2013) jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation, and “Circular on
Issuing the Pilot Practice of Levying VAT in
Place of Business Tax in Hainan Province”
(Qiong Fu Ban No.86, 2013) issued by the
General Office of the People’s Government
of Hainan Province, revenue from the
aeronautical and freight releted service of the
Group are subject to VAT since 1 August 2013
and the applicable tax rate is 6% and 17%.

Except for aforementioned, revenue from other
businesses of the Group is subject to Business
Tax, and the applicable tax rate is 5%.

(2) Preferential tax treatments and approaval
document

Pursuant to the relevant tax regulations of the PRC, the
Company was entitled to the exemption of CIT from
2004 to 2008, and 50% deduction of CIT from 2009
to 2013. The tax preference treatment was expired
on 31 December 2013, thus the effective tax rate of
the Company for the year is 25% (2013: 12.5%). The
applicable tax rate of other group companies for the
year is 25% (2013: 25%).
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014 EMERE R25% (20135 [F -
12.5%) o AEBRNEM A A HR2014FE K
RREEMEHRTE R25%(2013F X -
25%) °



—

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

B BHRREAERME

(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1) EXED

31 December

2014

2014%12A31H

31 December
2013

2013%12H31H

BERS
BITER

Cash on hand
Cash at bank

134,357

1,884,423,030

314,078

2,998,096,859

1,884,557,387

2,998,410,937

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s deposit in
HNA Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“HNA Group Finance”,
a related party) amounted to RMB199,358,573 (31
December 2013: RMB623,518,437). HNA Group

Finance is a non-bank financial institution. R o
(2) Accounts receivable (2) FEWHR

31 December

2014

2014512A31H

R2014F12A318  FHABEE FEME
BE AR AR ([EMER])HRITER
A AR #199,358,573 7T (20134 12 A 31
B :623,518,43770) ' AR AIERTTE R

31 December
2013

20135 12H31H

Accounts receivable by nature B BRF IR 18 & >

— from aeronautical services —RE R MZE KA 97,186,683 72,052,916
— from non-aeronautical services — 2R B R IEM Z= A 27,354,656 14,185,351
124,541,339 86,238,267

Less: provision for bad debts B AR (3,839,026) (4,116,149)
120,702,313 82,122,118

Accounts receivable by customers EUREERILZRF S

— from third parties —BRE=FERX 78,692,001 63,342,012
Less: provision for bad debts W AR (3,839,026) (3,645,143)
74,852,975 59,696,869

— from related parties — FE UK RA RS 7 BR 3R 45,849,338 22,896,255
Less: provision for bad debts B AR - (471,006)
45,849,338 22,425,249

120,702,313 82,122,118

Credit terms granted to customers are determined on
an individual basis with a general range from 1 to 3
months.
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2014, the ageing of accounts
receivable is analysed as follows:

u

SO HRRITE ME®)

(2) JEWERF (&)
(@) MEWBRZIZE AR B EARBRE ST M
T

31 December
2013
2013412 A31H

31 December
2014
2014%12A31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 104,971,482 69,513,807
91 to 180 days 91XZE180K 5,790,303 3,432,256
181 to 365 days 181K ZE365K 6,200,229 1,898,418
Over 365 days 365K A 7,579,325 11,393,786

124,541,339 86,238,267

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has
performed an impairment assessment on
accounts receivable from third parties on an
individual basis, based on which accounts
receivable of RMB5,142,852 (31 December 2013:
RMB8,174,412) are past due but not impaired.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is
as follows:

(b) H2014F12A31H @ AEBEREE
RIE A BIRE AL = 75 AR ER
BANITRE S - P EKEERSRE
AR #5,142,852 70 (20134 12 A 31
H: AR#8,174,41270) E @B KR
STIRBEREE - REARABHHNERER
DT :

31 December
2013
2013412 A31H

31 December
2014
2014%F12A31H

91 to 180 days 91K E180K 885,800 1,680,000
181 to 365 days 181 KXE365K 2,340,000 -
Over 365 days 365K A 1,917,052 6,494,412

5,142,852 8,174,412

The balances aged within 365 days are related
to a number of customers for whom there is no
recent history of default, which are expected
to be recovered within one year. Those aged
over 365 days are to be settled through CAAC
Settlement Center, the management is under
negotiation of the payment schedule with the
counter parties.

365K LA BR e #) 3R I8 A& FE UK 4L 3B
AW EIERGEHEMNE =7 - HHAE
—E R E o 365K LA _E IR Bk ) R IE
FTEZEREZARMBEER LR B
B ARIESEEERNE = 28
SRR EWRIE ©

AMERRN AR AR

—E—NFEFR
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2014, accounts receivable
from related parties of RMB9,381,487 (31
December 2013: RMB4,186,732) are past due
but not impaired. The aging analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

)

JEW IR K ()

(©

R2014F12 8318 - EUREIE 5 IR
AR #9,381,487 7L (20134 12 A 31
B : AR%4186,73270) B#H{B R
BRTIRREERE - ZEEWRFKER
U

31 December
2013
2013%12A31H

31 December
2014
2014%12H31H

91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 3,554,612 1,615,571
181 to 365 days 181 KE365K 3,679,401 1,815,818
Over 365 days 365K E 2,147,474 855,343

9,381,487 4,186,732

The balances aged within 365 days are related
to a number of related parties for whom there is
no recent history of default, which are expected
to be recovered within one year. For those
aged over 365 days, the management is under
negotiation of the payment schedule with the
related parties.

The movement of provision for bad debts is as
follows:

31 December

365K A R BR e #) TR IE /R B W Lk 3B
EWERARSERT - BHAE
—FAURE - 365K A L iR # IR
RIERH RN BT RRXNT
FEH) JEURIR

B LB SR B AR B BB R
o :

31 December

2013 Additions Written off 2014

20134 20144

12A31H 30 %48 12A31H

Provision for bad debts fEAEXEE 4,116,149 443,883 (721,006) 3,839,026

148 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB T2

(Continued)
(3) Advances to suppliers (3) TETHIE
The ageing of advances to suppliers is analysed as AN FIRRERSTAT
follows:
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
2014%12H831H 2013412 H31H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
S8 SATELHI(%) S HEFELLH(%)
Within 1 year —FE PR 1,644,333 93.25% 1,166,867 97.71%
1to 2 years —R|—4F 118,990 6.75% 27,355 2.29%
1,763,323 100.00% 1,194,222 100.00%
(4) Other receivables (4) EMEKF
The ageing of other receivables is analysed below: HAth R BGRERER D AT T -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A31H  2013%12H31H
Within 90 days 90K A 1,710,860 342,036
91 to 180 days 91 KZE180K 147,465 813,328
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 1,155,926 1,087,018
Over 365 days 365K A 1,546,680 1,444,059
4,560,931 3,686,441
As at 31 December 2014, the balances aged over R2014F12 8318 + ANE B E b UGRER
365 days are related to a number of related parties for BB AB65 R R 2 & B 5 AR EK
whom there is no recent history of default, which are B ER AT FER U MR o il fE WK
considered to be recoverable. No provision was made R FHREIRER -

against these receivables.
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(Continued)

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

(5) Other current asstes (5) HMuEE&zE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H31H 201312 H31H
VAT recoverable R ER 784,037 1,164,395
Prepayment of CIT TR EREH - 30,196
Prepayment of other taxes and levies TR E M E 1,795 1,795
785,832 1,196,386

(6) Long-term receivables (6) EAEU

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%F12H831H 2013F12H31H
Entrusted loan ZREEK 380,000,000 =

As at 31 December 2014, the Group offers a two-
year entrusted loan of RMB380,000,000 to Hainan
Haidao Commercial Management Co. Ltd. (“Haidao
Commercial”, a related party) through HNA Group
Finance which is at fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5IzERRIN - £ 2BEL A ARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB T2

(Continued)

(7) Long-term equity investments (7)

Associates — Unlisted companies

RHRBRE
BRI LT A]

Movement in current year

KEZHEE
Share of (loss)/
profit of Other
31 December  investees under movement 31 December
2013 equity method of equity 2014
(Note 4(34)) (Note 4(26))
2013F  REDERE Hip s 201445
124318 o)editad ) 128318
(Hi#t9(34) (Hrztm(26)
Haikou Decheng Industrial and /B OEHE £ %R
Development Co., Ltd. BR AR
(“Haikou Decheng”) (FE0Es ) 30,874,651 (353) = 30,874,298
Hainan Airlines Airport Holding ~ J8#itig 1=k (£ )
Group Company Limited ARRA(DEMES
(“HNA Airport Holdings”) (Note) ~ #2R% | ) (A7) 1,096,864,495 31,472,991 (31,064,922)  1,097,272,564

1,127,739,146

31,472,638 (31,004,922)  1,128,146,862

There is no significant restriction on the long term
equity investments.

Note: The place of incorporation and business of
HNA Airport Holdings and its subsidiaries (the
“HNA Airport Group”) are in PRC, and there is
no business relationship between the Group
and HNA Airport Group.

AEERBECE AT FHEEBERESTE

EEARS -
MIEE - ARESEREE T QR (/MK

BRREEDHEMLREEEE
M E R E R - AT
R -

BMERBNBRAR 151
—E—NFEFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (435I ERRSN - 5B E R A A RETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

(Continued)
(8) Fixed assets 68) EFEEZE
Machinery Office
Buildings and and Motor equipment
structures equipment vehicles and others Total
EEREEY WERE ERTE BOREREM &t
Cost [R{E
31 December 2013 2013128310 1,209,238,913 89,783,278 77,968,272 68,936,940 1,445,927,403
Increases in current year AEL
Acquisition BE = = 10,605,741 4,228,418 14,834,159
Transferred from constructions ERTREA
in progress 2,456,434 = = 6,766,192 9,222,626
Decreases in current year KERD
Disposal and other decrease REREMRE D (9,089,121)  (4,922,631) (97,152)  (4,338,845) (18,447,749
31 December 2014 2014F12A31H 1,202,606,226 84,860,647 88,476,861 75,692,705 1,451,536,439
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
31 December 2013 2013%12A31H (286,940,665) (8,166,561)  (23,413,798)  (40,774,458) (359,295,482)
Increases in current year REE
Depreciation charged iR (31,548,828) (12,688,511)  (7,555,007)  (6,858,596) (58,650,942)
Decreases in current year KERD
Disposal and other decrease REREME D 1,031,183 1,497,261 82,287 4,113,994 6,724,725
31 December 2014 2014F12A318 (317,458,310)  (19,357,811)  (30,886,518)  (43,519,060) (411,221,699)
Net book value ERER
31 December 2014 2014%12A31H 885,147,916 65,502,836 57,590,343 32,073,645 1,040,314,740
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 922,298,248 81,616,717 54,554,474 28,162,482 1,086,631,921

(a)  Depreciation of RMB57,973,925 and RMB677,017
have been charged to operating costs and general
and administrative expenses for the year (2013:
RMB50,926,506 and RMB768,449), respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(8) Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Fixed assets held under finance lease

As at 31 December 2014, fixed assets with
a carrying amount of RMB97,421,373 (cost
of RMB121,350,558) (31 December 2013:
carrying amount of RMB118,767,187, cost of
RMB125,128,205) (Note 10) are held under a
sale and finance leaseback arrangement, which is
analysed as follows:

BOHE|RKRIAE M)

8) BlEEE#&)

(b) FEHARETEE
MR2014F12 8318 » KAEBRARQ
RIBREEE AR 97,421,373 L (R
B8 AR® 121,350,558 7T ) H) & F &
EANERHERMEMAE S NAA
(2013412 A31H : REEEAA
R#118,767,18770 ' REA AR
125,128,2057T) (MizE+) - A8 O

LU

Accumulated Carrying

31 December 2014 Cost depreciation amount
201412 A31H : R{E Z5HinE REEE
Machinery and equipment 2R 79,089,139 (15,533,238) 63,555,901
Motor vehicles B T A 38,543,679 (7,540,221) 31,003,458
Office equipment and others ¥ 2s& {5 M H Ath 3,717,740 (855,726) 2,862,014
121,350,558 (23,929,185) 97,421,373

Accumulated Carrying

31 December 2013 Cost depreciation amount
2013128318 : JRIE 25t E FRmE(E(E
Machinery and equipment 2RI RS 82,866,786 (4,015,544) 78,851,242
Motor vehicles Eg T A 38,543,679 (2,131,544) 36,412,135
Office equipment and others ¥ A& & E th 3,717,740 (213,930) 3,503,810
125,128,205 (6,361,018) 118,767,187

The international terminal building and its ancillary
projects, have been completed and put into use
in 2013. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of these assets are RMB229,093,758
(cost of RMB236,748,630) (31 December 2013:
carrying amount of RMB234,834,912, cost of
RMB236,748,630), whose ownership certificates
were in the process of application (Note 8(6)(a)).

(c) ZAREE KA H BB L2 K E R
TREBHDR2013FERAFEA - B
201412 A1 HZBH TIRMNEE
REEEEBELS A ARK229,098,758
T (FEE : AR #236,748,630 7T )
(2013512 A31H : FEEBELHAA
R#234,834,9127C * REAARE
236,748,6307T) © EFE EEREER &
fEg3E AR (M EE/\(B)(a)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FATSRER AT RE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(9) Construction in progress

9) #HZLKE

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

Including:
Transfer to Interest
31 Increasein fixed assets 31 Accumulated  caplisation Interest
December current incurrent  December interest incurrent  caplisation
2013 year year 2014 caplisation year rate
B AE pie:3
2013F T REEL N14F  BHERER EHER EHER
12A31H £ EEgE  12A%1A  (LEHEE  EAGEE  ER(E
Terminal complex project GAE - 98,979,369 - 98979369 64,639,141 64,639,141 6.17%
West Gallery expansion project BRBRARETR - 16,320,707 - 16320707 16,320,707 16,820,707 7.34%
Renovation of the first-phase HEEREYELR
terminal departure hall 471,778 1,179,432 - 1,651,206 - -
Terminal Tower renovation mkBRERREETR 1,157,591 200,446 - 1,368,087 - -
QOperation management platform EfTEET2EH 763,586 486,826 - 1250412 - -
Equipment operation monitoring system  {&Ef 798,000 - - 798,000 - -
Terminal tower cap and the roof MugERIR
waterproofing maintenance 616,006 172,044 = 788,050 = =
Traffic management and control systems RBERE REZZH 1,066,763 1,751,608 (2,818,371) - - -
Emergency center renovation project £ HMLMETR - 1475125 (1475,125) = = =
Security channel improvement project  RiR@BEAETR - 981,309 (981,309) - - -
Navigation display screen transformation B Uik 1412084 2,375,567  (3,787,631) = = =
Others it 486,527 1,071,211 (160,190) 1,397,548 = =
6,772,310 124993644 (9222,626) 122,543,328 80,959,848 80,959,848
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RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(10) Intangible assets

BOHE|RKRIAE M)

(10) X EE

Land use right

I Hb {5 FR
Cost [R{E
31 December 2014 and 201412 318 &
31 December 2013 201312 A31H 224,715,283

Accumulated amortisation
31 December 2013
Amortisation in current year

EE:
20135 12A31H
A B

(39,061,853)
(8,971,764)

31 December 2014

2014512 A31H

(43,033,617)

Carrying amount BREDF R
31 December 2014 201412 HA31H 181,681,666
31 December 2013 2013%F 12 A31H 185,653,430

(@)  Amortisation expenses of RMB3,971,764 (2013: (@)
RMB3,500,094) were charged to operating costs

in the current year.

(b) The international terminal building and its (b)
ancillary projects have been completed and
put into use in 2013. As at 31 December 2014,
the relevant LUR amounted to RMB43,932,520
(cost of RMB45,078,000) (31 December 2013:
carrying amount of RMB44,741,094, cost of
RMB45,078,000), of which the ownership
certificates were in the process of application

(Note 8(6)(a)).

AEEEFEENEHESBAAR
#3,071,7647C (20134 & : AR
3,500,0947T) ' 2REFT AZEEK AR ©

ANEBE KA A A B R A uh 1 K A8
TRBBEER2013F/AFER - B
2014512 A31 Bz LI2 B T HbfE
AEREEEBEN R ARK43,932,520
T (FEE: ARA45,078,000 7T )
(2013%F12A31RH : REEENAA
R®44,741,004T - REAAR
45,078,0007T ) + H T A EE &
e ER (HENG) @) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BIEREMTE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(10) Intangible assets (Continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2014, LUR with a carrying
amount of RMB8,717,183 (original cost of
RMB11,852,138) (31 December 2013: carrying
amount of RMB8,965,065, original cost of
RMB11,852,138) was pledged as collateral
for the Group’s long-term borrowings of
RMB1,529,750,000(31 December 2013:
RMB1,524,225,000) (Note 4(21)).

As at 31 December 2014, LUR with a carrying
amount of RMB70,768,483 (original cost of
RMB86,905,771) (31 December 2013: nil) was
pledged as collateral for the Haikou Meilan
long-term borrowings of RMB291,000,000 (31
December 2013: nil) (Note 8(4)(f)).

The carrying amount of LUR is analysed as
follows:

g

SO HRKRITE M)

(10) HEIEEE

(©

R2014F12A8381H > FEEBES
AR®8717183 T (REB A AR
# 11,852,138 7T ) (2013 % 12 A 31
AH: REMBMEAARKKS965,065
T RE A AR 11,852,138 L)
BT ERE  EAITEARKERN
1,529,750,0007T #) £ T K HAfE F A9 K
(2013512 A31H : .TEARE
#91,524,225,0007t) (MizEMH(21)) °

R2014%F12A831H @ EEEEAA
R # 70,768,483 L ([RE B A R
86,905,771t ) (2013412 A31 8 :
)N TR EREEOXMA
R # 291,000,000 7T &) £ [F] & BB f& X
FIEY (2013F12 A31 8 = &) (M
EINGOIDE

T+ fsh R A IR PR AR M R K2 SR PR 9 AT 40
T

31 December
2013
2013%12A31H

31 December
2014
201412831 H

Inside Mainland China — LR AR B i —
between 10 to 50 years 10%/504F 56,623,807 58,233,962
over 50 years 50F A 125,057,859 127,419,468
181,681,666 185,653,430
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RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(11) Deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

Deferred income tax assets — before offset

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

(11) BT FFH EE

(@) REBIFHELFHEE

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

20145128318 2013%F12H31H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax temporary
assets differences assets differences
BEREH A RS A
BE TRz BE TRt ER
Provision for asset impairment BEREESE 959,757 3,839,026 848,786 3,395,143
Accrued allowance for
directors, supervisors and
key management BRRMER A 162,686 650,744 - -
Accrued termination benefits BIRERER 824,334 3,297,336 1,150,899 4,603,596
Accrued airline subsidy expense B FREHIR 3,725,000 14,900,000 2,550,000 10,200,000
Government grants related to BBk 8
fire alarm system 2,967,500 11,870,000 - -
Accrued remuneration for directors,  TBIRES - EE .
supervisors and key management SRERAEME 4,517,239 18,068,956 4,517,239 18,068,956
13,156,516 52,626,062 9,066,924 36,267,695
Hep
Deferred income tax asset to be BRI ER(E16F)
recovered within 12 months [EER 668,759 326,565
Deferred income tax asset to be BRI FRERR
recovered after more than 12 months &% 12,487,757 8,740,359
13,156,516 9,066,924

As at 31 December 2014, no deferred income tax

liabilities is recognised (31 December 2013: nil).

(b) T2014F12831H » AEBEEIELRT
BHAaE(2013F128318 : &) -

ERERBRHERAT
it

—=
—=
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(12) Other non-current assets

SO HRKRITE M)

(12) A IR EE

2014%12A31H

31 December
2013
201312 H31H

31 December
2014

Advance for the terminal

BN EE TIRIRE

expansion project (Note a) BRES (Kita) 361,534,570 157,534,570

Advance for the terminal TEfSUhRTAR A BB TR
complex project (Note b) (KtaEb) 468,302,800 =
Advance for other projects HEmEM TR 11,390,824 1,920,000
841,228,194 159,454,570

(@

(b)

Up to 31 December 2014, the Group has paid
RMB643,361,200 to Haikou Meilan in connection
with the terminal expansion project (31 December
2013: RMB439,361,200). The international
terminal building and its ancillary projects, which
were completed and put into use in 2013, with
a total cost of RMB281,826,630 (31 December
2013: RMB281,826,630) were transferred to
fixed assets. Details of the terminal expansion
project are set out in Note 8(6)(a).

Up to 31 December 2014, the Group has
paid RMB502,643,028 to Yangpu Guoxing
Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”) in
connection with the terminal complex project (31
December 2013: nil), of which RMB34,340,228
(831 December 2013: nil) were capitalised in
construction in progress. Details of the terminal
complex project are set out in Note8(6)(b).
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HZE2014F12831H * AEE R
MEFOEBEMBERETRAE
HE & A AREE643,361,2007T(2013
F12A31 8 : AR #¥ 439,361,200
JL)  HARBEBMEEREEIREER
2013F ERITWIRAFLA + KAA
A R % 281,826,630 7T (20134 12 A
318 : AR#¥281,826,6307T) B4 #
ZETEE - MUEEE TN
BRELRHEE/\(6)a) °
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(7% B 8 | ) B2 26 5 B B 4 35 i A
RAEBREEMABENIERAARE
502,643,028 7 (2013412 A 31 H
#) REIAEESHLEZERIRAR
#34,340,228 71 (2013128318 :
) o AT AR IRNFABRER
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AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

(Continued)

(13) Accounts payable

Notes to the consolidated financial statements P4

The ageing of accounts payable based on their

recording dates is analysed as follows:

SOt RRIEE M sk &)

(13) FETTREL

FERNBRFIRE AR B IR R D ATIA T -

31 December
2014
2014%F12H31H

31 December
2013
2013%12A31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 9,249,894 9,732,312
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 2,478,336 1,492,839
over 180 days 180K 3,505,858 785,473
15,234,088 12,010,624
(14) Advances from customers (14) TEH KA

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014512H31H  2013%12A31H
User fees of VIP room BEEEFHE 5,796,427 4,628,316

Consideration of land use rights T Hb A AR E K
(Note 8(6)(a-1)) (Bt (6)(a-1)) 3,128,973 3,128,973
Takeoff and landing fees R E 364,871 1,677,813
9,290,271 9,435,102
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BIE R (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(15) Employee benefits payable

(15) FERTBE T 7B

31 December
2014
2014%12831H

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

31 December
2013
201312 H31H

Short-term employee benefits payable JRE 1< 52 A 5 B 22,675,115 15,511,972
Defined contribution plans payable R ERTFE 52,176 37,590
Termination benefits payable FE BEREF
(Current portion) (—FRNEEBOE D) 1,392,107 5,230,327
24,119,398 20,779,889
(a)  Short-term employee benefits payable (a) FZEIFH
31 December 31 December
2013 Additions Reductions 2014
2013%F 20145
124318 RELZN KERD 128310
Wages and salaries, bonuses T% - %% 28
and allowances FERs 13,661,977 81,964,439  (74,773,860) 20,852,556
Staff welfare BITEMNE - 3,594,140 (3,594,140) -
Social security contributions HERBE 7,020 3,645,592 (3,634,327) 18,285
Including: Medical insurance He: BERRE 6,445 3,187,826 (3,178,726) 15,545
Work injury insurance TIERRE - 213,146 (212,162) 984
Maternity insurance EERBE 575 244,620 (243,439) 1,756
Housing funds FEAES 480,515 5,645,456 (5,759,628) 366,343
Labor union and employes TeRENBTHE
education funds = 1,362,460 1,908,347 (1,832,876) 1,437,931
15,511,972 96,757,974 (89,594,831) 22,675,115
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AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(15) Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(b)

(c)

SOt RRIEE M sk &)

(15) FE1THE T # BN (%)

Defined contribution plans payable (b) REEFEE
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
20145128318 2013%F12H31H
Amount Ending Amount Ending
payable balance payable balance
ER&E BRERE N2 RS
Basic social pension security  EAEEZRE 8,073,806 39,040 6,666,516 24,801
Unemployment insurance KERKRE 474,641 13,136 350,271 12,789
8,548,447 52,176 7,016,787 37,590
Termination benefits payable (c) JETFREF
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

2014%12H31H 2013%12A31H

Termination benefits payable FEAS R A F 3,665,150 5,230,327
Less: Termination benefits payable i : 3Il;/R A& HAFE S
over 1 year presented B THEH e —F
in long-term employee LA A R 1@ )
benefits payable (2,273,043) -
1,392,107 5,230,327

BMERERNHERAR 161
—E—NFEFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIEERASN - £ 28 E (A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(16) Taxes payable

(16) EXHE

31 December
2014
2014%12831H

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

31 December
2013
201312 H31H

CIT payable &R (B PS5 38,206,004 11,168,629
Business tax payable ERZEEET 3,482,692 3,180,037
Property tax payable R EER 2,145,213 2,141,618
Individual income tax payable FEREAFTSHE 142,190 155,534
Others HAith 712,597 93,349

44,688,696 16,739,167

(17) Interest payable

(17) FE(TFIE

31 December
2014
2014%12831H

31 December
2013
2013412 A31H

Interest of long-term borrowings with

7 BEA B RBIER

repayment of interest and principal B
by instalment 670,293 2,000,096
Interest of corporate bonds NEESFFE 49,746,667 49,746,667
50,416,960 51,746,763
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(18) Dividends payable

(18) FETTARF

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

2014 2013
20145 E 2013F[E
Dividends payable of ordinary F AT I BARAEF
shares at the beginning of year 666,000 666,000
Add: Dividends payable of ordinary 0 s NG RE AN i AR AR
shares in current year (B1azPm28) «
(Note 4(28), 4(38)) H1a£Pm(38)) 79,953,100 111,678,194
Less: Dividends and withholding o ARF IR AT &
tax paid in current year RIDFE (80,119,600) (111,678,194)
Dividends payable of ordinary FARFE T BARALF
shares at the end of year 499,500 666,000
(19) Other payables (19) EMbEN
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
201461283180 2013%12HA31H
Guarantee deposit FEIRERES 26,605,819 17,443,549
Accrued airlines development subsidy T2 45 5 2w AL = 14,900,000 14,900,000
Construction fee payables N TEFRATIEERE 11,008,663 20,175,523
Airport ground services fee payable JF& <A Ui b T PR 7S 9,654,183 30,788,213
Alirline subsidy received on behalf KU 4R BE X 4,753,069 4,835,204
Accrued airlines increment subsidy TERMARIE EFEL K 3,204,506 6,737,499
Remuneration of senior management JE~H i 3R B <5 - 31,495,793
Others Hiy 44,110,115 34,815,095
114,236,355 161,190,876
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(20) Current portion of non-current liabilities
31 December

2014
2014%12A31H

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

(20) —FAZ BRI FEE B (&

31 December
2013
201312 H31H

—FABHNERBER

Current portion of long-term borrowings

(Note 4(21)) (HfeEry21)) 416,092,000 109,744,200
Current portion of long-term payables ~ —F A Z|HiR) K B FE T 5k
(Note 4(23)) (Kiatem(23)) 28,581,972 28,581,972
444,673,972 138,326,172
(21) Long-term borrowings 21) REIE

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014128318 2013%F12A31H
Secured borrowings IR (E K 1,662,055,758 1,798,545,718

Less: Current portion of long-term B —FREHRREER
borrowings (Note 4(20)) (B #£P1(20)) (416,092,000) (109,744,200)

1,245,963,758

1,688,801,518

As at 31 December 2014, the weighted average
interest rate of long-term borrowings is 5.86% per
annum (31 December 2013: 3.74%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

BOHE|RKRIAE M)

(21) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of
USD250,000,000, equivalent to RMB1,529,750,000,
(31 December 2013: USD250,000,000, equivalent
to RMB1,524,225,000) are secured by the 51%
interests in Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo
Transportation Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Cargo”) held by the
Company and the Group’s LUR with a carrying amount
of RMB8,717,183 (cost: RMB11,852,138). Interests
are payable every quarter and the principal is due for
repayment on installment before 30 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of
USD26,9938,475, equivalent to RMB165,173,074,
(31 December 2013: USD44,9983,475, equivalent to
RMB274,320,718) are secured by the 24.5% interests
in HNA Airport Holdings held by the Company. Interests
are payable every quarter and the principal is due for
repayment on installment before 26 January 2016.

(22) Corporate bonds

21) REIE (&)

M 2014 £ 12 A 31 B
JL 250,000,000 JT e A
1,529,750,000 7t (2013 12 A 31 A
% JT 250,000,000 7t *© T A A R
1,5624,225,0007T ) R B AR Bl FF A /G
MEMBERRESEEFSRETAR(ER
BE DS %REERERRASEEERE
EHARKES7TI7183 T (REAARE
11,852,13870 ) Z T {5 A& 1E B 18 (B
HEMA0)  FIBEEESIMN—K K&k
R2016F12 A30H AI H HAEE -

7

R2014F 12 A31H @ RITERET
26,993,4757T * & ARME165,173,0747T
(2013412 4318 : %&7044,993,4757C °
e ARY274,320,71870 ) = B AR Al #
EHEMMISIEN 24 5% EMEAE R - F
BEFEXN—IX  RNeEMN201651H26
HAloD BEE -

(22) L\E]EH

31 December  Amortisation in 31 December

2013 current year 2014
20134 20144
12A331H REHH 12A31H
Long-term corporate bonds REAEIES 792,365,219 1,253,811 793,619,030
Related information is as follows: BEFB@AEEOT :
Issuance
Par value Issuance date Maturity amount
& RITEH BHHR BITEHE
13 March 2012 7 years
Corporate bonds NEfES 800,000,000  201243A13H g3 800,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements Pq
(Continued)

(22) Corporate bonds (Continued)

Interest accrued of the bonds is analysed as below:

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

(22) REIES (&)

B ZEEFEDNAT

Interest accrued

FESTFIS

31 December Interest accrued Interest paid in 31 December
2013 in current year current year 2014
2013F12A31H REEEHHE AFEMFS  2014F12A31H
Corporate bonds REES 49,746,667 62,400,000 (62,400,000) 49,746,667
Pursuant to Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2011] No. 2082 KPR ESEEEELZESHRESNA
approved by the China Securities Regulatory [2011]20825% X AZff + 201293 A13H AR
Commission, the Company issued corporate bonds FIR L EBERT G ARETE LR
of RMB800,000,000 on Shanghai Stock Exchange on AARIMES @ BErT4E% A R¥800,000,000
13 March 2012. The maturity of the bonds is 7 years, T BEHRABTE o WEEEREBEFIR
the fixed interest rate is 7.8% per annum, interest is FE - BEEMNEREAE7.8% @ BENNBE—
repayable annually on 15 March of each of the years xR BB ASF3A158 - ASEEIEH

and the principal is repayable upon maturity. —RMERE -

(23) Long-term payables (23) KEfET#
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A31H 2013%F12H31H
Payable for finance lease AR ERHER 94,877,308 116,070,035

Less: finance lease payable due B —FRBENENRE

within one year (Note 4(20)) BER(HaE29(20)) (28,581,972) (28,581,972)
66,295,336 87,488,063
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB T2

(Continued)
(23) Long-term payables (Continued) (23) REFEN (&)
Payable for the finance lease is analysed as follows: FET & 7 & 7R AA 4B
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A31H 2013%12H31H
Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. BRI emEEER AR 94,877,308 116,070,035
Payable for finance lease represents the minimum ENMEHEFANEEREBABEEE
lease payments for the Group’s fixed assets held under W EEAENZKBINBRARERZHEEREN
finance leases less unrecognised finance charges (Note S (HEET) ©
10).
(24) Other non-current liabilities (24) At IETEE E
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H31H 2013%12H31H
Deferred income R
Government grants related to assets 3 7 AR 8 O RIS A B
— Fire alarm system —HIREHRIEES 11,870,000 12,870,000
— Inspection building — BB HIE B 2,900,000 -
Unrealised gains on sale and leaseback REIREEMEOIEZ
transaction 4,312,600 5,466,331

19,082,600 18,336,331
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(24) Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

31 December

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

(24) Bt IF BB 15 (&)

31 December

2013 Addition Amortisation 2014
2013% 20145
12A31H RERE REHH 128318
Government grants related to BT R
assets - Fire alarm system HEES 12,870,000 - (1,000,000) 11,870,000
Unrealised gains on sale and ARERERMAM
leaseback transaction 1Bi 5,466,331 = (1,153,731) 4,312,600
Government grants related to KRB EEEE
assets - Inspection building - 4,000,000 (1,100,000) 2,900,000
18,336,331 4,000,000 (3,253,731) 19,082,600
Government grants relevant to assets are amortised BHEEMBOBNFEBEEEEEAFR
over the expected useful life of the assets, i.e. 15 years 15FEF40F NS -
and 40 years.
Unrealised gains on sale and leaseback transaction are RERMBERERZGEKNATIEEETHERLIER
amortised over the depreciation period of the leased BB EEMITEEZHEI T -
assets.
(25) Share capital (25) IRAK
31 December 31 December
2014 and 2013 2014 and 2013
2014%F12A31B R 2014F12A31A K
2013F12A31H 2013%F12A31H
(Number of shares) (RMB)
(&0 (AR®T)
Shares held by domestic legal entities BAEAFER
(“holders of domestic shares”)
Haikou Meilan BOER 237,500,000 237,500,000
HNA Group Company Limited AMEBERAR]
(“HNA Group”) ([EMm&EE ) 3,512,500 3,512,500
Hainan Airlines Company Limited BRI AR AR
(“Hainan Airlines”) (MErmmzEl) 5,287,500 5,287,500
H-Shares held by foreign investors RN ETRYINE iR 226,913,000 226,913,000
473,213,000 473,213,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB T2

(Continued)
(26) Capital surplus (26) BEA L&
31 December 31 December
2013 Increase Decrease 2014
20135 20144
12A31H REENN KERD 128318
(Note)
(Biit)
Share premium PG (B 598,983,655 = = 598,983,655
Other capital surplus - HpEAATE—
Share of changes in equity other B AGENRIRE 166,048 = (31,064,922) (30,898,874)
than comprehensive income and BRRKRES WS
profit distribution of investments FE DB AN E
accounted for using e E
equity method
Others Hih 100,500,999 = = 100,500,999
699,650,702 - (31,064,922 668,585,780
31 December 31 December
2012 Increase Decrease 2013
2012F 2013
12A31H AREE M KERD 12A31H
Share premium RARE 598,983,655 - - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus - HtERRTE—
Share of changes in equity other AR ENTIRE
than comprehensive income and BB EGRE E
profit distribution of investments FE 2 B AN E
accounted for using fhEREE
equity method 166,048 - - 166,048
Others Hit 100,500,999 - - 100,500,999
699,650,702 - - 699,650,702

BMERROHERAR 169
—E—NFEFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (435I ERRSN - 5B E R A A RETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(26) Capital surplus (Continued)

Note:

The decrease in other capital surplus in
2014 is due to the further capital injection
to its subsidiary by HNA Airport Holdings,
an association of the Group. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets
of its subsidiary obtained and the amount
of the capital injection made by HNA Airport
Holdings is deducted from the capital surplus
of HNA Airport Holdings. As the Group has
accounted for the investment in HNA Airport
Holdings using equity method, the capital
surplus of the Group is decreased accordingly
based on its equity interests in HNA Airport
Holdings (Note 6(2)(b)) (2013: nil).

(27) Surplus reserve

SO B E|RIFEA M E )

(26) BN

it -

(27) BEAR

B (%)

014FEEMERNRNENR L
FERHREE R BEMEISIER
HETRAREMEE  AEELH
% B8 25 FT AT E’JEHHHXTE&éfEE
RIERRLEOIAEERER TR
Qﬁﬁaﬁ%ﬁﬁswm@ﬁéf
BENEERRERNRNTE - H
““Tim%%%kmé$ﬁﬁm
Do REBREREZERE QT
EL RO BEREEARASER
HEMEARRNE(MFES2) (b)) (2013
FEE) o

f&

31 December
2014 and 2013
20145F [ 20135
12A31H

Statutory surplus reserve

246,394,231
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(27)

(28)

Surplus reserve (Continued)

In accordance with the Company Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
should appropriate 10% of net profit for the year to
the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can
cease appropriation when the statutory surplus reserve
accumulated to more than 50% of the registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up for the loss or increase the paid-in capital
after approval from the appropriate authorities. No
statutory surplus reserve was appropriated in 2014
and 2013 as the Company’s statutory surplus reserve
has accumulated to more than 50% of its registered
capital.

Undistributed profits

As at 31 December 2014, included in the undistributed
profits, RMB2,265,427 is subsidiaries’ surplus reserve
attributable to the Company (31 December 2013:
RMB1,879,006), of which the appropriation made by
the subsidiaries for the year amounted to RMB388,773
(2013: RMB528,684).

N SOt BHRRIERME®)

(27)

(28)

T AA o\ F=E
HERINFE(

BE(FEAREMBERRE) RAAGE
2 AR ERFEFMNEN10%RIVEER
BRATES EEEATEBLES R EES
EMEARNS0% o A TERBAESEHER
AR RAEEE - SEE MR - BRNVEE
BHAEL 2FEEEINARARZRERD
50% A £+ ANRARIR2014F £ R 2013F &
HRRIEEBBATESD ©

K 72 BB

R2014F12 8318 » A EF BB E R
BREAFNTARBBRABRBARK
2,265,427 L (20183F 12 A31H : AR
1,879,0067T) * HF FRBAFEFIEN
FEREAANABBRAERARK388,773
JL(20134E : AR¥528,6847T) °

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 E
Dividends paid in current year B EIREIREMRFAE T 79,953,100 111,678,194

Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual
general meeting on 20 May 2014 and general meeting
on 3 November 2014, 2013 final dividend of RMB0.084
per share and 2014 interim dividend of RMB0.085
per share, amounting to RMB39,730,000 and
RMB40,223,100, respectively (2013: interim dividend
of RMB46,374,800), were declared and paid (Note
4(38)).

BIE2014F5 F20ARRAFRE AR
2014511 ASHIRR A EAE - AR AIM
PEBRRIRE2013FERAR S B &
014F EHR RS BRF - FRRF D 5
BARE0.08470 1 A R¥0.0857T ' ZE
1T 1D 473,213,000 51 & - » Bk 3%
R & M A A R ¥ 39,730,000 7T Al A R #&
40,223,1007C * & # AR ®79,953,1007T
(2013F E : JR32012F [ RN S X F
A K # 65,303,394 7T #2013 & £ # B3R
IR F A R%46,374,8007T © & HARK
111,678,1947T) * 52 R HIzEH(38) °



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements S ERREB M2

(Continued)
(29) Minority interests (29) LERE
Equity attributable to the minority shareholders of the FEBRETARDVHRERN DS E S
subsidiaries
31 December 31 December
Subsidiaries Minority shareholder 2014 2013
FRRER DERREME 20145128310 2013%F12A31H
Meilan Cargo Baixiang Logistic
EWREE BAYMRERAT] 15,338,334 16,174,625
Haikou Meilan International Airport Haikou Meilan
Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Advertising”)
BOERBEBEMESESEERAR([ERES]) BOXEM - 223
Haikou Meilan International Airport Duty Haikou Meilan
Free Shop Ltd. (“Meilan Duty Free Shop”)
AR OEHEEESRNmERA T BOERE
(MEmMEH]) (86,532) (83,591)
15,251,802 16,091,257
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AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

(Continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(30) Revenue and operating costs, general and

administrative expenses

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

(30) BEIWAFIZZK K - EHEEH

2014 2013
20145 2013F[E
Revenue EERA
Aeronautical: T
Passenger service charges RE RS E 190,328,469 174,616,062
Refund of Civil Aviation EMmBREESREMA
Development Fund 160,621,367 138,593,584
Fees and related charges on aircraft TR AR N AHRE U B
takeoff and landing 68,139,298 59,671,701
Ground handling service income I AR AS & 74,901,249 60,853,790
493,990,383 433,635,137
Non-aeronautical: IR T -
Franchise income pe s - I N 208,534,299 159,177,174
Freight and packaging income HERBERA 74,381,508 67,893,912
Rental income S WA 37,819,516 33,718,717
VIP room income BEEERA 19,843,357 29,067,147
Parking income EEIFWA 16,055,393 13,312,073
Other income E b Ug A 31,388,889 23,477,614
388,022,962 326,641,637
882,013,345 760,276,774

TEMERERR D BIR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(30) Revenue and operating costs, general and
administrative expenses (Continued)

Operating costs and general and administrative
expenses include the following items:

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

(30)

BEUATEERS  EEBA )

EERAREEERTIZHATHEEBK

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 F
Employee benefit expenses BEIwRNER 105,306,421 82,827,947
Depreciation of fixed assets EEBEENEER 58,650,942 51,694,955
Airport and logistic services fee 5 RN ARG RIS B 36,476,019 32,690,001
Contract labour expense Lreikie AB B 30,650,611 19,349,521
Utilities IKEE 24,210,306 24,104,441
Repairs and maintenance HIEE 14,337,936 11,029,376
Other taxes HibFi18 9,807,332 8,398,937
Packaging materials HAB K AR 4,725,667 25,583,397
Amortisation of land use rights + b {55 P A S 3,971,764 3,500,094
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center Rfl/s&EH L FEE 3,962,055 3,619,096
Audit fee = 3,260,000 1,730,119
Travelling expenses EIRE 2,284,703 1,692,060
Others Hh 83,199,721 67,185,926
380,843,477 323,205,870

(31) Taxes and surcharges (31) &XH 2 R0
2014 2013
201445 E 20135 %
Business tax BT 13,751,056 19,304,398
City maintenance and construction fee 3 i 4 =2 5 B 1,518,838 1,470,868
Educational surcharge B BKIM 1,134,381 1,095,828
16,404,275 21,871,094
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AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB T2

(Continued)
(32) Financial expenses — net (32) HEEH — F5E
2014 2013
2014FE 20135 [E
Interest expenses T B H 171,493,536 78,911,770
Including: Bank borrowings Hrh o SRITER 101,870,797 12,485,727
Coporate bonds NElESH 63,307,145 63,511,284
Finance leases MERE 6,315,594 2,914,759
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) PE N FBR (W) 7,924,283 (10,553,440)
Less: Interest and exchange losses B BB S R E H Ak
capitalisation =N (80,959,848) -
Interest income FEWA (15,968,485) (18,904,641)
Others EAfh 365,853 774,397
82,855,339 50,228,086
Interest expenses are analysed by the repayment terms FES HIRETEZR - AREELNRERE
of bank borrowings, corporate bonds and finance HESEOTIT
leases as follows:
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
2014%12A31R 2013%12A31H
Bank Coporate Finance Bank Coporate Finance
borrowings bonds leases  borrowings bonds leases

BITEN DAES BMERE RITER RAES BHEHE

Bank borrowings, corporate & —HEH
bonds and finance leases ~ EREZ WL

wholly repayable within B3 EHR

five years HEME 101,870,797 63,307,145 6,315,594 12,485,727 - 2,914,759
Corporate bonds wholly RE—HENH

repayable after five years ~ EREZEHES - - - - 63,511,284 -

101,870,797 63,307,145 6,315,594 12,485,727 63,511,284 2,914,759
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements S ERREB M2

(Continued)
(33) Provision for asset impairment (33) RERMERX
2014 2013
20145F E 20135 E
Provision for bad debts FEU R SRERERIB K 443,883 538,712
(34) Investment income (34) KE Wz
2014 2013
20145 E 20135 E
Share of profit of investees under AR ENRARERE
equity method — HNA Airport Holdings U35 — /8 515 A% 31,472,991 26,931,664
Share of profit of investees under BREZENRARERE
equity method — Haikou Decheng B —EOEH (353) =
Losses from disposal of equity interest R B RHIREREELANKRE
— Meilan Advertising BR-—ZBES (29,972) -
31,442,666 26,931,664
There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of TRER B P F A1 A Yk [B] ) B8 R PR ] o
investment income.
Investment income derived from unlisted companies AFEFEREBIFELMERANEERR A
for the period amounted to RMB31,442,666 (2013: AR¥31,442,6667T (2013F & - AR¥
RMB26,931,664). 26,931,6647T) °
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4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(35) Non-operating income

N SOt EBREBME®)

(35) EFIMEA

2014 2013

2014 E 2013F[E

Government grants (note) BAT B (A7) 8,175,000 2,447,000
Others HEih 848,869 181,132
9,023,869 2,628,132

Note: In 2014, the government grants, include the
amortisation of government grants related to
assets of RMB2,100,000, mainly for fire alarm
system and inspection building(note 4(24))
(2013: RMB900,000, mainly for the grants of
fire alarm system and the government grants
related to income of RMB6,075,000, mainly
for flight normal rate and throughput standard
achievement (2013: RMB1,547,000, mainly
for taxes grants and throughput standard
achievement.)

(36) Income tax expenses

B EE

2014FENHRITHEFT - RIEEE
ERENRBRANFENREEA
R#2,100,0007t * B AH &
{5 178 B R B e 8 4 B (P REH (24))
(20134 : AR %900,0007T
TEREM R B EERE) N
REWSHENBRTHEBAAR
¥6,075,0007C * TEAMILIES
EHMNELEEEH  BEE
STAEHIEZ (20135 E : ARK
1,547,0007T * F B R & EB MK
AR B S EFEMAL) -

(36) FiZHEH

2014 2013
20145 E 20134

Current income tax = P55 105,194,345 51,856,386
Deferred income tax EREFTIS TR (4,089,592) (5,194,244)
101,104,753 46,662,142
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R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements 4 &3tBfEHREB Mz 2)

(Continued)

(36) Income tax expenses (Continued) (36) At EFH (&)
The reconciliation from income tax calculated based HERE A EROTEERRAEATEX
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in AENMEHASAMSHERNT -

the consolidated financial statements to the income tax
expenses is as below:

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 E
Total profit IpEFEES] 438,705,619 393,773,507
Income tax expenses calculated BASEBEARETEN
at applicable tax rates Frisai 109,676,405 98,443,377
Effect of tax incentive HMEBENTE - (48,271,809)
Effect of change in the tax rates HEESFHHTE (2,071,250) (4,163,517)
Income not subject to tax FEFE T UIA (7,860,667) (3,366,458)
Costs and expenses not deductible TEMBRAKARER
for tax purposes 951,829 1,223,630
Under provision in previous year VAR E PT1SRLIE 408,436 2,796,919
101,104,753 46,662,142
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SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(37) Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by
dividing consolidated net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding:

SO HRRITE ME®)

(37) BRI 72

(@)

HEARFE WA RERE QR EERK
BEROA GHENBRIARR B EITE
SNE BRI T BGHE

2014 2013
20145 & 2013 &
Consolidated net profit attributable §EBR A 7L @A IR E
to ordinary shareholders of the SOHENE(ARET)
Company (RMB) 333,868,533 342,034,354
Weighted average number of KA RIBTEINE B
outstanding ordinary shares of 5 8 (L)
the Company (share) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) ERFRWE(ARETT) 0.71 0.72

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the consolidated net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company adjusted
based on the dilutive potential ordinary shares
by the adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. As there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year
(2013: nil), diluted earnings per share equals to
basic earnings per share.

MmETRKEARBEREEEL LA
RAZENEBR AR L RERRE
A GHFFE R A AR AR AT B
TENEBIROMEFESEGTE - B
REE AR T FEABREED
BELE(2013FE &) - At -
HRESRBEERERNTRIE -




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(38) Dividends

SO HRKRITE M)

(38) F&FI

2014 2013
20145 E 20134 &
2014 interim dividend of RMB0.085 B k20144 BRRS F =A%
per share (2013: RMB0.098 per share) AR#0.08570(2013FE
XA R%0.0987T) 40,223,100 46,374,800
Proposed 2014 final dividend ¥R2014F REAR A & /%
of RMBO0.091 per share AR#0.0917T(2013F E
(2013: RMBO0.084 per share) xR AR®0.0847T) 43,062,400 39,730,000
83,285,500 86,104,800

During the year, 2014 interim cash dividend of
RMBO0.085 per share, totaling RMB40,223,100 (2013
interim cash dividend: RMBO0.098 per share, totaling
RMB46,374,800) was declared to the shareholders of
the Company.

An final dividend of RMB0.091 per share, totaling
RMB43,062,400 was proposed by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2015 (2013 final dividend:
RMBO0.084 per share, totaling RMB39,730,000). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability in this
financial information. It will be recognized as profit
appropriation in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2015.
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RAEE - ARRIRE2014FEF RS
BRI A B A RE0.0857 © it A AR
40,223,1007T(2013F F HATR © % F : B
AR®0.0987T - #5t /A AR 46,374,800
JT) °

M2015%63 H30H  EFgEZEDIK2014
FERARSBRANEGRARKE0.091T - 2
A AR 43,062,400 (20134F F A HAIR
SRF : FRARK0.0847TC ' BEFAAR
#39,730,0007T) ° # £2014F12 A31H
WEFE - WERFWARE AT RE LR
BafE MEREE2015F12A31HLEF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5IzERRIN - £ 2BEL A ARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(39) Supplementary information to the consolidated

cash flow statement

(39) B EXRHAEK

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

(a)  Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from (a) FFEFBEAH RS BT NS
operating activities
2014 2013
20145 E 2013 [E
Net profit b Z e 337,600,866 347,111,365
Add: Provision for asset impairment o EHEMEERE
i 443,883 538,712
Depreciation of fixed assets EE&EENE 58,650,942 51,694,955
Amortisation of intangible assets &z & EE#E 14 3,971,764 3,500,094
Amortisation of deferred income 7% FIE A 2 5 (3,253,731) (1,202,325)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets R EETEE/MNEXL 3,059,764 183,536
Financial expenses BB E A 98,457,971 68,358,330
Investment income & W= (31,442,666) (26,931,664)
Increase in deferred EXEFTIS B E B N
tax assets (4,089,592) (5,194,244)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  F&E®(3E ), SF 4 (29,230) 9,214
(Increase)/decrease in operating R rE U TE B HY
receivables (), F (40,121,738) 12,905,179
(Decrease)/increase in operating 4% M FERIE B 1Y
payables CR) /& 4n (3,376,383) 53,993,405
Net cash flows from operating activities & EEELNIHE L
mEFER 419,871,850 504,966,557
Net (decease)/increase in cash REFEFBFR
2014 2013
20145 E 2013F &
Cash at end of year & B FREARR 1,884,557,387 2,998,410,937

Less: cash at beginning of year

R R F R

(2,998,410,937) (1,207,561,423)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

ReFORD), g

(1,113,853,550) 1,790,849,5614
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R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(39) Supplementary information to the consolidated
cash flow statement (Continued)

(a)  Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from
operating activities (Continued)

Cash payments relating to other operating

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

(39) HemEXFHTEK (&)

@ MEFEHAGREE TR KE
(%)
XN EMELLEHEENRE

activities
2014 2013
20145 E 2013F &
Payments of Ground Service Fee MEOEH AR
collected on behalf of Haikou Meilan Y 2t 7 R 75 2 159,050,893 113,675,353
Payments of travelling and XN EKRES
other expenses i 50,913,897 33,636,941
209,964,790 147,312,294

(b)  Cash flow related to cancellation of a subsidiary

(b) EHFAFIIEBAEREERE

2014
20144F &
Cash received from the cancellation of FHERESKINE S
Meilan advertising 55,900
Less: Cash held by Meilan Advertising W BRI BERESES
on the day of loss of control MIRE (55,900)

Net cash received from the cancellation of
Meilan Advertising

VISR S WA
] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
&M T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

1

5

Change of consolidation scope

(@)

H AHHENEE

The information related to the disposal of subsidiaries (@) AFEREBTAANEBEEERZLNT :

is summarized as follows:

Difference between
Criterion of the ~ disposal amount and the
Proceeds Percentage Way of Date of loss Moment of Company’s share of
Name of subsidiary from disposal of disposal disposal of control loss of control  the net asset of subsidiary
REBYERERE
HEN A GH BT
TR R B EAZAZTRA
FRRER REEHN & fl BEAR RAEHERE ol =iliig S FEENENER
Meilan Advertising 55,900 100% Cancellation 12 December 2014 Industrial and (29,972)
commercial
cancellation
XHES H¥E 2014F12A128 FRAIERE
The calculation of profit or loss on disposal is as (o) JEHEE=RESLT :
follows:
2014
2014FF
Proceeds from cancellation JEHRF U BRI & 55,900
Less: Net assets of Meilan Advertising at the W ERMESRNIEERNFEE
cancellation date (the current assets) (BEREBEE) (86,095)
Minority interests of Meilan Advertising e G 223
Investment loss generated from cancellation EHEAIRERK (29,972)
EMERRAERAT 183
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

6 Interest in Other Entity N EHMAFESAPERS
(1) Interest in subsidiaries (1) HELRaIFPaEIEZ
(a)  Structure of the enterprise group (a) EFFEELEL

Place of operation Place of registration  Principal activities Interest held ~ Voting rights  Way of achieve

FTELR sl EHBIE EERRLA FORTELL DI REAR

Meilan Duty free shop  Haikou Haikou Retail sales 95% 100% Set up

EREH &AM gOm HERHAM R

Meilan Cargo (Note) Haikou Haikou Provision of cargo 51% 60% Set up

transportation service
XHREEHZ) BAT 0w RS ER RUMGF
Note: The Company holds 51% of equity et : AAREEMEEMNFTRLL

interest in Meilan Cargo, and 60% of
the voting righs. The key operating
and financial decisions of Meilan Cargo
should be made by its board of directors
with the approval of at least half of the
directors attend at the board meeting.
Three out of five directors of Meilan
Cargo are nominated by the Company.
Therefore, the Company holds 60% of
the voting rights of the subsidiary.

PIR51%  XMEETELK
ERVBRORRBHESTEIF
b BEEERZELELH
HEEEEEZN _NZ—
MEFRE BB XMW
EEEEEMEHSE AR
AIERRLE3RES WAL
AR B RIRE L] /560%

There is no restriction of the use of the Group’s AEBTNGEFERAEEEEHFES

assets nor the settlement of the liability of the EaEr ARG -
Group.
(b)  Minority interests from common equity interests (b) GIEEEZELERRERHFAA]

Dividends to Minority

Minority Minority Minority interest as

Name of subsidiaries shareholding interest in 2014 Interest in 2014 at 31 December 2014

N14EERER NUEERIE 20145124318

FRAEEH DERR MR SRR ER REDRERH SR

Meilan Duty free shop EREH 5% (2,941) - (86,532)

Meilan Cargo HEE 49% 3,735,274 4,571,565 15,338,334
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RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

6

Interest in Other Entity (Continued)

)

Interest in associates

@

Basic information of significant associates

Haikou Decheng

Place of Place of
operation registration
FEEEM Eidip:!

Haikou, Hainan

Haikou, Hainan

Province Province
BOES BEEEOT  AEEENT
HNA Airport Group Haikou, Hainan Haikou, Hainan
(Note) Province Province
BMREER(E) BEEEOM BEEEOm

Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method

Note:

The place of incorporation and business
of HNA Airport Group are in PRC,
and there is no business relationship
between the Group and HNA Airport
Group. The equity interest held by the
Group is 24.5% and the voting rights
are 1/7. Although the percentage of the
voting rights held by the Group is less
than 20%, one out of seven directors
of the board of directors of HNA Airport
is nominated by the Group. Therefore
the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over HNA Airport and regarded
it as an associate of the Group.

N HEEMEFEPNERE)

RH

(2) EERED R s

(@)

Principal
activities

FHHE

Property development,

resort operation,
eco-agriculture
development and
gardening
MERE  KEER
ERE  FRERS
HE - #tEE
Airport operation and
ground handling
services; airport
investment, holding,
constructing and
rebuilding
BSELERNMNE
75 HoHIRE
PR - Bk BuE

BHET R EREE

Strategic
impact on
group activity
HEEEEY
=H BB

Interest held

Rk B

Yes

30%

il

Yes

24.5%

fali

AREES D REREGRMAEREA

R

GEX

Y AR A 35 12 AR SR B A9 R AT A
MEBEEHEETHE
N BAREEEER FNE
R oo ANEBEIEMEIGITER
B AR L 5] 324.5% » FRORKE
LBl A1/7 0 SRR 20% -
BREMESIERESG7H
BEERMNIEHASEETS
T 72N 52 (B 4E 50 18 A i 35
TR MEINE R E  MAGHE
ERBE b EZE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BT (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

)

6

Interest in Other Entity (Continued)

(2)

Interest in associates (Continued)

(b)

Summarised financial information for the

Group’s significant associates is set out below

|z

N EHMERESHNERS )

2) HEBEEFEFA)E ()
(b) EZBELFENTEHFHIZEIRM

T
HNA Airport Group
SIS ERER
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

20145128318 2013F12831H

Current assets TENEE 5,890,771,575 8,800,032,534
Non-current assets EREEE 12,308,165,197 6,976,400,355
Total assets BEAE 18,198,936,772 15,776,432,889
Current liabilities EN=NE 4,734,447,669 4,244,921,651
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 6,790,785,484 5,242,174,051
Total liabilities BEAET 11,525,233,153 9,487,095,702
Minority interests DHRTRERS 2,590,271,141 2,215,992,337

Equity attributable to equity
holders of HNA Airport Holdings

Share of net assets based on the
percentage of ownership(i)
Adjustment
— Adjust to the fair value of
identifiable net assets
obtained by the Group

BN SR

PRyt s

4,083,432,478 4,073,344,850

B BIEt E R F

BEME() 1,000,440,957 997,969,489
AEEEIE
— IR RREVS IR & B
EAHAFEER
R EEETHE 96,831,607 100,958,406

Carrying amount of investment
on associate

HBEERERREN

FREEE

1,097,272,564 1,096,864,495
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
&M T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

1

6

Interest in Other Entity (Continued) N FEHMFEANERS )
(2) Interest in associates (Continued) (2) EFEHEPEPRER (&)

(b)

Summarised financial information for the
Group’s significant associates is set out below
(Continued)

(b)

BBMETENT EHFHIE BT

(&)

HNA Airport Group

EHESEREE

2014 2013

20145 E 2013F &

Revenue =EILPN 1,180,801,551 1,252,243,485

Net profit SR A 195,946,972 230,019,748
Attributable to shareholders 55 B B M S 1 A%

of HNA Airport Holdings % SR A F F1) 128,461,186 109,925,160

Minority interests LHRR R B = 67,485,786 120,094,588

Other comprehensive income HEipbarE s - -

Total comprehensive income RE W REE 195,946,972 230,019,748
Attributable to shareholders 55 B N M S 1 A%

of HNA Airport Holdings IR B4R A s e 5E 128,461,186 109,925,160

FERROHRROEGE
Minority interests U sk 48 %A 67,485,786 120,094,588

The Group did not receive dividend from

associates in 2014.

(i) The Group recognized its proportionate
share of equity based on the equity
attributable to equity holders of associates.
The consolidated financial statements of
associates are adjusted based on the fair
value of the identifiable net assets on the
acquisition date and in accordance with the
accounting policies of the Group.

AEEAFERKRIREBECED
F) o

(i)

REBARE T RE HMBREK
TEERSATNSESER
BESRLOIEEENE - B2
CREHMBHRRTNESEER
TRRRERSHECRAHAF
BEMBENARBEMARGE—
SRTHERNTE -
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)

BmR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

8

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) of the Group
has been identified as the executive directors and senior
management led by the chairman of the Company. The
CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers the Group conduct its business within
one business segment - the business of operating an airport
and provision of related services in the PRC and the Group
also operates within one geographical segment because
its revenues are primarily generated from and its assets are
located in the PRC.

Related parties and related party transactions

(1) The parent company

(@) General information of the parent company:

Place of registration

EEaliipaih

+

AN

AREEHLEREE THANTEERERR
FETHERERE - SREBHAHRE LT
ERERSTRER - EREEZN ERBEERD
IS -

EEERSAEEER —ETRALLEY - A
B S — ARSI R HAEARE - R - &
RAKENKETERETE  HEETLRF
C AEEER—EMmEALE R -

N

BHIBRRERS
(1) SR AlER
(@) BRAREARBEN :

Nature of business

XA

Haikou Meilan

BOER

(b) Registered capital and changes in registered
capital of the parent company:

BREEEAT

Haikou, Hainan Province

Transportation and
ground handling services
Rt 2 E ) R E IR AR TS

b SAAEMARRRBIL

31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013
2014F12H31H
K2013%F12H31H

Haikou Meilan

B

2,028,913,102
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SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

8

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

The parent company (Continued)

(c)  The proportions of equity interests and voting rights

in the Company held by the parent company:

N BERIBRERREARS @)

(1) BREERE)
(©) BAFIHA DAY FE A L Bl F %R A8
ELB

31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013
20145124318 Kk2013412A31H
% Interest held % Voting rights
FeAR b 1% FRORKE L] %

BOEH

Haikou Meilan

50.19 50.19

Information of subsidiaries

The general information and other related information

of the subsidiaries is set out in Note 6.

Information of other related parties:

2) FRAElER
FRAMERER RABR S B RMEES o

(3) HbEFE T IE7

Relationship with the Group
ER 7R £ ] ) R 1R

HNA Group
EMEE

Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited (“Hainan Developing”)

BEEERERARRA ( DEEER] )

Hainan Airlines

BRIz

Hainan Airlines Food Company Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Food”)
BEMERRERAR ( [EMEMR] )

Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd (‘HNA Property”)
EMYMEEEERAR ( MW )

Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines”)
EREBMEERAA ([EBME] )

HNA Group Finance
B

Has significant influence of Haikou Meilan

HERAREATE

Has significant influence of Haikou Meilan
HELRREAYE

Under control of Hainan Developing

R BRI

Under control of HNA Group
e S0

Under control of HNA Group
R B a2

Under control of HNA Group
e 0 ]

Under control of HNA Group
eI i 0p i
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

8

Related parties and related party transactions J\
(Continued)

(3)

(4)

Information of other related parties: (Continued)

EELDRERERS @)

(3)

i

H 1 BFHE T 15200 ()

Relationship with the Group
B B 40 A %

HNA Safe Car Rental Co., Ltd.(*HNA Safe”)
EMERAEREERAR ( [EBMER] )

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines” )
REMZEBREEAT ( [REMZE] )

Western Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Western Airlines”)
AfMEEREEAR ( [BEPME] )

HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“HNA Cargo”)
BMEERRAR ( [EMEE] )

Hainan meilan International Airport Travelling Co., Ltd (“Meilan Travelling”)
BREEHERRSRTHAREERR ( [XWKRTHL] )

Deer Jet Co., Ltd.(“Deer Jet”)
SEEMEBRABMENEREERAR ( [Z5&E] )

Hainan Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Eking Technology”)
BESERBEROERAR ( NEEIEEH] )

Yangpu Guoxing
FRE

Haidao Commerecial

BEER

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. (‘HNA China Duty Free”)

BEERTALHRERAR ( [BHTR])

Significant related party transactions

(@)  Pricing policies
The Group’s pricing on goods purchased from
related parties, and services provided or received
from related parties are based on market price.
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(4)

Under control of HNA Group
ey e SE ok

Under control of HNA Group
= = ok

Under control of HNA Group
ey e SE ok

Under control of HNA Group
XM EE AR

Under control of HNA Group
ey e SE ok

Under control of HNA Group
= = ok

Under control of HNA Group
ey e SE ok

Under control of HNA Group
=3 = ok

Under control of HNA Group
ey e SE ok

Under common control of HNA Group
RSB E RS

(@) EEERRK
AEERBEY T RBNERANEH
7 R SIS K BT RE S BN
EBRAMSERERSEEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

1

8

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions

N BEBRLTBRERERS &)

(4) BABHX S (&)

(Continued)
(b)  Purchases of goods and services (b) FREEYETLHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 20145 2013FE
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEE NN NG|
HNA Cargo BREE 24,335,241 5,542,399 - =
HNA Property BE 22,435,256 15,204,829 21,693,615 14,657,129
Haikou Meilan BOEB 20,900,706 18,755,909 18,757,300 18,755,909
Meilan Travelling EHIRITA 3,655,696 1,944,375 3,655,696 1,944,375
Hainan Eking Technology G SRR 3,160,000 3,182,274 3,160,000 3,182,274
HNA Safe BER 1,965,600 1,817,640 1,965,600 1,817,640
HNA Food BRE M 246,279 196,140 246,279 196,140
Hainan Airlines BREmE - 20,040,998 - -
76,698,778 66,684,564 49,478,490 40,553,467
(c) Rendering of services (c) FEHEH
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013 20145 2013F
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEE NN YN
Hainan Airlines BEmE 122,193,045 113,161,462 113,980,211 113,161,462
Capital Airlines BMmE 41,419,466 42,971,370 41,419,466 42,971,370
HNA Cargo BmEE 18,907,558 = - =
Tianjin Airlines REMZE 17,268,518 13,665,741 17,268,518 13,665,741
HNA China Duty Free stk 6,686,505 5,824,530 6,686,505 5,824,530
Meilan Travelling EHIRITHE 4,350,000 4,120,000 4,350,000 4,120,000
Deer Jet e 3,244,223 821,600 3,244,223 821,600
Western Airlines iz 2,264,644 2,502,238 2,264,644 2,502,238
Hainan Food MR - 875,335 - 875,335
Others Hit 324,000 424,099 324,000 424,099
216,657,959 184,366,375 189,537,567 184,366,375
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BARSERRPE (48)
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(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIEERASN - £ 28 E (A A RHEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

(d)  Provision of funds

N BEBRTBRBERERERS &)

(4) BAXEH S (&)

(@ REHEED

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 201365 20145 201358
Group Group Company Company
r&EE rEE NG ARE
Haidao Commercial BERE 380,000,000 - 380,000,000 -

(e) Lease expense (e) MHEEH
2014 2013 2014 2013
0145 2013 E 20145 20135
Group Group Company Company
N NS N /NG
Meilan Cargo THEE - - 3,600,000 3,000,000

()  Security provided () FRHHEAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 E 2013FF 20145 E 2013F
Group Group Company Company
r&EE KrEE NG ARF

Haikou Meilan mES]

(Note 4(10)(d) (Ha0(10)(@)) 70,768,483 = 70,768,483 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions )\ BEEEFBERER S &)

(Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (4) BAXEEHXZ(E)
(Continued)
(9) Remuneration of key management () EBREZEASFLY

The Group and the Company:

2014 2013

20145 E 20135 [E

Remuneration of key management B IE A BEH 2,177,757 2,179,246

Key management personnel include executive BREEBEASBEAQRNTES -

directors, non-executive directors, president, EITES - B - AL 2FW
vice president, company secretary, chief financial £ MBRERES-

officer and supervisors of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

(h)

194 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the current year ended

N BEBRTBRBERERERS &)

(4) BAXEH S (&)

(h) EFEREEFH
M4FEBUESFTRESTHNHHMN

31 December 2014 are as follows: T:
Salary and
Remuneration allowance Pension Total
Narme #% Be  TERME EESHIMR st
Wang Zhen Ia - 205,700 24,689 230,389
Liang Jun 28 - 54,100 7,344 61,444
Hu Wentai D& - 208,700 24,689 233,389
Yang Xiaobin HINE - 190,700 24,689 215,389
Yang Xugiang (Resigned 15738 (201445 4208
on 20 May 2014) BEfE) - 89,050 13,295 102,345
Zhang Peihua (Appointed EME(201455 4207
on 20 May 2014) T - 190,400 24,689 215,089
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph Ry & 50,000 - - 50,000
Yan Xiang A 50,000 - - 50,000
Xu Bailing fhinke 100,000 - - 100,000
Feng Da’an (Resigned on BAZ (2014511 A3H
3 November 2014) BE(T) 83,836 - - 83,836
Fung Ching, Simon AL 100,000 - - 100,000
George F. Meng REE 100,000 - - 100,000
Deng Tianlin (Appointed BAM (2014511 A3H
on 3 November 2014) £an) 16,164 - - 16,164
Dong Guiguo EHE - - - -
Han Aimin BETR - 192,101 24,689 216,789
Zhang Shusheng R 20,000 - - 20,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

(h)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments for the current year ended

N BERIBRERREARS @)

(4) BABEHXZ (&)

(h) EFEREFZHE)
2013 FEBNEERESTNH MM

31 December 2013 are as follows: T
Salary and
Remuneration allowance Pension Total

Name 2 ifn TERMBE BESHEMEN A&t
Liang Jun RE - 213,300 22,032 235,332
Hu Wental X - 198,200 22,032 220,232
Wang Zhen (Appointed on T&(20135F5H27H

27 May 2013) ) - 129,900 22,032 151,932
Yang Xiaobin (Appointed on %/NVE(2013F3 A4H

4 March 2013) ) - 159,200 22,032 181,232
Yang Xugiang (Appointed on 155138 (201353 A4H

4 March 2013) i) = 138,200 22,032 160,232
Chan Nap Kee,Joseph Y-S 50,000 - - 50,000
Yan Xiang 3 50,000 - - 50,000
Xu Bailing sl 100,000 = = 100,000
Feng Da’an BARZ 100,000 - - 100,000
Fung Ching, Simon ISAE 100,000 - - 100,000
George F. Meng aE%R 100,000 - - 100,000
Liu Lu (Resigned 2|8 (2013F3 A4 H

on 4 March 2013) BHE) - - - -
Xing Xihong (Resigned MEA (201353 74R

on 4 March 2013) BT - - - -
Zhang Han’an (Resigned FEZ (201355 727H

on 27 May 2013) BE(T) - - - -
Dong Guiguo EHE - - - -
Zhang Shusheng oA EE 20,000 - - 20,000
Han Aimin BER = 169,549 22,032 191,581
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions )\ BEEAFBERERERZ &)

(Continued)
(4) Significant related party transactions (4) BEXBHXZ(E)
(Continued)
() The five individuals whose emoluments are the () FFBNEE BT I
highest
The five individuals whose emoluments were the 014FEEAREEHFMESHBT A
highest in the Group for the year include four T EENMANESE(2013FE - KA
(2013: two) directors whose emoluments are NESR) HFMekMAE RS + H
reflected in the analysis presented above. The —GI(2013FE « =41 B EF A &t
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2013: SREY|RIOT -

three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 E

Salary and allowance T& N #bL 192,101 515,618
Pension BEoEIHR 24,689 66,096
216,790 581,714

Numbers of individuals

AE
2014 2013
20145 E 2013F %
Emoluments bands: Ezain E R
HKD nil — HKD1,000,000 B#07T — 1,000,0007T 1 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
RS RaR M =T (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions )\ BEEEFBERER S &)

(Continued)
(4) Significant related party transactions (4) BAXEBHXS(E)
(Continued)
()  Interest Income G FEKA
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 E 20135 E 2014EE 2013F &
Group Group Company Company
KEE A5E ADE NG|
HNA Group Finance B 10,544,802 11,392,621 10,539,367 11,392,621
Calculated in accordance with deposit rates of R B A SR R P R 1T R BRI T 5K
commercial banks over the same period. FIRFHE
(5) Significant receivables from and payables to (6) BEAXFIH T EW -« FETHIEEREE
related parties
(a) Cash at bank (a) EMEz
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014%F 2013 2014%F 2013
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12R31H
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEHE NG| ARQH
HNA Group Finance BB 199,358,573 623,518,437 199,298,146 623,050,718
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions )\ BEEAFBERERERZ &)
(Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to (5) EAXFE T EWN - BT IERREE (&)
related parties (Continued)

(b)  Accounts receivable (b) FEMEEF

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

20145 2013 20145 20134

12A318 12A31H 128310 12A31R

Group Group Company Company

r&E AEH NG| VN

Hainan Airlines BEME 23,370,695 447,072 22,828,570 =
Capital Airlines HEMZE 5,960,664 11,440,028 5,960,664 11,440,028
HNA China Duty Free ik 5,670,592 - 5,670,592 =
Tianjin Airlines KEME 3,384,301 4,065,540 3,384,301 4,065,540
Meilan Travelling ERIRITH 3,122,492 3,070,000 3,122,492 3,070,000
Hainan Food AR R 1,526,848 1,526,848 1,526,848 1,526,848
HNA Safe mEE 392,000 227,840 392,000 227,840
Western Airlines FamE 86,827 54,343 86,827 54,343
HNA Group JishinEl= 128,140 37,120 128,140 37,120
Others Hit 2,206,779 2,027,464 2,206,779 2,027,464

45,849,338 22,896,255 45,307,213 22,449,183

(c) Advances to suppliers (c) FETHIE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013% 20145 2013%F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
rEE KrEE NG| VNG
Yangpu Guoxing (Note8(6)(b)) ~ FEREIE (M /1(6)b) 468,302,800 - 468,302,800 =
Haikou Meilan (Note8(6)(a)) BOXM(H:)6)a) 361,534,570 157,534,570 361,534,570 157,534,570
Others HEHER 2,030,462 82,006 2,030,462 82,006

831,867,832 157,616,576 831,867,832 157,616,576
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
RS RaR M =T (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20145 [
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties (Continued)

(@)

(e)

()

Other receivables

N BEBRLTBRERERS &)

(5) BEABHH S IEW ~ BN XTRERER (%)

31 December

(@ EfER

31 December 31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134
12B31H 12A31H 12H31H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
yiN-E]| A£E NN VYN
Meilan DFS ZBEH - - 1,809,752 2,041,865
Hainan Airlines aEmE 1,626,197 914,106 1,626,197 914,106
Others Hith 534,348 286,098 534,348 335,251
2,160,545 1,200,204 3,970,297 3,291,222
Interest receivable (e) JEWKFIE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134
12831A 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
b= A£E FAUNE] /NG
HNA Group Finance BRI 2,269,667 4,847,677 2,269,667 4,847,677
Long-term receivables ()  RAEW
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 201445 20134
12831H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
YN AEE VNG| NG|
Haidao Commercial HEEE 380,000,000 = 380,000,000 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
T T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIEERASN - £ 28 E (A A RHEIT)

)

8

200 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties (Continued)

()

(h)

Accounts payable

N BEBRTBRBERERERS &)

(5) BB IEW - BN TR ()

31 December

(@ FETERHX

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013 20145 20134
12A318 12A31H 128310 12A31R
Group Group Company Company
r&E AEH NG| VN
HNA Property s 5,209,585 4,307,138 5,209,585 4,307,138
Meilan Travelling ERIRITH 3,716,964 1,944,375 3,716,964 1,944,375
Hainan Eking Technology B SERE 1,046,422 433,333 1,046,422 433,333
HNA Safe BmEE 491,040 333,360 491,040 333,360
Hainan Food BRR M 276,491 75,940 276,491 75,940
HNA Cargo Jishii=g2 - 2,210,139 - -
10,740,502 9,304,285 10,740,502 7,094,146

Other payables (h)  EmERTH
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20144 20134
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
r&E AEHE NG| AR7
Hainan Airlines BrEmE 22,841,957 13,822,714 22,828,569 13,809,326
Meilan Cargo XHEE - - 42,937,483 37,449,665
Haikou Meilan BOEH 9,654,183 62,284,006 4,145,715 59,505,991
HNA Property HmmE 1,220,150 653,446 247,736 =
Meilan Travelling EBIRITH - 3,324,152 - 3,324,152
Others Hith 327,237 1,029,567 279,080 1,029,567
34,043,527 81,113,885 70,438,583 115,118,701
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
RS RaR M =T (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)

(1)

()

Advances from customers

31 December

()  FEUHE

31 December

N BEBRLTBRERERS &)

31 December

(5) BEABHH S IEW ~ BN XTRERER (%)

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

201445 20134 20145 2013%F

12831H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

AEE AEE N /NG|

Haikou Meilan (Note 8(6)()) BOEB (M) (6)a) 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973
HNA China Duty Free AR 61,901 61,901 - =
3,190,874 3,190,874 3,128,973 3,128,973

Directors’ emolument payable

31 December

() ENEFEHH

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

2014%F 20134 20145 20134

12A310 12A31H 128318 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

AEE AEE LN /NG

Directors’ emoluments EEHH 650,745 1,955,501 650,745 1,955,501

BREREROBRAR 201
—Z—FEFH



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

i

8 Related parties and related party transactions )\ RBEEABERERZ (&)

(Continued)

(6) Significant commitments in relation to related (6) EABGH 5 FE
parties
The commitments in relation to the contracts entered UTAEAEERAATIREEARBER B
into with related parties by the Group but not yet BTN EEES EE 5T Mg
necessary to be recognised in the balance sheet as at HEBMAESEIE

the balance sheet date are as follows:

(a)  Terminal Expansion Project (a) MiiEEZETIE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

2014%12H31H  2013F12A31H

Land Use Right Transfer Agreement  #1)8 O ZERI 2 5] FUBEE
and Investment and Construction T Hb{E AR R

Agreement with Haikou Meilan RERR=E
- Receivable from Haikou Meilan — Al A A EEUELZ
for Land Use Right Transfer b 5 R R SRR 5K
(Note a-1) (Hizta-1) (28,160,761) (28,160,761)
— Payable to Haikou Meilan under —FREOERSNZ
the Investment and Construction KRERERESR
Agreement (Note a-2) (Hita-2) 383,318,800 587,318,800
355,158,039 559,158,039
On 26 August 2011, the Company entered M2011FE8H26H © ARQRIEEFAE
into a Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and BRI S R e - Mk
an Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan EEEBET TRAREMEISRE
in respect of construction of an international THRUATEMEZEBDSRIEIZLT
terminal, expansion of west gallery of the terminal T ARG E R E R E o R
and a number of ancillary projects in the Meilan 201212 A128 » ReI AU Z
Airport (the “Project”). On 12 December 2012, Wik BARFEGAERERRE—H
the Acquisition Agreement was terminated and FRTHIRE R EPTEUL ©

superseded by an Investment and Construction
Agreement (the “Investment and Construction
Agreement”) entered into by the Company and
Haikou Meilan on the same day.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TTJT Tuj:‘ E/

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (43 5IFERRSN - 5B ELL A A REET)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(6) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

(a)
(a-1)

(@-2)

Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)

Pursuant to the Land Use Right Transfer
Agreement, in order to facilitate the
construction of the Project and the
obtaining of relevant property ownership
certificate(s) as a whole by Haikou
Meilan, the Company will transfer the
LUR of the land with a site area of 125
acres Haikou Meilan at a consideration
of RMB31,289,734. As at 31 December
2014, the Company has received a deposit
of RMB3,128,973 from Haikou Meilan (31
December 2013: RMB3,128,973).

Pursuant to the Investment and
Construction Agreement, Haikou Meilan
undertakes that, upon completion of the
construction of the Project and before
the transfer of the assets of the Project
to the Company, Haikou Meilan shall
not transfer or dispose of any assets of
the Project to any third party, and upon
completion of the construction of the
Project and before the satisfaction of
the closing conditions of transfer of the
assets of the Project to the Company,
the Company is exclusively entitled to
operate the Project. The total consideration
of the project is RMB1,026,680,000,
including the estimated construction
cost of RMB876,500,000 and land use
rights on the price of RMB150,180,000.
The Company shall provide funds to
Haikou Meilan according to the progress
of the construction of the Project.
The construction of the Project will be
completed no later than 31 December
2015. The above resolution has been
approved by the extrodinary general
shareholders meeting held on 4 March
2013.

(6) ﬁA 158 —y/J 777/7-& ,# L,:/,i,v‘ﬁ \

(@) MugEETE(E)
@) RELTHERABEERHZ

(a-2)

ZHE  ARARARE
31,289,734 L W E 1% A )G A £
BB SRR R 491250 A I fF
FA%E - IJMEE/\?EI%F%?;??E;TE
1BIBE T2 T I i8Sk B B2 R

MUz FEER o 562014¢12
A318 - ZIS/‘ﬂEM&;@J;‘D%
B AT EHb (R SR RA

%3,128,973m(2013¢12ﬂ31
B : AR¥3,128,9737T) °

ﬂiﬁxé@ St BOXBE
EEERERBETIRER I
7¥< ERZEERIBRAARA
AIEEZIER 2EER - THM
FRE=FEEN L EZER 2
EREE  BARBZELEZ
HE 2 BRER - %IHEB fHFTR
& &5 A AR1,026,680,000
BRBHARERKAARE
876,500,000 7T LA K2 = H {5 5 4
${E AR ¥150,180,0007C * A
NElIRBZIE B WEREE RS
AEMEHES - ZHEB 2L
SEEMN2015F 12 531 B 3 IA
AITEAK o EHilRZRE &£201343
R4BBRMNBRIRERNS RE
i o



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FATSRER AT RE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(6) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

(a)  Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)
(a-2) (Continued)

The Company make progress payments to
Haikou Meilan in respect of the Project at
the amount of RMB204,000,000 in current
year, totalling up to RMB643,361,200 as
at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:
RMB439,361,200). The construction of
the international terminal and the ancillary
projects have been completed and put into
use in 2013. The Group has recognised
fixed assets of RMB236,748,630 according
to the related construction costs and LUR
of RMB45,078,000 according to the agreed
land transfer price, respectively, totalling
RMB281,826,630 (Note 4(8) and 4(10)) in
2013, which has been deducted from the
prepayments. As at 31 December 2014, the
remaining balance of advances to Haikou
Meilan amounted to RMB361,534,570 (31
December 2013: RMB157,534,570) (Note
4(12)(a).

(b)  Terminal Complex Project

N BEBRLTRERREARS @)

i

(6) EAXFGH it (&)

(a) MiEEZETIE(E)

(@-2) (#&)
RARRAFAMBEAER
TR EEZRESARE
204,000,000 7T * & & 2014 F
12A31H ' AARIEMEHAE
HMRFZNEERRESARY
643,361,2007T (2013412 A 31
B : AR#¥439,361,2007T) °
ZEE R MIEE AR T
RIEEER2013FEZT TR A
FH - ARAR2013FZE B
BAEMBEERARRAERN T
EEERSNAEBEZEATEE
AR #236,748,6307T & £ #bf#
FA 145,078,000 - & HAR
¥ 281,826,630 7t ( M 7% 70 (8) Al
(10) ' WA BENEERZES
Ko A2014F12A31H » J&ft
361,534,5707T (2013412 A 31
B : AR¥157,534,5707T) (Fff
FEPI(12)(@)) °

(b) UhETARE RE

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%F12H31H 2013%F12A31H

Payable to settle through

Yangpu Guoxing T2

FEBFREES N2

1,401,230,972 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

8 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(6) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

(b)  Terminal Complex Project (Continueq)

In 2014, the Company entered into a construction
service agreement with Yangpu Guoxing in
respect of construction of the Terminal Complex
Project. The budget cost of the Terminal Complex
Project is RMB1,903,874,000. Pursant to the
above agreement, the Company engage Yanpu
Guoxing to monitor and manage the construction
of the Terminal Complex Project, and will pay a
service fee at 3% of the total budget cost.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has
made payments totaling RMB502,643,028
to Yangpu Guoxing (81 December 2013: nil),
of which RMB34,340,228 is capitalised to
construction in progress (831 December 2013:
nil) (Note 4(9)). As at 31 December 2014, the
remaining balance of advances to Yangpu
Guoxing amounted to RMB468,302,800 (31
December 2013: nil) (Note 4(12)(b)).

9 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to
be recognised on the balance sheet

N BEBLTRERERERXS(

SN\

=)
=

(6) ZEABHHE S A (E)

(b) UhFTAEEE(E)

M2014F - RNQE R E 2R Al
AR BHBRESEAARY
1,903,874,0007T : [7] By 255 7 B SR 3t
ERUMATAEBIEEET TERRS
Wk BEEFHEEEERETIRER
EITERR - W SR BB AY AU AT
RABIEBREINMRIEE -

HZE2014F12A31 8 » IHBEXR
BE - AARIE REtRFARES
NIBREREERBERAFARE
502,643,028 7t (2013412 5318 :
£) RRIAESAEEEREIRAR
#34,340,2287t (201312 A31H :
) (M EE Q) » M20144 12 A 31
B EFERE L AAREETIRE
A EHEE A AR #468,302,80070(2013
F12A318 : &) (FEEA2)(0)) °

N BERMEXHEARSE

BEEAOMETNVEEERBR LI RHERNESX
R

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%F12H831H 2013%12A31H

Terminal Complex Project (Note8(6)(b)) YRATAR S BEIE B (K221 ((6)(b)) 1,401,230,972 =
Terminal Expansion Project (Note8(6)(a))  fiukigiEE T2 (K1:+/1(6)@a)) 383,318,800 587,318,800
1,784,549,772 587,318,800

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

)

BRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIFERRSN £ BB B AREETT)

10 Leases

11

The future lease payments of the Group’s assets held under
finance lease (Note 4(8)(b)) are summarised as follows:

+ HE

AEEEPREAEAABREEE (MED
8(b)) * RRENHEEAMT :

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%F12H31H 2013%F12H31H

Within one year —F LA 28,581,972 28,581,972
One to two years —H|=F 28,581,972 28,581,972
Two to three years —H=F 28,581,972 28,581,972
Over three years =FHE 21,436,479 50,019,451

107,182,395 135,765,367

As at 31 December 2014, the unrecognised financing
charge amounted to RMB12,305,087 (31 December 2013:
19,695,332) (Note 4(8)(b)).

Financial instrument and risk

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(1) Market risk
(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are
carried out in Mainland China and a majority
of the transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from the recognised assets and
liabilities, and future transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, primarily with respect to US
dollars. The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters is responsible for monitoring the
amount of assets and liabilities, and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, to mitigate
the foreign exchange risk. During the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not
enter into any forward exchange contracts or
currency swap contracts.
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AEENEEEEEGESRERAR  mHR
R(EZRINERRMMERL) - EHRRMR
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@ SMEREE
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1

11

Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, the carrying amounts in RMB equivalent of
the Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are summarised below:

- €I ARERRE)

(1) W5 (&)

(a) SMNERE (&)
MR2014%F12 A31 B K&20134 12 A 31
B AEEFENIINESBEEMIN
KemBETENARBHNSES T
LU

31 December 2014
2014512831 H

UsbD Others Total
ErxEE HMHEIER =
Financial assets denominated 4N &R & E
in foreign currency
- Cash at bank and on hand  —&#¥&4 660,997,715 34,055 661,031,770
Financial liabilities denominated 4NE& R & &
in foreign currency
— Bank borrowings —8RITIER 1,694,923,074 - 1,694,923,074

31 December 2013
2013912 A31H

UsbD Others Total
ELIEE  HtHNEIEE A%
Financial assets denominated 4N 4 gl & &=
in foreign currency
—Cash at bank and on hand —&#&&4 1,526,483,965 33,938 1,526,517,903
Financial liabilities denominated 44 gl & (&
in foreign currency
- Bank borrowings —RITERK 1,798,545,718 - 1,798,545,718

As at 31 December 2014, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10 % against the USD while
all other variables had been held constant, the
Group’s net profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB14,240,598 (31 December
2013: RMB23,805,403) higher/lower for various
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
USD.

MR2014F12A31H » R AEEE
BELTEMEEMETLEHMARE W
RARBEEHETHEXEZEI0% -
HEMEARRFAE - BIAREEFHE
132 A0 3R 2 89 A R 85 14,240,598
L (20183F 12 H31H : AR®
23,805,4037T) °
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11

(%8)

Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term interest bearing borrowings including
long-term borrowings and corporate bonds.
Financial liabilities issued at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group determines the relative proportions
of its fixed rate and floating rate contracts
depending on the prevailing market conditions.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s long-
term interest bearing borrowings with floating
rates were mainly USD-denominated bank
loans, amounting to USD276,993,475,
equivalent to RMB1,694,923,074 (31 December
2013: USD294,9983,475, equivalent to
RMB1,798,545,718) (Note 4(21)).

Increases in interest rates will increase the cost
of new borrowing and the interest expenses
with respect to the Group’s outstanding floating
rate borrowings, and therefore could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position. The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes decisions
with reference to the latest market conditions.
The Group may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest
rate risk. During the year, the Group has not
entered into any interest rate swap agreements.

For 2014, if interest rates on the floating rate
borrowings had been 10 basis higher/lower
while all other variables had been held constant,
the Group’s net profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately USD288,726
equivalent to RMB1,766,712 (for 2013:
USD1,766,712, equivalent to RMB1,200,153).
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11 Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

)

(3)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk
mainly arises from cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and other receivables.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at bank since most of them
are deposited at state owned banks, listed banks or
HNA Group Finance. Management does not expect
that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit exposure on accounts receivable and other
receivables. The Group assesses the credit quality
of and sets credit limits on its customers by taking
into account their financial position, the availability of
guarantee from third parties, their credit history and
other factors such as current market conditions. The
credit history of the customers is regularly monitored
by the Group. In respect of customers with a poor
credit history, the Group will use written payment
reminders, or shorten or cancel credit periods, to
ensure the overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a
controllable extent.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each
subsidiaries of the Group and aggregated by the
Group’s finance department in its headquarters.
The Group’s finance department at its headquarters
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s short-
term and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure
it has sufficient cash and securities that are readily
convertible to cash to meet operational needs, while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities from major financial
institution so that the Group does not breach
borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing
facilities to meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.

(3)
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2) 1ZFERE
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11 Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

210 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

- eMIBEREERE®)

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group at 31

December 2014 are analysed by their maturity date

below at their undiscounted contractual cash flows:

(3) mEES (&)

REEREBEXRA  AREZESMEERS
BEBEARTRNARRSRERIIRNAET
RENR

31 December 2014

2014512/31A
Beyond

Within1year  1to2years  2to5years 5 years Total
—EHR 2 ZHEE BENE &3

Financial assets tREE
Cash at bank and on hand EuES 1,884,557,387 - - - 1,884,557,387
Accounts receivable IR 120,702,313 - - - 120,702,313
Other receivables JEUFI S 2,269,667 - - - 2,269,667
Interest receivable H it Essh 4,560,931 - - - 4,560,931
Long-term receivables RAEWH - 380,000,000 - - 380,000,000
2,012,090,298 380,000,000 - - 2,392,090,298

Financial liabilities SREE
Accounts payable FEfTERR 15,234,088 - - - 15,234,088
Other payables JERFIE 50,416,960 - - - 50,416,960
Interest payable EC ARG 114,236,355 - - - 114,236,355
Dividends payable FEI AR A 499,500 - - - 499,500
Corporate bonds RAEH - - 800,000,000 - 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings RHER 416,092,000 1,278,831,074 - - -

Interest and expense payable for BREFRBER

long-term borrowings and bonds EHNERER 129,962,661 111,783,821 138,320,000 - 380,066,482
Long-term payables REERR 28,581,972 28,581,972 50,018,451 - 107,182,395
755,023,536 1,419,196,867 988,338,451 3,162,558,854
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Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

+- eRMIBERERRE®)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) mEE (%)
31 December 2013
2013F12A31H
Beyond

Within 1 year 110 2 years 210 5 years 5 years Total
—ER —H=% “InE RERE Af

Financial assets SREE
Cash at bank and on hand RS 2,998,410,937 - - - 2,998,410,937
Accounts receivable R R 82,122,118 - - - 82,122,118
Other receivables TEWH 2 5,293,245 - - - 5,293,245
Interest receivable Hi W 3,686,441 = = = 3,686,441
3,089,512,741 = = - 3,089,512,741

Financial liabilities SRARE
Accounts payable e R 12,010,624 - - - 12,010,624
Other payables FERH 2 51,746,763 - - - 51,746,763
Interest payable EtEAH 161,190,876 = = - 161,190,876
Dividends payable JE R 666,000 - - - 666,000
Corporate bonds RAAESH - - - 800,000,000 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings KB 109,744,200 414,589,200 1,274,212,318 - 1,798,545,718

Interest and expense payable for BREMRSHER

long-term borrowings and bonds EHRFERER 135,178,219 120,255,909 229,281,482 13,520,000 498,235,610
Long-term payables REEAH 28,581,972 28581972 78,601,423 - 135,765,367
499118654 563,427,081 1582,095223 813,520,000 3,458,160,958

Bank borrowings and corporate bonds are analysed by
repayment terms as follows:

31 December 2014

RITERRABEFEERITAT :

31 December 2013

2014512A31H 2013%12H31H
Bank Bonds Bank Bonds
borrowings payable borrowings payable
BITEN AREH RITIER REfEH
Wholly repayable within five ~ 4 —HEZ A%
years-borrowings AFZARER 1,694,923,074 800,000,000 1,798,545,718 =
Not wholly repayable within S — &A%
five years-bonds AFZENES - - - 800,000,000
1,694,923,074 800,000,000 1,798,545,718 800,000,000
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12 Fair value

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, the fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 1:

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs)

(1) Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value mainly represent receivables payables, long-term
borrowings, corporate bonds and long-term payables.

Except for financial liabilities listed below, the carrying
amount of other financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value is a reasonable approximation of
their fair value.

31 December 2014
20145128310

NAEEMT

AABEAEBERABOER  BYAABET

EREMEAGESERNBAERBNRIEE

RORTE

E—ERX: HRAEENBGBEEERMS AL
FEHRE o

FEBR: BRE-—_EBRBABIMEBEEXE
EEENFEEATHENREAE -

E=ERX: HAEESBENTAIHREAME -

(1) TURLEBEFEEREELNTIEE

RIEEME (&
AEBNERKAENEREENSRE
BEEXEEE  BRFIR - ENFE  REE
K ARESFMEAENRE

BT BB ENSN - KRR BE
BNSBAENABNEREERA L HE
£REN -

31 December 2013
2013%F12A31H

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
REEE ANREE FHEEE AREE

Financial liabilities SRBE
- Corporate bonds —NAlE%H 793,619,030 847,920,000 792,365,219 790,400,000

The fair value of corporate bonds is determined at the
quoted price in the active market and is categorised in
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the
corporate bonds of the Company is determined by the
quoted prices of Shanghai Stock Exchange on the last
trading day prior to 31 December 2014.
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13 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including bank borrowings,
coporate bonds and long-term payables) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘shareholder’s
equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net
debt. The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 were as follows:

t=

EXRER

AEEENEERRNBBRERATRENEEEE

B L NMARRREHDR - LEE A
SABEEED  ARERRENEREBUREK

BTHEBAHBENGERE  AEEAREHEX
N ROBFEHE  MRRREER - EiTF
sk & & E LARLE AR

REBFAERNBEL RETFHEER - ZHE XL
REKFERUNBEARTE - EBFHEALER
(BRERITER - 2EFMRHABRNSTR)RER
eRBEEEEY BERAREHEERBRPA
PR R i BLE O F R 2 A0 © 782014512 A
31H K2013F 128310  AEBEABFEH X
ArEIR:

31 December
2013

31 December
2014

2014F12H31H

2013412 H31H

Total borrowings IR
Long-term borrowings RITIEX
Coporate bonds NEES
Long-term payables RHARE R0

1,662,055,758
793,619,030
94,877,308

1,798,545,718
792,365,219
116,070,035

Less: Cash at bank and on hand

o BEES

2,550,552,096
(1,884,557,387)

2,706,980,972
(2,998,410,937)

Net liabilities/ (cash) &%, (3R& ) %5 665,994,709 (291,429,965)
Shareholder’s equity AR R A 2 2,891,354,169 2,669,343,113
Total capital BE AR 3,557,348,878 2,377,913,148

Not applicable
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 18.72% TEA
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14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(1) Cash at bank and on hand

T 25 B SRk M ot
(1) BEEZ
31 December

2014
20145F12H31H

31 December
2013
2013F12H31H

Cash on hand EFES 134,192 313,183
Cash at bank RITHER 1,880,450,897 2,993,820,854
1,880,585,089 2,994,134,037
(2) Accounts receivable (2) EWERF
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014F12H31H 2013%12A31H
Accounts receivable FE MR X

— from aeronautical services R E M ZE MR A 97,186,682 72,052,916
— from non-aeronautical services RERIEMZ MR A 26,749,502 12,813,827
123,936,184 84,866,743
Less: provision for bad debts B AR (3,839,026) (3,395,143)
120,097,158 81,471,600
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H31H  2013%12A31H

Accounts receivable by customers IR EFE 2D
— from third parties —EWE=TER 78,628,971 62,417,560
Less: provision for bad debts B EERRYEE (3,839,026) (3,395,143)
74,789,945 59,022,417
— from related parties — FEUR BB 77 BR X 45,307,213 22,449,183
120,097,158 81,471,600
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14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +[ QBB EHRRME2)

(Continued)
(2) Accounts receivable (Continued) (2) [EYHR (%)
Credit terms granted to customers are determined on AATETEERPH EZREEAKESEE
an individual basis by the management with a general ERIEBEET » —AB1E3@EA o
range from 1 to 3 months.
(a) The ageing of accounts receivable is analysed as (a) FEURBRZKIZ E A bR AR AV BRES 2 AT 0
follows: T
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

2014%12H31H 2013412 H31H

Within 90 days Q0K A 104,366,327 68,863,289
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 5,790,303 3,432,256
181 to 365 days 181 X E365K 6,200,229 1,898,418
Over 365 days 365K A 7,579,325 10,672,780
123,936,184 84,866,743
() As at 31 December 2014, the Company has (b) M2014F12A31H0 » ARAEEE
performed an impairment assessment on RAZE R R E AL % =77 BURR &
accounts receivable from third parties on an BT RENH  HF2BARK
individual basis, based on which accounts 5,142,8527C (2013512 A31 8 : A
receivable of RMB5,142,852 (31 December 2013: R#8,174,41270) B @B RFT 2R
RMB8,174,412) are past due but not impaired. BEE - WEARBHAORKRE DTN
The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable T
is as follows:
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

2014%12H31H 2013412 H31H

91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 885,800 1,680,000
181 to 365 days 181 KX E 365K 2,340,000 -
Over 365 days 365 KA _E 1,917,052 6,494,412

5,142,852 8,174,412
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14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

The balances aged within 365 days related to a
number of customers for whom there is no recent
history of default, which are expected to be
recovered within one year. Those aged over 365
days are to be settled through CAAC Settlement
Center for recovery, the management is under
negotiation of the payment schedule with counter
parties.

As at 31 December 2014, accounts receivable
from related parties of RMB9,381,487 (31
December 2013: RMB4,186,732) are past due
but not impaired. The ageing of these accounts
receivable is as below:

TN S EL I

(2) JEWBRFL (&)

b)

(c)

(8&)

365K LA A1 BR 2 8 FR I8 /5 FE U2 L 38
AV EERLENE=H - BHATE
—ERUE - 365K A L IR #E 6 FE
TEREZARMBEF LR ALK
B - ARIFEHENE =FmBEE
SRR ERE -

R2014F12 8318 - EUREIE 5 BRI
AR #9,381,487 71 (20134F 12 A 31
B : AR¥4,186,73270) B @ HI1BR
ERE - ZIEEWERRERRAT ¢

31 December
2013
2013F12H31H

31 December
2014
2014%F12H831H

91 to 180 days 91 KXE180K 3,554,612 1,515,571
181 to 365 days 181 XE365K 3,679,401 1,815,818
Over 365 days 365 KA £ 2,147,474 855,343

9,381,487 4,186,732

The balances aged within 365 days are relate
to a number of customers for whom there is no
recent history of default, which are expected to
be recovered within one year.For those aged over
365 days, the management is under negotiation
of the payment schedule with the related parties.
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14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +[ QBB EHRRME2)

(Continued)
(2) Accounts receivable (Continued) (2) [EYHR (%)
(d) The movement of provision for bad debts is as d) FEREZEREEENAEETZHIEN
follows: (I N

31 December

31 December

2013 Additions 2014
20134 20144
12A31H #hn 12A31H
Provision for bad debts EARER 3,395,143 443,883 3,839,026
(3) Other receivables (3) EftfEW
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A31H 2013412A31H
Amount due from intra-group EWEBRNRRISFREE

companies 1,809,752 2,091,018
Others HAith 3,855,507 2,334,860
5,665,259 4,425,878

The ageing of other receivables is analysed below: H A pE R BR RS DT A0
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A31H 2013412A31H
Within 90 days 90RMIAA 1,617,094 342,036
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 147,465 217,440
181 to 365 days 181 KE365K 544,270 331,325
Over 365 days 365K LA £ 3,356,430 3,535,077
5,665,259 4,425,878
As at 31 December 2014, the balances aged over R2014E12 B31H @ AN 7] H 4 jE Uk 2 B
365 days are related to a number of related parties for 4R B365 K B I8 B AR T kK -
whom there is no recent history of default, which are SEERATEEREEE o 2 abpEl

expected to be unrecoverable. No provision was made QA EHiEIEEE 1

4 A R A==

against these receivables.
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14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(4) Long-term equity investments

NG EL A )

(4) RERERE

31 December
2014
2014%12831H

31 December
2013
201312 H31H

Subsidiaries (a) FfA7wl(a)
— Unlisted companies —JELEMAF] 10,477,825 11,427,825
Associates (Note 4(7)) B nm (KisEmT))
- Unlisted companies —JEEMARA] 1,128,146,862 1,127,739,146
Less: long-term equity investments & : EHIMRREIS ERE
impairment A (277,825) =

1,138,346,862

1,139,166,971

There is no significant restriction on the conversion of
long-term equity investments into cash.

(a)  Subsidiaries

31 December

ARABTEFERPREETNERNRS) -

(@ FoH

Reduction of

31 December

2013 investment 2014 Provision

20134 20145
12A31H BORE 12A310 REEE
Meilan advertising EHES 950,000 (950,000) - -
Meilan Duty Free Shop XHEH 277,825 = 277,825 (277,825)
Meilan Cargo IHEE 10,200,000 - 10,200,000 -
11,427,825 (950,000) 10,477,825 (277,825)

EHRNEEERLRZEY  REKLE
FEEATHEE M - K201456F12 831
ERINNSIESES TRV ES Fekih=3: ]
BIREARRELERBARKE277,825
long-term investment in Meilan DFS as at 31 JT °

December 2014.

There is no substantial business activity of Meilan
DFS. Due to the significant uncertainty of future
operation of Meilan DFS, the Company provided
an impairment of RMB 277,825 against the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (5 RIzEERSN » 5B A ARETT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

/43 )

TH D E B R

V=

have been charged in operating costs and
general and administrative expenses in 2014
(2013: RMB50,387,708and RMB764,646),

respectively.

(b)  Fixed assets held under finance lease (Note 4(8) (b)

(o).

(Continued)
(5) Fixed assets (5) BEIE&E
Office
Machinery and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
EEREZEY WeERE ERIE WAREREM B
Cost RE
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 1,209,238,913 89,783,278 76,633,781 60,345,305 1,436,001,277
Increases in current year RELE
Acquisition BE - - 10,298,049 4,034,815 14,332,864
Transferred from Construction ERTIREA
in Progress 2,456,434 = = 6,766,192 9,222,626
Decreases in current year KERD
Disposal and other decrease BB RE AR (9,089,121)  (4,922,631) (97,152)  (4,338,845) (18,447,749
31 December 2014 2014127318 1,202,606,226 84,860,647 86,834,678 66,807,467 1,441,109,018
Accumulated depreciation 25hE
31 December 2013 2013%F12A31H (286,940,665) (8,166,561)  (23,123,461)  (35,762,386) (353,993,073
Increases in current year RELE
Depreciation charged g7 (31,548,828)  (12,688,511) (7,398,368) (6,168,819)  (57,804,526)
Decreases in current year KEFD
Disposal and other decrease BB REAE D 1,031,183 1,497,261 82,287 4,113,994 6,724,725
31 December 2014 2014127318 (317,458,310)  (19,357,811)  (30,439,642)  (37,817,211) (405,072,874
Net book value REEE
31 December 2014 2014F12A31H 886,147,916 65,502,836 56,395,136 28,990,256  1,036,036,144
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 922,298,248 81,616,717 53,510,320 24,582,919 1,082,008,204
(a) Depreciation of RMB7,202,096 and RMB602,430 (a) AEEFAZERS  BEERGH

E 5 ARM57,202,09 7T & AR
602,430 7T (2013 F € :
ANMEEEROTESIAARE

FFAEEK

50,387,708 & AR #764,6467T) °

RHEEH(8)(b) °

ARANBMEEABEEER &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(6) Construction in progress

NG EL A )

6) #HZLFE

Including:
Transfer to Interest
Increase  fixed assets Accumulated  caplisation Interest
31 December in current incurrent 31 December interest incurrent  caplisation
2013 year year 2014 caplisation year rate
ERER  EfAE K
135 KEE 20145 zu4 BRER BRER
12/31H AEEY EEhE 12831 Bitel  EMMEE ERiE
Terminal complex project TEEAE - 98,979,369 - 98,979,369 64,639,141 64,639,141 6.17%
West Gallery expansion project FEBRARETR - 16,320,707 - 16320707 16,320,707 16,320,707 7.34%
Renovation of the first-phase terminal 13 EERIEMIE TR
departure hall 471,773 1,179,432 - 1,661,205 - -
Terminal Tower renovation mkBRERREETR 1,157,591 200,446 - 1,358,087 - -
QOperation management platform EfTEET2ER 763,586 486,826 - 1,250,412 - -
Equipment operation monitoring system R EETERZH 798,000 - - 798,000 - -
Terminal tower cap and the roof MuBERIR
waterproofing maintenance 616,006 172,044 = 788,050 - -
Traffic management and control systems RBERE REZZH 1,066,763 1,751,608 (2,818,371) - - -
Emergency center renovation project £ HMLMETR - 1475125 (1475,125) - - -
Security channel improvement project  RiREEAETR - 981,309 (981,309) - - -
Navigation display screen transformation fs B ai& 1412064 2375567  (3,787,631) - - -
Others Eth 486,527 1,071,211 (160,190) 1,397,548 - -
6,772,310 124,993,644 (9,222,626) 122,543,328 80,959,848 80,959,848
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements +[ QBB EHRRME2)
(Continued)

(7) Accounts payable (7) FEfTAE#:
The ageing of accounts payable based on their FEBEFUZ H AR B EARBRIE DT ¢

recording dates is analysed as follows:

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H31H 2013%F12A31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 8,582,149 8,379,073
91 to 180 days 91 RKE180K 2,478,336 950,914
Over 180 days 180K A 3,505,858 470,498
14,566,343 9,800,485
(8) Revenue ZINA
2014 2013
20145 E 2013%F &
Aeronautical: MZE SRR -
Passenger service charges RE RIS E 190,328,469 174,616,062
Refund of civil aviation RinERESREMA
development fund 160,621,367 138,593,584
Fees and related charges on aircraft ¢ E & & #H 78
takeoff and landing W & 68,139,298 59,571,701
Ground handling service income b AR RS B 56,215,227 44 162,144
475,304,361 416,943,491
Non-aeronautical: MM T
Franchise income BRI WA 208,534,299 159,177,174
Rental income e WA 41,419,516 36,713,717
VIP room income BEEZWA 19,843,357 29,067,147
Parking income ZEFIRA 16,055,393 13,312,073
Others income EH g A 31,347,696 23,384,772
317,200,261 261,654,883
792,504,622 678,598,374

BMERENERAR 221

PO 45



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

NG EL A )

(9) Financial expenses - net 9) HIHEER-F5

2014 2013

20145 E 20135 E

Interest expenses MEZH 171,493,536 78,911,770

Including: Bank borrowings Hrh o RITEXR 101,870,797 12,485,727

Corporate bonds NEES 63,307,145 63,511,284

Finance leases BERE 6,315,594 2,914,759

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) &} F1B %k (Mz) 7,922,143 (10,560,150)
Less: Interest and exchange o MBI ME R BEREARNL

losses capitalisation (80,959,848) -

Interest income FEWA (15,947,729) (18,835,284)

Others Hith 182,321 584,177

82,690,423 50,100,513

Interest expenses are analysed by the repayment terms
of bank borrowings, corporate bonds and finance
leases as follows:

MEERIITIT

MEXHRRITER  AREFLBERE

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

20145125318 2013E12P310
Bank Corporate Finance Bank Corporate Finance
borrowings bonds leases horrowings bonds leases
RITER AR5 HERE BT RArlfs HEHE
Bank borrowings, corporate bonds and S/~ HEHAELEZ
finance leases wholly repayable within -~ REIER  EHR
five years HEng 101,870,797 63,307,145 6,315,594 12,485,727 - 2,914,759
Corporate bonds wholly repayable after ~ S4—HEZARTEL
five years Gl - - - - 63511284 -
101,870,797 63,307,145 6,315,594 12,485,727 63,511,284 2,914,759
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

RATS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2014F

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

14

(10) Investment income

Notes to the Company’s financial statements +[0
(Continued)

INGILEE 3 EL A ))

(10) K E Wz

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 [E
Share of profit of investees R A E KA
under equity method iR & W
— HNA Airport Holdings — B A 5 1 31,472,991 26,931,664
Share of profit of investees LR A E R
under equity method G 3rs- R BN
— Haikou Decheng — B 0OEH (353) -
Share of profit of investees VARK AN A% & K 5
under cost method [ #e1% & W e
— Meilan Cargo —XHEE 4,758,160 5,501,728
Losses from disposal of equity EERAREREES
interest — Meilan Advertising MIEBL-EXHES (896,895) -
35,333,903 32,433,392
There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of ARB P FERE W EER B E AR
investment income.
(11) Non-operating income (11) &RIMIA
2014 2013
20145 E 2013F &
Government grants B 46 B 8,175,000 2,447,000
Gains on disposal of fixed assests EE & ERE MG 75,200 -
Others Hib 748,642 181,132
8,998,842 2,628,132
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements + QAT EHRERME2)

(Continued)
(12) Income tax expenses (12) Fris#i &
2014 2013
20145 E 2013FE
Current income tax g PSR 102,295,861 48,373,151
Deferred income tax RIEFTIST (4,089,593) (5,194,244)
98,206,268 43,178,907
The reconciliation from income tax calculated based HERFBEROMBEBRABAREFE
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in RS HRASHAEHRER :
the financial statements to the income tax expenses is
listed below:
2014 2013
20145 E 2013F E
Total profit IpEFEE] 431,812,132 386,174,471
Income tax expenses calculated at  IREAT R EH
applicable tax rates PSR 107,953,033 96,543,618
Effect of tax incentive MERNTE - (48,271,809)
Effect of change in tax rates HEEFHHTE (2,071,250) (4,163,517)
Income not subject to tax FEFE AN UL A (8,833,476) (4,054,174)
Costs and expenses not deductible 5305 BIAK AN &
for tax purposes == 749,525 327,870
Under provision in previous year AR 8 TS R IR 408,436 2,796,919
98,206,268 43,178,907
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B #5IzERRIN - £ 2BEL A ARETT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(13) Supplementary information to the Company’s
cash flow statement

(@ Reconciliation from net profit to cash (@)

flows from operating activities

T QB MBHRRME )

(13) B EXRH T EF

P EF B A &R B R e

2014 2013
20145 E 20135 [F
Net profit FAE 333,605,864 342,995,564
Add: Provision/(reversal) of provision #1: ZEREEEIR
for asset impairment (8ME) 721,708 (182,294)
Depreciation of fixed assets BEE&EENE 57,804,526 51,152,354
Amortisation of intangible assets A N 3,971,764 3,500,094
Amortisation of deferred revenue 3R FE M 2 4 5 (3,253,731) (1,202,325)
Losses on disposal of fixed REEFEEN
assets =S 3,059,764 183,536
Financial expenses MEER 98,455,831 68,351,620
Investment income B W (35,333,903) (32,433,392)
Increase in deferred tax assets FEIEFTS L& E N (4,089,592) (5,194,244)
(Increase)/decrease in BFERGEM), R
inventories (29,230) 9,214
(Increase)/decrease in operating Lt I TE B 1Y
receivables ($840) SF (40,509,554) 14,038,708
(Decrease)/increase in operating KL ENIEE R
payables CR),/ 10 (3,886,410) 54,084,357
Net cash flows from operating RESTEEEANIRESRE
activities HER 410,517,037 495,303,192
TR AR J;MWH RAT 225
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

14 Notes to the Company’s financial statements + QAT EHRERME2)

(Continued)
(13) Supplementary information to the Company’s (13) B & 8 &Kt 7 &H
cash flow statement
(b)  Net (decrease)/increase in cash (b) B FEEEET
2014 2013
2014 2013 fE
Cash at end of year e FRATE 1,880,585,089 2,994,134,037
Less: cash at beginning of year B IREMFIEREE (2,994,134,037)  (1,199,935,519)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeFORD) G INEE (1,113,548,948) 1,794,198,518
(c) Cash payments relating to other operating (€ ZHEMEAGLTEEBNYES
activities
2014 2013
2014 20135 F
Payments of Ground Service MEOERIA
Fee collected on behalf of AU B 1
Haikou Meilan R 7% & 159,050,893 113,675,353
Payments of travelling and TRNERES
other expenses ME 49,963,602 27,050,460
209,014,495 140,725,813
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144Ef&

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BIFERRSN - ©RBENRL A A REEIT)

15 Net current assets

Th BRBEE

The Group
REE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

20145128318 2013%12A31H

Current assets TENEE 2,014,675,870 3,091,910,536
Less: Current liabilities W OREBBE (703,159,240) (410,894,593)
Net current assets FERENEE 1,311,516,630 2.681,015,943

The Company

¥iN/NE]|

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014128318 2013%F12A31H
Current assets REEE 2,011,018,873 3,087,529,236
Less: Current liabilities W REBE (724,795,723) (433,266,263)
Net current assets FREEE 1,286,223,150 2,654,262,973
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
R MIEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 &
(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Fr4FBIERSN - £ 28 EN A A RHEIT)

16 Total assets less current liabilities TN BEERAEBEE
The Group
REE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

20145128318 2013F12831H

Total assets BERE 5,721,747,176 5,667,228,837
Less: Current liabilities W ORBEE (703,159,240) (410,894,593)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRESDEE 5,018,587,936 5,256,334,244

The Company

KA E]
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

2014%F12H31H 2013%F12A31H

Total assets BEAET 5,724,011,583 5,669,651,645
Less: Current liabilities W OREAE (724,795,723) (433,266,263)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREDEE 4,999,215,860 5,236,385,382
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